
M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: PSC CLERK / 
FROM: Wayne L. Schiefelbein 

Of Counsel 

RE: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Our File No. 37019.01 

DATE: October 29,2004 

On behalf of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, enclosed for filing are an original and 5 
copies of an Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Corninon 
Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured and/or Unsecured Debt, and to Enter hito Agreements for 
Interest Rate Swap Products, and to Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2005. 
I have also included one copy to be date stamped and retuiiied to me. 

PLEASE OPEN A NEW DOCKET TO PROCESS THE APPLICATION. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call. 

WLSilun 
Enclosures 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Application by Chesapeake Utilities ) 
Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common ) 
Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured andlor ) 
Unsecured Debt, and to Enter Into Agreements ) 
For Interest Rate Swap Products, and to Exceed ) 
Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in ) 
2005 1 

APPLICATION BY CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK AND 

SECURED AND/OR UNSECURED DEBT, AND TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS 
FOR INTEREST RATE SWAP PRODUCTS, AND TO EXCEED LIMITATION 

PLACED ON SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS IN 2005 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (Chesapeake, the Company or Applicant) respectfully 

files this Application, pursuant to Section 366.04 (I), Florida Statutes, seeking authority 

in 2005, to issue up to 6,000,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock; up to 1,000,000 

shares of Chesapeake preferred stock; up to $80,000,000 in secured andlor unsecured 

debt; to enter into agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products; and to obtain 

authorization to exceed the limitation placed on short-term borrowings by Section 

366.04, Florida Statutes, so as to issue short-term obligations in 2005, in an amount not 

to exceed $40,000,000. 

1. Name and princbal business offices of Applicant: 

(a) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
P.O. Box615 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 



(b) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Florida Division 
1501 First Street, South 
Winter Haven, Florida 33881 

This is a temporary address, durin ost-hurricane reconstruction of the 
former building located at 1015 6 Street N.W., Winter Haven, Florida 
33881. At this time it is undetermined about the status of the completion 
of the renovations to the 101 5 6" Street N.W. location. 
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and 

(c) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Florida Division 
1639 West Gulf to Lake Highway 
Lecanto, Florida 33461 

2. IncorRorated: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation - Incorporated under the Laws of the State of 

Delaware on November 12, 1947 and qualified to do business in Florida, 

Maryland, and Pennsylvania. 

3. Person authorized to receive notices and communications in this rewect: 

Wayne L. Schiefelbein, Esquire 
Of Counsel 
Rose, Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

(850) 656-4029 (Fax) 

Attorneys for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(850) 877-6555 

4. Cauital Stock and Funded Debt: 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in its Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue common stock as follows: 

(a) Common stock having par value of $4867. 

(b) Amount authorized: 12,000,000 shares. 
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(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(9) 

Chesapeake has authority by provisions contained in its Certificate of 

Incorporation, as amended, to issue preferred stock as follows: 

(a) 

(b) Amount authorized: 2,000,000 shares. 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(9) 

Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2004: 5,734,853 shares. 

Amount held in Treasury: 9,353. 

Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

Amount held in any fund: None. 

Preferred stock having par value of $01, 

Amount outstanding as of June 30, 2004: 0 shares. 

Amount held in Treasury: None. 

Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

Amount held in any fund: None. 

The funded indebtedness by class and series are as follows: 

(a)l 8.25% Convertible Debentures due March 1, 2014 are convertible prior to 

maturity, unless previously redeemed, into shares of common stock of 

Chesapeake at a conversion price of $17.01 per share. Interest on the 

Debentures is payable on the first day of March and September, commencing 

September 1, 1989. The Debentures are redeemable at 100% of the principal 

amount plus accrued interest (i) on March 1 in any year, commencing in 1991, 

at the option of the holder and (ii) at any time within 60 days after a request on 

behalf of a deceased holder. At Chesapeake's option, beginning March 1, 



1990, the Debentures may be redeemed in whole or in part at redemption 

prices declining from 107.25%, plus accrued interest. No sinking fund will be 

established to redeem the Debentures. As of June 30, 2004, there is a 

remaining balance of $2,755,000 on this issue. 

(a)2 9.37% First Mortgage Sinking Fund Bonds, Series I, due December 15, 2004, 

issued on December 15, 1989, and secured by the Original Indenture dated as 

of December 1, 1959 between Chesapeake and Maryland National Bank in 

the principal amount of $8,200,000 bearing interest payable semi-annually 

with provisions for payment of interest only prior to December 15, 1991; 

thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid 

balance, on or before the fifteenth days of December and June in each year 

(a) commencing on December 15, 1991, and ending on December 15,1999, 

in the sum of $260,000 and (b) commencing on June 15,2000, and ending on 

December 15, 2004, in the sum of $378,000. As of June 30, 2004, there is a 

remaining balance of $378,000 on this issue. 

(a)3 7.97% Unsecured Senior Notes due February 1, 2008, and issued on 

February 9, 1993 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing interest 

payable semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest only prior to 

February 1, 1999; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest 

on the unpaid balance, over ten (IO) years at the rate of $1,000,000 per 

annum. As of June 30, 2004 there is a remaining balance of $4,000,000 on 

this issue. 
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(a)4 6.91% Unsecured Senior Notes due October 1,2010, and issued on October 

2, 1995 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing interest payable 

quarterly with provisions for payment of interest only prior to October 1, 2000; 

thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the unpaid 

balance, over eleven (1 1) years at the rate of $909,091 per annum. As of 

June 30, 2004, there is a remaining balance of $6,363,636 on this issue. 

(a)5 6.85% Unsecured Senior Notes due January 1,2012 and issued on December 

15, 1997 in the principal amount of $10,000,000 bearing interest payable 

semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest only prior to January 1, 

2003; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the 

unpaid balance, over ten (IO) years at the rate of $1,000,000 per annum. As 

of June 30, 2004, there is a remaining balance of $8,000,000 on this issue. 

(a)6 7.83% Unsecured Senior Notes due January 1,2015 and issued on December 

29, 2000 in the principal amount of $20,000,000 bearing interest payable 

semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest only prior to January 1, 

2006; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the 

unpaid balance, over ten (IO) years at the rate of $2,000,000 per annum. As 

of June 30, 2004, there is a remaining balance of $20,000,000 on this issue. 

(a)7 6.64% Unsecured Senior Notes due October 31,2017 and issued on October 

31, 2002 in the principal amount of $30,000,000 bearing interest payable 

semi-annually with provisions for payment of interest only prior to October 31, 

2007; thereafter, principal shall be payable, in addition to interest on the 

unpaid balance, over eleven (1 1) years at the rate of $2,727,272 per annum. 
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As of June 30, 2004, there is a remaining balance of $30,000,000 on this 

issue. 

(a)8 As of the filing date, the Company had two unsecured committed bank lines of 

credit in the amounts of $5,000,000 and $10,000,000; and three unsecured, 

uncommitted bank lines of credit in the amounts of $1 0,000,000, $20,000,000 

and $20,000,000. For one of the $20,000,000 unsecured, uncommitted lines 

of credit, $5,000,000 of the total line can be used to guarantee letters of credit 

issued by Chesapeake’s unregulated subsidiary, Xeron, Inc. for up to 364 

days. As of June 30, 2004, the total short-term borrowing outstanding under 

the bank lines of credit was $0. 

The amounts authorized are set forth above. 

The amounts outstanding at June 30, 2004 are set forth above. 

Amount held as reacquired securities: None. 

Amount pledged by Applicant: None. 

Amount owned by affiliated corporations: None. 

Amount in Sinking Fund or other funds: None. 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(9 

(9) 

5. Authorizations Reauested: 

Chesapeake requests authorization from the FPSC to issue up to 1,434,175 new 

shares of its common stock during 2005 for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s 

Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, Dividend Reinvestment and 

Stock Purchase Plan, conversion of the Company’s Convertible Debentures, and to 

satisfy 30,000 outstanding warrants. 
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The share breakdown for each specific purpose is as follows: 

Number of 
Shares 

157,321 

307,233 

777,657 

161,964 

30,000 

Purpose 

Issuance pursuant to the Company's Retirement 
Savings Plan. 

Issuance under the terms of the Company's 
Performance Incentive Pian. 

Issuance pursuant to the Company's 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. 

Issuance under the terms of the Company's 
outstanding 8 1/4% Convertible Debentures. 

Issuance pursuant to Outstanding Stock Warrants. 

Chesapeake requests FPSC authorization to issue up to $40,000,000 in secured 

andlor unsecured debt during 2005 for general corporate purposes including, but 

not limited to, working capital, retirement of short-term debt, retirement of long- 

term debt and capital improvements. Chesapeake is also requesting FPSC 

authorization during 2005 to issue up to 4,565,825 shares of common stock and 

up to $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured debt for possible acquisitions. 

Due to the nature of typical cash for stock acquisitions, the $40,000,000 in 

secured andlor unsecured debt may be initially issued through a bridge loan in 

the form of notes held by banks or some similar form of short-term obligations. 

For this reason, Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to exceed the 

limitation placed on short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, so 

as to issue short-term obligations in an amount not to exceed $40,000,000 during 

2005. The bridge financing would subsequently be refinanced as unsecured 

long-term debt with an estimated rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above 
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U.S. Treasury rates (or extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average 

life. 

Chesapeake is also requesting authority to issue up to 1,000,000 shares 

of Chesapeake preferred stock in 2005, for possible acquisitions, financing 

transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including potential 

distribution under the Company’s Shareholder Rights Agreement (“Rights 

Agreement”) adopted by the Board of Directors on August 20, 1999. 

Chesapeake further seeks FPSC approval to enter into financial 

agreements with financial institutions in 2005, to enter into interest rate swaps, 

collars, caps and/or floors (the “Interest Rate Swap Products”) on such terms as 

Chesapeake considers to be appropriate, provided that the notional amount(s) 

for said Interest Rate Swap Products do(es) not, in the aggregate, exceed the 

sum of $30 million. While the Company does not consider such Interest Rate 

Swap Products to involve the actual issuance of securities within the ambit of 

Section 366.04(1), Florida Statutes, in an abundance of caution, Chesapeake 

requests such authority to the extent the FPSC considers Interest Rate Swap 

Products subject to its jurisdiction. In the event that the FPSC does not consider 

Interest Rate Swap Products to be jurisdictional, Chesapeake requests that that 

FPSC issue an Order acknowledging its request in this regard. 

Purposes for which Securities are to be issued: 

(a) 

6 .  

Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan (“RSP”) was implemented on 

February 1, 1977. As of June 30,2004, the RSP had 295 participants; a 

total market valuation of $26,647,369; and 483,334 shares of the 
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Company’s common stock. True and correct copies of the current RSP 

Plan Document and Adoption Agreement have been previously filed with 

the FPSC as Exhibits A and B of the Application for Modification of 

Authority to Issue Common Stock During the Twelve Months Ending 

December 31, 1999, Docket No. 981213-GU, dated June 25, 1999, and 

are hereby incorporated by reference. Pursuant to the RSP, the first 

100% of an employee’s contribution, up to a maximum 6% of hislher 

salary, is matched by the Company in shares of Chesapeake common 

stock. Additional employee dollars that are matched by the Company are 

invested according to the respective employee’s 401 (k) designation. The 

RSP was amended at the end of 1998 to provide for a larger employer 

matching amount, from 60% to as much as 200%, and at the same time 

the Company’s Pension Plan was closed off to new employees. 

Accordingly, as the employer -matching amount has increased, so has the 

number of shares being issued under the RSP. 

To continue to balance the composition of debt and equity, 

Chesapeake wants to maintain flexibility in how the RSP is funded, Le., 

with new shares of its stock, buying shares on the open market, and/or a 

combination of both funding methods. 

On June 23, 1992, the Delaware Public Service Commission 

issued Order No. 3425 approving the issuance of up to 100,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s RSP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public 
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Service Commission is ”open ended” in the sense that there is no time 

limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of the 

Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit J of the 

Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 1 12-GU, dated 

November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On July 13, 

1999, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 5165 

approving the issuance of an additional 100,000 new shares of 

Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering the RSP. 

Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is 

also “open ended” in the sense that there is no time limit by which 

approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this Order has been 

previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit C of the Application by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common 

Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured andlor Unsecured Debt and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2000, Docket No. 

991631-GU, dated October 20, 1999, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. On December 19, 2000, the Delaware Public Service 

Commission issued Order No. 5609 approving the issuance of an 

additional 300,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of administering the RSP. Please note that this Order by the 

Delaware Public Service Commission is also “open ended” in the sense 

that there is no time limit by which approved securities need to be issued. 
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A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit E 

of the Consummation Report of Securities issued by Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation, Docket No. 991631-GU, dated March 29, 2001, and is 

hereby incorporated by reference. Pursuant to these Orders, Chesapeake 

has issued 342,679 new shares of common stock for the RSP as of June 

30,2004. Thus, there remains to be issued 157,321 shares as authorized 

by the Delaware Public Service Commission. 

The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of up to 195,853 shares 

of common stock for the Plan during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03-1216- 

FOF-GU, issued on October 27, 2003. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC 

authorization to issue up to 157,321 new shares of Chesapeake common 

stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's Retirement Savings 

Plan during 2005. 

On May 19, 1992, the common stock shareholders of Chesapeake voted 

in favor of adopting the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 

Incentive Plan ("PIP"). On May 19, 1998, the common stock shareholders 

of Chesapeake approved several amendments to the PIP. A copy of the 

amended PIP agreement has been previously filed with the FPSC as 

Exhibit C of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of 

Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 981 21 3-GU, 

dated September 23, 1998, and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

(b) 

The purposes of the PIP are (1) to further the long-term growth and 

earnings of the Company by providing incentives and rewards to those 
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executive officers and other key employees of the Company and its 

subsidiaries who are in positions in which they can contribute significantly 

to the achievement of that growth; (2) to encourage those employees to 

obtain proprietary interests in the Company and to remain as employees 

of the Company; and (3) to assist the Company in recruiting able 

management personnel. 

To accomplish these objectives, the PIP authorizes the grant of 

nonqualified stock options, performance shares of the Company's 

common stock and stock appreciation rights, or any combination thereof. 

The PIP, as it was originally adopted by the common stock shareholders 

of Chesapeake in 1992, provided that over a ten-year period beginning in 

1992, any one or more types of awards for up to a total of 200,000 shares 

of Chesapeake's common stock may be granted. On June 23,1992, the 

Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 3425 approving 

the issuance of up to 200,000 new shares of Chesapeake common stock 

for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's PIP. Please note that this 

Order by the Delaware Public Service Commission is "open ended" in the 

sense that there is no time limit by which the approved securities need to 

be issued. A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC 

as Exhibit J of the Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of 

Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 1 12-GU, 

dated November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

12 



The amendments to the PIP adopted by the common stock 

shareholders of Chesapeake on May 19, 1998 changed the terms and 

provisions of the PIP as follows: (1) the aggregate number of shares of 

common stock subject to awards was increased from 200,000 shares to 

400,000 shares; (2) the term of the PIP was extended for five years 

through December 31, 2006; and (3) the Board of Directors was granted 

greater flexibility to amend, modify or terminate the PIP, subject to 

shareholder approval requirements imposed by applicable law. On July 

13, 1999, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued Order No. 

5165 approving the issuance of an additional 200,000 new shares of 

Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering the PIP, 

coinciding with these amendments. Please note that this Order by the 

Delaware Public Service Commission is “open ended” in the sense that 

there is no time limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. 

A copy of this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit C 

of the Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for authorization to 

issue common stock, preferred stock and secured and/or unsecured debt 

and to exceed limitation placed on short-term borrowings in 2000, Docket 

No. 991631-GU, dated October 20, 1999, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

As of June 30, 2004 Chesapeake had 9,353 shares of treasury 

stock, which can be reissued from the Performance Incentive Plan to 

satisfy outstanding awards. 
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Pursuant to the PIP, Chesapeake has issued 92,767 new shares of 

common stock as of June 30, 2004. Thus, there remains to be issued 

307,233 shares as previously authorized by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission. The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of up to 327,856 

shares of common stock for the PIP during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03- 

11216-FOF-GU, issued on October 27, 2003. Chesapeake now seeks 

FPSC authorization to issue up to 307,233 new shares of Chesapeake 

common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's 

Performance Incentive Plan during 2005. The 307,233 shares should be 

adequate to cover any awards granted to executives and other key 

officers of the Company and its subsidiaries in 2005. 

Chesapeake's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan ("DRP") 

was implemented on April 27, 1989. The DRP Administrator currently has 

the flexibility of purchasing shares of Chesapeake common stock on the 

open market, using Treasury stock or issuing new common stock. The 

gradual issuance of new common stock enables Chesapeake to balance 

the composition of its capital between common stock and long-term debt. 

As of June 30, 2004, the DRP had 1,295 stockholder participants. 

(c) 

A copy of the DRP as filed on Registration Statement Form S-3 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission has been previously filed 

with the FPSC as Exhibit D of the Application for Approval of Issuance 

and Sale of Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 

961194-GU, dated October 1, 1996, and is hereby incorporated by 
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reference. On May 23, 1989, the Delaware Public Service Commission 

issued Order No. 3071 approving the issuance of up to 200,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s DRP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public 

Service Commission is “open ended” in the sense that there is no time 

limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of this 

Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit J of the 

Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 1 12-GU, dated 

November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. On 

December 20, 1995, the Delaware Public Service Commission issued 

Order No. 4097 approving the issuance of an additional 300,000 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s DRP. Please note that this Order by the Delaware Public 

Service Commission is also “open ended” in the sense that there is no 

time limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of 

this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit E of the 

Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 961 194-GU, dated October 

1, 1996, and is hereby incorporated by reference. Pursuant to the Orders 

above, Chesapeake has issued 472,343 new shares of common stock as 

of June 30, 2004. Thus, there remains to be issued 27,657 shares as 

authorized by the Delaware Public Service Commission. The FPSC 
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approved the issuance and sale of up to 70,052 shares for the DRP 

during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03-1216-FOF-GU, issued on October 27, 

2003. Chesapeake will shortly file an application with the Delaware Public 

Service Commission to issue an additional 750,000 shares for the 

purpose of administering Chesapeake’s DRP. Concurrent with the instant 

application, Chesapeake has applied for approval for the issuance of the 

additional 750,000 shares in 2004, in FPSC Docket No. 030942-GU. 

The Board of Directors of Chesapeake authorized the issuance of 

750,000 shares for the DRP on August 5,2004. In addition, the Board of 

Directors approved amendments to the Plan that; (a) allow for direct stock 

purchases by persons who at the times of purchase are not shareholders 

of the Company; (b) establish the minimum investment amount for direct 

stock purchases by persons who are not shareholders of the Company; 

(c) fix the minimum monthly and maximum annual optional cash 

investment limits for participating shareholders; (d) allow for direct debiting 

of shareholder-designated bank accounts for purchases; and (e) add a 

provision to the Plan, whereby the Company, with the prior approval of the 

Board of Directors or under guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors, 

could on a case-by-case basis waive the maximum annual optional cash 

investment limit and accept investments in excess of that amount. 

Chesapeake now seeks FPSC approval to issue up to 777,657 new 

shares of Chesapeake common stock for the purpose of administering 
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Chesapeake's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan during 

2005. 

On April 4, 1989, Chesapeake issued $5,000,000 in 8.25% Convertible 

Debentures as part of a public offering. As of June 30,2004, $2,755,000 

remained outstanding with a conversion price of $17.01 per share. 

Hence, the maximum number of shares of common stock that could be 

issued upon conversion is 161,964. A true and correct copy of the 

Registration Statement on Form S-2 dated February 16, 1989, as filed 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission, has been previously filed 

with the FPSC as Exhibit I of the Application for Approval of Issuance and 

Sale of Securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 

931 112-GU, dated November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

(d) 

The Debentures had a conversion premium greater than the 

offering price of the common stock issue, no mandatory sinking fund, and 

became callable after one year at a premium equal to the interest rate 

less I % ,  declining 1/2% per year thereafter. There is an optional 

bondholder redemption feature, which allows any debenture holder to 

present any Debenture for redemption, at par, on the anniversary date of 

the issue, subject to annual limitations of $10,000 per debenture holder 

and $200,000 in the aggregate. These optional redemption rights began 

on April 1, 1991. In addition, subject to the annual limitations of $1 0,000 

per debenture holder and $200,000 in the aggregate, Chesapeake will 
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redeem the Debentures of deceased debenture holders within 60 days of 

notification. Such redemption of estate Debentures shall be made prior to 

other Debentures. 

On February 14, 1989, the Delaware Public Service Commission 

issued Order No. 3040 approving the issuance of $5,000,000 in 

Convertible Debentures and, inherently, their potential conversion into 

Chesapeake common stock. Please note that this Order by the Delaware 

Public Service Commission is "open ended" in the sense that there is no 

time limit by which the approved securities need to be issued. A copy of 

this Order has been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit J of the 

Application for Approval of Issuance and Sale of Securities by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Docket No. 931 112-GU, dated 

November 17, 1993, and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

As of June 30, 2004, a cumulative $1,325,000 of the Convertible 

Debentures has been converted. The FPSC approved the issuance and 

sale of up to 186,185 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of honoring conversion rights pursuant to the Company's 

Convertible Debentures during 2004, by Order No.PSC-03-1216-FOF-GU, 

issued on October 27,2003. Chesapeake now seeks FPSC authorization 

to issue up to 161,964 new shares of Chesapeake common stock for the 

purpose of honoring these conversion rights during 2005. 

Chesapeake is also requesting authority during 2005 to issue up to 30,000 

shares of the Company's common stock to satisfy outstanding stock 

(e) 
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purchase warrants. In 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into 

agreements with an investment banking firm to provide consulting 

services. Under the agreements, the Company issued warrants to the 

investment banking firm to purchase shares of Chesapeake common 

stock. On March 31, 2000, the Company issued warrants to the 

investment banker to purchase 15,000 shares of Company stock at a 

strike price of $1 8.00 per share. On March 31,2001, the Company issued 

warrants to the investment banker to purchase another 15,000 shares of 

Company stock at a strike price of $18.25 per share. The warrants are 

exercisable during a seven-year period after the date granted. Upon 

exercise, the investment banker will surrender each warrant along with 

payment in full, by cash, check or wire transfer of the purchase price 

payable, in respect of the number of shares of stock purchased upon such 

exercise. The Company may satisfy any exercised warrants by issuing 

new shares, purchasing shares of common stock in the open market, or 

reissuing out of treasury to the extent available. The Company is in the 

process of filing an application with the Delaware Public Service 

Commission for approval of the issuance of stock associated with these 

stock purchase warrants. The FPSC approved the issuance of 30,000 

shares of the Company’s common stock to satisfy outstanding stock 

purchase warrants in 2004 in Order No. PSC-03-1216-FOF-GU, issued on 

October 27, 2003. 
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(f) Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue during 2004 up to 

$40,000,000 in secured andlor unsecured long-term debt with an 

estimated rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U.S. Treasury 

rates (or extrapolated U.S. Treasury rates) with equivalent average life. 

Proceeds from this debt issuance would be used for general corporate 

purposes including, but not limited to, working capital, retirement of short- 

term debt, retirement of long-term debt and capital improvements. The 

FPSC approved the issuance and sale of $40,000,000 in secured and/or 

unsecured long-term debt during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03-1216-FOF- 

GU, issued on October 27,2003. 

Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue during 2005 up to 

4,565,825 shares of common stock and $40,000,000 in secured and/or 

unsecured long-term debt with an estimated rate of interest of up to 300 

basis points above U.S. Treasury rates (or extrapolated U.S. Treasury 

rates) with equivalent average life. This stock and debt would be used to 

finance Chesapeake's ongoing acquisition program. Chesapeake expects 

to continue to search for growth opportunities through acquisitions, which 

fit its long-range plan to achieve the proper mix of business activities. 

Financing of acquisitions will depend upon the nature and extent of 

potential acquisitions as well as current market and economic conditions. 

The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of 5,190,054 shares of 

common stock and $40,000,000 in secured and/or unsecured long-term 

(9) 

20 



debt during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03-1216-FOF-GU, issued on October 

27, 2003. 

Chesapeake seeks FPSC authorization to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of 

Chesapeake preferred stock during 2005 for possible acquisitions, 

financing transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including 

potential distribution under the Company's Rights Agreement adopted by 

the Board of Directors on August 20, 1999. The Rights Agreement 

approved by the Board of Directors is designed to protect the value of the 

outstanding common stock in the event of an unsolicited attempt by an 

acquirer to take over the Company in a manner or on terms not approved 

by the Board of Directors. The Rights Agreement is not intended to 

prevent a takeover of the Company at a fair price and should not interfere 

with any merger or business combination approved by the Board of 

Directors. Copies of the Forms 8-A and 8-K filed with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission in conjunction with the Rights Agreement have 

been previously filed with the FPSC as Exhibit C of the Application by 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue Common 

Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured andlor Unsecured Debt and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2000, Docket No. 

991631-GU, dated October 20, 1999, and are hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

(h) 

As of June 30, 2004, zero (0) shares of Chesapeake preferred 

stock have been issued. The FPSC approved the issuance and sale of up 
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to 1,000,000 shares of Chesapeake preferred stock for possible 

acquisitions, financing transactions, and other general corporate 

purposes, including potential distribution under the Company’s Rights 

Agreement, during 2004 by Order No. PSC-03-1216-FOF-GU, issued on 

October 27, 2003. 

Chesapeake is also requesting authority during 2005 to enter into 

agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products on such terms as 

Chesapeake considers appropriate provided that the notional amount(s) 

for said Interest Rate Swap Products do (es) not, in the aggregate, exceed 

the sum of $30 million. On July 9, 2002, the Delaware Public Service 

Commission issued Order No. 5989 approving the Company’s application 

for approval of the issuance of certain long-term debt, and acknowledging 

that the Company was considering entering into, or utilizing Interest Rate 

Swap Products. By this Order, the Delaware Public Service Commission 

requested that Chesapeake provide the Commission information on the 

nature of the derivative product, the length of the transaction, its terms 

and conditions, and whether such derivative products will likely be cost 

effective, as soon as the applicable information is available for each 

derivative transaction. A copy of this Order was filed as Exhibit C of the 

Application by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for Authorization to Issue 

Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Secured andlor Unsecured Debt, 

and to Enter into Agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products, and to 

Exceed Limitation Placed on Short-Term Borrowings in 2004, Docket No. 
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030942-GU, and is hereby incorporated by reference. By Order No. PSC- 

03-1216-FOF-GU, issued on October 27, 2003, the FPSC approved the 

Company's request to allow the Company to enter into interest rate swaps 

during 2004, in an amount, in the aggregate, not to exceed $30 million. 

Lawful obiects and Durposes: 

The common stock, preferred stock and long-term debt authorized for issuance 

will be used for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's Retirement Savings 

Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase 

Plan, conversion of the Company's Convertible Debentures, satisfaction of 

outstanding stock warrants, financing of the Company's acquisition program and 

for other corporate purposes including, but not limited to the following: working 

capital; retirement of short-term debt; retirement of long-term debt; capital 

improvements; and potential distribution under the Rights Agreement. 

Chesapeake believes that Interest Rate Swap Products would provide 

Chesapeake with an additional opportunity to achieve lower cost funding of 

existing and prospective debt placements, as well as enhanced flexibility to 

manage the Company's exposure to interest rates as market conditions permit. 

These are all for lawful objects within the corporate purposes of Chesapeake and 

compatible with the public interest and are reasonably necessary or appropriate 

for such purposes. 

Counsel: 

The legality of the common stock, preferred stock and debt issuances will be 

passed upon by William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowski & Guerke, 116 West 
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Water Street, Dover, Delaware 19904, who will rely on Wayne L. Schiefelbein, 

Esquire, Of Counsel, Rose, Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP, 2548 Blairstone Pines 

Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, as to matters of Florida law. 

9. Other Requlatorv Aqencies: 

Under 26 Del. C Section 21 5 of the Delaware statutes, Chesapeake is regulated 

by the Delaware Public Service Commission and, therefore, must file a Prefiling 

Notice, a Notice, and an Application to obtain approval of the Delaware 

Commission before issuing new securities which mature more than one (1) year 

from the date of issuance. In addition, a Notice must be filed if Chesapeake 

expects to incur short-term indebtedness, which exceeds ten percent of the 

Company's total capitalization. All necessary applications or registration 

statements have been or will be made as required and will be made a part of the 

final consummation report to the FPSC as required by Rule 25-8.009, Florida 

Administrative Code. 

The address of the Delaware Commission is as follows: 

Delaware Public Service Commission 
861 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Cannon Building 
Dover, Delaware 19904 
Attention: Bruce H. Burcat, Executive Director 

10. Control or ownership: 

Applicant is not owned by any other company nor is Applicant a member of any 

holding company system 

24 



11. Exhibits: 

The following exhibits submitted with Applicant's Applications in Docket Nos. 

030942-GU, 991631-GU, 981213-GU, 961 194-GU and 931 112-GU, respectively, 

are incorporated in the instant Application by reference: 

Docket No. 030942-GU 

Exhibit C: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 5989. 

Docket No. 991631-GU 

Exhibit C: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 5165 dated July 
13,1999 for the Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan 
(1 00,000 shares) and Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Performance Incentive Plan (200,000 shares). 

Exhibit D: Securities and Exchange Commission Form 8-A For Registration 
of Certain Classes of Securities Pursuant to Section 12(B) or 12 
(G) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Securities and 
Exchange Commission Form 8-K Current Report 

Docket No. 981 21 3-GU (as amended on June 25, 1999) 

Exhibit A: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan- 
Plan Document. 

Exhibit B: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Retirement Savings Plan- 
Adoption Agreement. 

Docket No. 98121 3-GU 

Exhibit C: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Amended Performance 
Incentive Plan. 

Docket No. 961 194-GU 

Exhibit D: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and 
Stock Purchase Plan as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on Registration Statement Form S-3 dated 
December 1, 1995. 
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12. 

Exhibit E: Delaware Public Service Commission Order No. 4097 dated 
December 20, 1995, for the issuance of 300,000 shares 
pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. 

Docket No. 931 11 2-GU 

Exhibit I: 

Exhibit J: 

Filed herewith: 

Exhibit A: 

Exhibit B: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Public Offering of Common 
Stock and Convertible Debentures as filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on Registration Statement Form S-2 
dated February 16, 1989. 

Orders of the Delaware Public Service Commission Authorizing 
the Issuance of Common Stock. 

Exhibit A consists of the following attachments: 

A( l )  Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual Report on Form 
IO-K for the year ended December 31,2003. 

A(2) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,2004. 

Sources and Uses of Funds Statement and Construction 
Budget. 

Constitutionalitv of Statute: 

Chesapeake has taken the position that the statutory requirement of FPSC 

approval of the issuance and sale of securities by a public utility, under Section 

366.04 (I),  Florida Statutes, as applied to Chesapeake, a Delaware corporation 

engaged in interstate commerce, is unconstitutional, in that it creates an 

unreasonable burden on interstate commerce. Support for this position is set out 

in Chesapeake‘s Petition for declaratory statement disclaiming jurisdiction, as 

filed in FPSC Docket No. 930705-GU. 
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By FPSC Order No. PSC-93-1548-FOF-W, issued on October 21,1993, 

the FPSC denied the Petition for declaratory statement, while approving the 

alternative Application for approval of the issuance of up to 100,000 new shares 

of common stock for the purpose of administering a Retirement Savings Plan. 

The FPSC found that "the facial constitutionality of a statute cannot be decided in 

an administrative proceeding," and that since the stock issuance was approved, 

"the question of constitutionality appears to be academic at this time." 

Chesapeake continues to maintain that the assertion of jurisdiction by the 

FPSC over its securities unconstitutionally burdens interstate commerce, 

particularly where the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware has 

approved their issuance and sale, andlor where the securities do not create a lien 

or encumbrance on assets of Chesapeake's public utility operations in the State 

of Florida. 

Florida law provides for severe penalties for any willful violation of a 

statute administered by the FPSC or any of its rules or orders. Secs. 350.127 (1) 

and 366.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, Chesapeake believes it must submit 

to FPSC jurisdiction over its securities if it is to avoid assessment of such 

penalties and to otherwise remain in good standing before the FPSC. It therefore 

files the instant Application, under protest, and without waiver of its position 

regarding the unconstitutionality of the statute. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation requests that the FPSC issue an 

Order authorizing it in 2005 to issue up to 6,000,000 shares of common stock, up to 

1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, and up to $80,000,000 of secured andlor unsecured 

debt, and authorizing it to enter into agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products and to 

exceed the limitation placed on short-term borrowings by Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, 

so as to issue up to $40,000,000 in short-term obligations. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Counsel 
Rose, Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

(850) 656-4029 (Fax) 
(850) 877-6555 

Attorneys for 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
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. 

STATE OF DELAWARE * 

COUNTY OF KENT 

* 
* ss 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this 27th day of October, 2004, personally appeared before 

me, a Notary Public for the State of Delaware, Michael P. McMasters, who being by me duly sworn, 

did depose and say that he is Vice President and CFO of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a 

Delaware corporation, and that insofar as the Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation states 

facts, and insofar as those facts are within his personal knowledge, they are true; and insofar as 

those facts that are not within his personal knowledge, he believes them to be true, and that the 

exhibits accompanying this Application and attached hereto are true and correct copies of the 

originals of the aforesaid exhibits, and that he has executed this Application on behalf of the 

Company and pursuant to the authorization of its Board of Directors. 

Michael P. McMasters 
Vice President & CFO 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: dNh? 
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EXHIBIT A 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Annual 
Report on Form IO-K for the year ended 
December 31.2003. 

A(1) 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Quarterly 
Report on Form IO-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30,2004. 

A(2) 
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PART I 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake” or “the Company”) has made statements in this Form 10-K that are 
considered to be forward-looking statements, These statements are not matters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain 
words such as “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “will,” or “may,” and other similar words of a predictive nature. 
These statements relate to matters such as customer growth, changes in revenues or margins, capital expenditures, 
environinental reniediation costs, regulatory approvals, market risks associated with the Company’s propane operations, 
the competitive position of the Company and other matters. It is important to understand that these forward-looking 
statements are not guarantees, but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, See Item 7 under the heading 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Cautionary Statement.” 

As a public company, Chesapeake files annual, quarterly and other reports, as well as its annual proxy Statement and 
other information, with the Securities and Exchange Conmission (“the SEC”). Chesapeake makes available, free of 
charge, on its Internet website its Annual Report on Forin 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on 
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed 
with or furnished to the SEC. The address of Chesapeake’s internet website is www.chpk.com. The content of this 
website is not part of this report. 

Chesapeake has a Business Code of Ethics and Conduct applicable to all employees, officers and directors and a Code of 
Ethics for Financial Officers. Copies of the Business Code of Ethics and Conduct and the Financial Officer Code of 
Ethics are available on our internet website. Chesapeake also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines and Charters for 
the Audit Coilmiittee, Compensation Committee, and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, each of which 
satisfies the regulatory requirements established by the Securities and Exchange Coininission and the New York Stock 
Exchange. Each of these documents also is available on Chesapeake’s internet website or may be obtained by writing to: 
Corporate Secretary; c/o Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 909 Silver Lake Blvd.; Dover, DE 19904. 

If Chesapeake makes any amendment to, or grants a waiver of, any provision of the Business Code of Ethics and 
Conduct or the Financial Officer Code of Ethics applicable to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, 
principal accounting officer or controller, the ainendinent or waiver will be disclosed within five business days on the 
internet website. 

(a) General Development of Business 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution and 
transmission, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services, and other related businesses. 

Chesapeake’s three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 47,600 residential, conxnercial and industrial 
customers in central and southern Delaware, Maryland’s Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. The Company’s natural gas 
transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company (“Eastern Shore”), operates a 304-mile interstate pipeline 
system that transports gas froin various points in Pennsylvania to the Company’s Delaware and Maryland distribution 
divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southern Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the Eastern 
Shore ofMaryland. The Company’s propane distribution operation serves approxiinately 34,900 customers in central and 
southern Delaware, the Eastern Shore of both Maryland and Virginia and parts of Florida. The advanced information 
services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology related business services and 
solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and sold the assets of six of the seven dealerships. 
Chesapeake expects to sell the remaining water dealership during 2004. 
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(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments 
Financial ~nforniation by business segment 1s included in Item 7 under the heading “Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements -Note D ’’ 

(c) Narrative Description of Business 
The Company is engaged in  three primary business activities: natural gas distribution and transmission, propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing and advanced information services. In addition to the primary groups, Chesapeake 
has subsidiaries in other ]-elated businesses. 

(i) (a) Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission 
General 
Chesapeake distributes natural gas to residential, comniercial and industrial custoniers i n  central and southern 
Delaware, the Salisbury and Cambridge, Maryland areas on Maryland’s Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. These 
activities are conducted through three utility divisions, one division in Delaware, another in  Maryland and a third 
division in Florida. The Company also offers natural gas supply and supply management services in the state of 
Florida under the name of Peninsula Energy Services Company (“PESCO”). 

Delaware und Mai-1:laizd. Chesapeake’s Delaware and Maryland utility divisions serve an average of approximately 
36,400 customers, of which approximately 36,200 are residential and conimercial customers purchasing gas 
primarily for heating purposes. The remainder are industrial customers. For the year 2003, residential and 
coinniercial customers accounted for approximately 64% of the volume delivered by the divisions and 70% of the 
divisions’ revenue. The divisions’ industrial customers purchase gas, primarily on an interruptible basis, for a variety 
of manufacturing, agricultural and other uses. Most of Chesapeake’s customer growth in these divisions conies from 
new residential construction using gas-heating equipment. 

Florida The Florida division distributes natural gas to approximately 1 I ,  100 residential and coniinercial and 90 
industrial customers in Polk, Osceola, Hillsborough, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Union, Holmes, Jackson, Desoto, 
Suwannee and Citrus Counties. Currently the 90 industrial customers, which purchase and transport gas on a fimi 
basis, account for approximately 97Y0 of the volume delivered by the Florida division and 64% of the revenues. 
These customers are primarily engagcd in the citrus and phosphate industries and in electric cogeneration. The 
Company’s Florida division, through PESCO, provides natural gas supply management services to 250 customers. 

Eastern Shoi-e. The Company’s wholly owned transmission subsidiaiy, Eastern Shore, owns and operates an 
interstate natural gas pipeline and provides open access transportation services for affiliated and non-affiliated 
companies through an integrated gas pipeline extending fi-om southeastern Pennsylvania through Delaware to its 
terminus on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. Eastern Shore also provides swing transportation service and contract 
storage services. Eastern Shore’s rates and services are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (“FERC”). 

Adequacy of Resources 
General. The Delaware and Maryland divisions have both firm and interruptible contracts with four interstate “open 
access” pipelines including Eastern Shore. The divisions are directly interconnected with Eastern Shore and services 
upstream of Eastern Shore are contracted with Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation (“Transco”), Columbia 
Gas Transmission Corporation (“Columbia”) and Columbia Gulf Transmission Company (“Gulf’). The divisions use 
their firm transportation supply resources to meet a significant percentage of their projected demand requirements. In 
order to meet the difference between firm supply and firm demand, the divisions purchase natural gas supply on the 
spot market from various suppliers. This gas is transported by the upstream pipelines and delivered to the divisions’ 
interconnects \vith Eastern Shore. The divisions also have the capability to use propane-air peak-shaving to 
supplement or displace the spot market purchases. The Company believes that the availability of gas supply and 
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transportation to the Delaware and Maryland divisions is adequate under existing arrangements to meet the 
anticipated needs of their customers. 

Delaivai-e. The Delaware division’s contracts lvith Transco include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 9,029 
dekatherins (“Dt”) per day. which expires in 2005; (b) firm transportation capacity of 3 11 Dt per day for December 
through February, expiring in 2006; (c) firm transportation capacity of I74 Dt per day, which expires in 2004; and 
(d) firm storage service, providing a total capacity of 142,830 Dt, with provisions to continue from year to year, 
subject to six (6) months notice for termination. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 852 Dt per day, which 
expires in 2014; (b )  firin transportation capacity of 1,132 Dt per day, which expires in 20 17; (c) firm transportation 
capacity of 549 Dt per day, which expires in 201 8; (d) firin transportation capacity of 899 per day, which expires in 
20 19; (e) firin storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 6,193 Dt and a total capacity of 298,195 Dt, which 
expires in 2014; (f) firm storage service, providing a peak day entitlement of 635 Dt and a total capacity of 57, I39 
Dt, which expires in 201 7; (g) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total capacity of 
52.460 Dt, which expires in 20 18; and (h) firni storage senzice providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total 
capacity of 9 , 4 6 0  Dt, which expires in 2019. Delaware’s contracts with Columbia for storage-related transportation 
provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement for the period of October through March and are 
equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitleinent for the period ofApril through September. The terms of 
the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support. 

The Delaware division’s contract with Gulf, which expires in 2004, provides firm transportation capacity of 868 Dt 
per day for the period November through March and 798 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Eastern Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 34,587 Dt per day 
for the period December through February, 33,365 Dt per day for the months ofNovember, March and April, and 
24,289 Dt per day for the period May through October, with various expiration dates ranging froin 2004 to 201 7; (b) 
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 2,655 Dt and a total capacity of 13 1,370 Dt, which expires 
in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 580 Dt and a total capacity of 29,000 Dt, 
which expires in  201 3; (d) firm storage capacity providing apeak day entitlement of 91 1 Dt and a total capacity of 
5,708 Dt? which expires in 2006; and (e) firin storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 230 Dt and a total 
capacity of I 1,700 Dt, which expires in 2004. The Delaware division’s firin transportation contracts with Eastern 
Shore also include Eastein Shore’s provision of swing transportation service. This service includes: (a) firm 
transportation capacity of 1,846 Dt per day on Transco’s pipeline system, retained by Eastern Shore, in addition to 
the Delaware division’s Transco capacity referenced earlier and (b) an interruptible storage service that supports a 
swing supply service provided by Transco. 

The Delaware division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. 
These supply contracts provide the availability of a maximum firm daily entitlement of 2 1,700 Dt and the supplies 
are transported by Transco, Columbia, Gulf and Eastern Shore under finn transportation contracts. The gas purchase 
contracts have various expiration dates and daily quantities may vary from day to day and month to month. 

Mun4aiid. The Maryland division’s contracts with Transco include: (a) firin transportation capacity of4,738 Dt per 
day, which expires in 1005; (b) firm transportation capacity of 155 Dt per day for December through February, 
expiring in 2006; and (c) firm storage service providing a total capacity of 33,120 Dt, with provisions to continue 
from year to year, subject to six months notice for termination. 

The Maryland division‘s contracts with Coluinbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of442 Dt per day, which 
expires in 2014; (b) firin transportation capacity of 908 Dt per day, which expires in 2017; (c) finn transportation 
capacity of 350 Dt per day, which expires in 20 18; (d) firin storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 3,142 
Dt and a total capacity of 154,756 Dt, which expires in 2014; and (e) firm storage service providing a peak day 
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entitlenient of 52 1 Dt and a total capacity of 46,88 1 Dt, which expires in 201 7. The Maryland division’s contracts 
with Columbia for storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement 
for the period October through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (SOYO) of the peak day entitlement for the 
period April through September. The t e rm of the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services 
that they support. 

The h4aiyland diirision’s contract with Gulf, which expires in 2004, provides firm transportation capacity of 590 Dt 
per day for the period November through March and 543 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Maryland division’s contracts with Eastern Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 13,678 Dt per day 
for the period December through February, 12,954 Dt per day for the months of November, March and April, and 
8,393 Dt per day for the period May through October, with various expiration dates ranging from 2004 to 2013; (b) 
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 1,428 Dt and a total capacity of 70,665 Dt, which expires 
in  2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 309 Dt and a total capacity of 15,500 Dt, 
which expires in 20 13; and (d) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 569 Dt and a total capacity 
of 3,560 Dt, which expires in 2006. The Maryland division’s firm transportation contracts with Eastern Shore also 
include Eastern Shore’s provision of swing transportation service. This service includes: (a) firm transportation 
capacity of 969 Dt per day on Transco’s pipeline system, retained by Eastern Shore, in addition to the Maryland 
division’s Transco capacity referenced earlier and (b) an interruptible storage service that supports a swing supply 
service provided by Transco. 

The Maryland division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. 
These supply contracts provide the availability of a niaximum firm daily entitlement of 7,600 Dt and the supplies are 
transported by Transco, Columbia, Gulf and Eastern Shore under the Maryland division’s transportation contracts. 
The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates and daily quantities inay vary from day to day and month 
to month. 

Flol-idu. The Florida division receives transportation service from Florida Gas Transmission Company (“FGT”), a 
major interstate pipeline. Chesapeake has contracts with FGT for: (a) daily firm transportation capacity of 27,579 Dt 
in November through April; 2 1,200 Dt in May through September, and 27,416 Dt in October, which expires in 2010; 
and (b) daily firm transportation capacity of 1,000 Dt daily, which expires in 2015. 

The Florida division also began receiving transportation service from Gulfstream Natural Gas System 
(“Gulfstream”), beginning in June 2002. Chesapeake has a contract with Gulfstream for daily firm transportation 
capacity of 10,000 Dt daily. The contract with Gulfstrcani expires May 3 1,  2022. 

Eastern Shore. Eastern Shore has 2,888 thousand cubic feet (“Mcf’) of firm transportation capacity under contract 
with Transco, which expires i n  2005. Eastern Shore also has contracts with Transco for: (a) 5,406 Mcf of finm peak 
day entitlements and total storage capacity of 267,981 Mcf, which expires in 2013; and (b) 1,640 Mcf of finn peak 
day entitlements and total storage capacity of 10,283 Mcf. which expires in 2006. 

Eastern Shore also has firm storage service and firm storage transportation capacity under contract with Columbia. 
These contracts. which expire in 2004, provide for 1,073 Mcf of fimi peak day entitlement and total storage capacity 
of 53,738 Mcf. 

Eastern Slioi-e has retained the firni transportation capacity and firm storage services described above in order to 
provide swing transportation service and storage service to those customers that requested such service. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in  Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.’’ 
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Rates and Regulation 
Ger7crul. Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution divisions are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and 
Florida Public Service Commissions with respect to various aspects of the Company’s business, including the rates 
for sales to all customers in each respective jurisdiction. All of Chesapeake’s firm distribution rates are subject to 
purchased gas adjustment clauses, which match revenues with gas costs and nomially allow eventual full recovery of 
gas costs. Adjustments under these clauses require periodic filings and hearings with the relevant regulatory 
authority, but do not require a general rate proceeding. 

Eastern Shore is subject to regulation by the FERC as an interstate pipeline. The FERC regulates the provision of 
service, terms and conditions of service, and the rates Eastern Shore can charge for its transportation and storage 
services. In addition, tlie FERC regulates the rates Eastern Shore is charged for transportation and transmission line 
capacity and services provided by Transco and Columbia. 

Management monitors the achieved rate of return in each jurisdiction in order to ensure the timely filing of rate 
ad.justment applications. 

Regulatory Proceedings 
Delaware. On August 2,2001, the Delaware division filed a general rate increase application. Interim rates, subject 
to refund went into effect on October 1, 200 1.  Tlie Delaware Public Service Coiiimission approved a settlement 
agreement for Phase I of the Rate Increase Application in April 2002. Phase I resulted in an increase in rates of 
approximately $380,000 per year. The Delaware Public Service Commission approved a settlement agreement 
ainong the Company, the Coiiiiiiissioii staff and tlie Division of the Public Advocate for Phase I1 of the Rate Increase 
Application in November 2002. Phase IT resulted in an additional increase in rates of approximately $90,000 per 
year. Phase I1 also reduced the Company’s sensitivity to warmer than normal weather by changing the minimuin 
customer charge and the margin sharing arrangement for interruptible sales, off system sales and capacity release 
income. 

Florida. On November 19,200 1, the Florida division filed apetition with the Florida Public Senrice Coinmission for 
approval of certain transportation cost recoveiy rates. The Florida Public Service Coiiimission approved the rates on 
January 24, 2002, which provide for tlie recovery, over a two-year period, of the Florida division’s actual and 
projected noli-recurring expenses incurred in the implementation of tlie transportation provisions of the tariff as 
approved in a November 2000 rate case. The Florida division filed a petition on February 4, 2004, to dispose of a 
minor under-recovery of the actual expenses incurred to iinpleiiient the tariff provisions. 

On Noveiiiber S ,  2002, the Florida Public Service Commission authorized a pilot program under which the Florida 
division converted all remaining sales custoniei-s to transportation service and exited the gas merchant function. 
Tiiiplementation of Phase One of the Transitional Transportation Service (“TTS”) program was completed in 
November. 2002, and the Florida division is now actively providing the adinInistrative services as approved by the 
FPSC. 

On July 15, 2003, the FPSC approved a rate restructuring proposed by tlie Florida Division. Tlie restructuring 
created three new low volume rate classes, with customer charge levels that ensure that all customers receive 
benefits from the TTS program. 

On January 4,2004, the Florida Public Service Commission authorized tlie Florida division to refund the remaining 
balance in its over-recovered purchased gas costs account, totaling $236,000, as a final step in its exit of the gas 
merchant function. 

Eastern Shore. On October 3 1.200 1 Eastern Shore filed a rate change with tlie FERC pursuant to tlie requirements 
of the Stipulation and Agreement dated August I ,  1997. Follo\ving settlement conferences held in May 2002, the 
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parties reached a settlement in principle on or about May 23,2002, to resolve all issues related to its rate case. The 
Offer of Settlement and the Stipulation and Agreement were finalized and filed with the FERC on August 2,2002. 
The agreement provided for a reduction in rates of approximately $456,000 on an annual basis. On October 10, 
2002, the FERC issued an Order approving the Offer of Settlement and the Stipulation and Agreement. Settleiiient 
rates went into effect on December 1.2002. 

On January 25,2002, Eastern Shore filed an application before the FERC requesting authorization for the following: 
( I )  Segment 1 - construction and operation of 1.5 iniles of 16-inch mainline looping in Pennsylvania on Eastern 
Shore’s existing right-of-way; and (2) Segment 2 - construction and operation of 1.0 mile of 16-inch mainline 
looping in Maryland and Delaware on, or adjacent to, Eastern Shore’s existing right-of-way. The purpose of the 
construction was to enable Eastern Shore to provide 4,500 Dt of additional daily firm capacity on Eastern Shore’s 
system. The expansion was completed and placed into service during the fourth quarter of 2002. 

On April 1,2003, Eastern Shore filed an application before the FERC requesting authorization for the following: (1) 
Phase I -upgrade of Parkesburg M & R Station; (2) Phase I1 - construct and operate 2.7 miles of 16-inch mainline 
looping in Pennsylvania; and (3) Phase 111 - construct and operate 3.0 miles of 16-inch mainline looping and a 
pressure control station in Delaware. The purpose of this construction is to enable Eastern Shore to provide 
additional daily firm transportation capacity of 15,100 Dt on Eastern Shore’s system. Such increased capacity is to 
be phased in over a three-year period coinniencing November 1,2003. Phase I of this expansion was completed and 
placed into service on November 1, 2003. 

During October 2002, Eastern Shore filed for recovery of gas supply realignment costs associated with the 
iniplementation of FERC Order No. 636. The costs totaled $196,000 (including interest). At that time, the FERC 
would not review Eastern Shore’s filing, because the FERC wished to settle a related matter with another 
transmission company first. The other transiiiission company submitted a filing on December 5, 2003. The FERC 
has not yet acted on the filing. Eastern Shore will resubmit its transition cost recovery filing immediately upon 
learning of the FERC’s approval. 

On December 16,2003, Eastern Shore filed with the FERC revised tariff sheets to implement revisions to its Fuel 
Retention and Cash Out provisions. These will be effective January 15,2004. The proposed tariff revisions permit 
Eastern Shore to incorporate its Deferred Gas Required for Operations amounts into the calculation of its annual 
Fuel Retention percentage adjustment and to implement a surcharge, effective July 1 of each year, to recover cash- 
out amounts. The FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s revised tariff sheets on January 15, 2004, subject to certain 
revisions to clarify the tariff sheets. On January 30, 2004, Eastern Shore submitted the revised tariff sheets. 

(i) (b) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
General 
Chesapeake’s propane distribution group consists of (1) Sharp Energy, Inc. (“Sharp Energy”), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Chesapeake, (2) Sharpgas, Inc. (“Sharpgas”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy, and (3) Tri- 
County Gas Company, lnc. (“Tri-County”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. The propane wholesale 
marketing group consists of Xeron, Inc. (“Xeron”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. 

Propane is a form of liquefied petroleum gas, which is typically extracted from natural gas or separated during the 
crude oil refining process. Although propane is a gas at normal pressure, it is easily compressed into liquid form for 
storage and transportation. Propane is a clean-burning fuel, gaining increased recognition for its environmental 
superiority, safety, efficiency, transportability and ease of use relative to alternative fonns of energy. Propane is sold 
primarily in suburban and rural areas, which are not served by natural gas pipelines. Demand is typically much 
higher in the winter months and is significantly affected by seasonal variations, particularly the relative severity of 
winter temperatures, because of its use in residential and commercial heating. 
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The Company’s propane distribution operations served approximately 34,900 propane customers on the Delmdrva 
Peninsula and in Florida and delivered approxiuiatcly 24 million retail and wholesale gallons of propane during 
2003, 

In May 1998, Chesapeake acquired Xeron, a natural gas liquids trading company located in Houston, Texas. Xeron 
markcts propane to large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and southeastern retail propane 
companies in the United States. Additional information on Xeron’s trading and wholesale marketing activities, 
market risks and the controls that limit and monitor the risks are included in Item 7 under the heading 
“Management’s Discussion and .4nalysis - Market Risk.” 

The propane distribution business is affected by many factors such as seasonality, the absence of price regulation 
and competition among local providers. The propane wholesale marketing business is affected by wholesale price 
volatility and the supply and demand for propane at a wholesale level. 

Adequacy of Resources 
The Company’s propane distribution operations purchase propane primarily from suppliers, including major 
domestic oil companies and independent producers of gas liquids and oil. Supplies of propane from these and other 
sources are readily available for purchase by the Company. Supply contracts generally include minimum (not subject 
to take-or-pay preniiurns) and rnaximum purchase provisions. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations use trucks and railroad cars to transport propane from refineries, 
natural gas processing plants or pipeline terminals to the Company’s bulk storage facilities. From these facilities, 
propane is delivered in portable cylinders or by “bobtail” trucks, owned and operated by the Company, to tanks 
located at the customer’s premises. 

Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane; however, it contracts for storage 
and pipeline capacity to facilitate the sale of propane on a wholesale basis. 

Compefifion 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.” 

Rates and Regulation 
The Company’s propane distribution and wholesale marketing activities are not subject to any federal or state 
pricing regulation. Transport operations are subject to regulations concerning the transportation of hazardous 
materials promulgated under the Federal Motor Carricr Safety Act, xhich is administered by the United States 
Department of Transportation and enforced by the various states in which such operations take place. Propane 
distribution operations are also subject to state safety regulations relating to “hook-up” and placement of propane 
tanks. 

The Company’s propane operations are subject to all operating hazards nonilally associated with the handling, 
storage and transportation of conibustible liquids, such as the risk ofpersonal injury and property damage caused by 
fire. The Company carries general liability insurance in the amount of $35 million, but there is no assurance that 
such insurance will be adequate. 

(i) (c) Advanced Information Services 
Genera I 
Chesapeake’s advanced information services segment consists of BravePoint, Inc. (“BravePoint”), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. The Company changed its name from United Systems, Inc. in 200 1 to reflect a change in 
service offerings 
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Bravepoint, headquartered in Norcross, Georgia, provides domestic and international clients with information 
technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition.” 

(i) (d) Other Subsidiaries 
Skipjack, Inc. (“Skipjack”), Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Company are wholly owned 
subsidiaries of Chesapeake Service Company. Skipjack and Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. own and lease office 
buildings in Delaware and Maryland to affiliates of Chesapeake. Chesapeake Investment Company is a Delaware 
affiliated investment company. 

Chesapeake conducted its water conditioning and treatment and bottled water services business through separate 
subsidiaries. The assets of all of the water businesses except for Sharp Water of Florida, Inc were sold in 2003 and 
the subsidiaries are now inactive. 

(ii) Seasonal Nature of Business 
Revenues froin the Company’s residential and coininercial natural gas sales and froin its propane distribution 
activities are affected by seasonal variations, since the majority of these sales are to customers using the fuels for 
heating purposes. Revenues froiii these customers are accordingly affected by the mildness or severity of the heating 
season. 

(iii) Capital Budget 
A discussion of capital expenditures by business segment is included in Item 7 under the heading “Management 
Discussion and Analysis - Liquidity and Capital Resources.” 

(iv) Employees 
As of December 3 1, 2003, Chesapeake had 452 einployees, including 197 in natural gas, 140 in propane, 71 in 
advanced information services and 13 in water services. The remaining 3 1 employees are considered general and 
administrative and include officers of the Company, treasury, accounting, information technology, human resources 
and other administrative personnel. 

(v) Executive Officers of the Registrant 
Information pertaining to the executive officers of the Company is as follows: 

John R. Schimkaitis (age 56) Mr. Schiinkaitis has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake since 1999, 
and as President since 1997. Mr. Schimkaitis has been employed by Chesapeake since 1984. His positions with the 
Coinpany prior to 1997 included Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of Chesapeake. He 
has been a director since 1996. 

Michael P. McMasters (age 45) Mr. McMasters has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of 
Chesapeake since 1996. Mr. McMasters resumed his employment with Chesapeake in 1994. He previously served as 
Treasurer, Vice President of Eastern Shore, Director of Accounting and Rates and Controller. Prior to rejoining 
Chesapeake, Mr. McMasters was employed as Director of Operations Planning for Equitable Gas Company. 

Stephen C. Thompson (age 43) Mr. Thompson has served as Vice President of theNatural Gas Operations as well as 
Vice President of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation since 1997. Mr. Thompson has been employed by Chesapeake 
since 1983. His positions with the Company prior to 1997 included President, Vice President, Director of Gas 
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Supply and Marketing, Superintendent of Eastern Shore and Regional Manager for the Florida Distribution 
Operations. 

William C. Bovles (age 46) Mr. Boyles has served as Vice President of Chesapeake since 1997 and as Corporate 
Secretary of Chesapeake since 1998. Mr. Boyles has been employed by Chesapeake since 1988. He previously 
served as Director of Administrative Services, Director of Accounting and Finance, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer 
and Treasury Department Manager. Prior to joining Chesapeake, he was employed as a Manager of Financial 
Analysis at Equitable Bank of Delaware and Group Controller at Irving Trust Company of New York. 

S. Robert Zola (age 52) Mr. Zola has served as President of Sharp Energy since he began his employment with 
Chesapeake in 2002. Prior to joining Chesapeake, he was employed as a Northeast Regional Manager for Synergy 
Gas, now Cornerstone MLP in Pennsylvania. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

(a) General 
The Company owns offices and operates facilities in the following locations: Pocomoke, Salisbury, Cambridge and 
Princess Anne, Maryland; Dover, Seaford, Laurel and Georgetown, Delaware; and Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake 
rents office space in Dover and Ocean View, Delaware; Jupiter, Lecanto and Stuart, Florida; Chincoteague and Belle 
Haven, Virginia; Easton, and Salisbury, Maryland; Houston, Texas; and Atlanta, Georgia. In general, the Company 
believes that its properties are adequate for the uses for which they are employed. Capacity and utilization of the 
company’s facilities can vary significantly due to the seasonal nature of the natural gas and propane distribution 
businesses. 

(b) Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake owns over 754 miles of natural gas distribution inains (together with related service lines, meters and 
regulators) located in its Delaware and Maryland service areas and 547 miles of natural gas distribution inains (and 
related equipment) in its central Florida service areas. Chesapeake also owns facilities in Delaware and Maryland for 
propane-air injection during periods of peak demand. Portions of the properties constituting Chesapeake’s distribution 
system are encumbered pursuant to Chesapeake’s First Mortgage Bonds. 

(c) Natural Gas Transmission 
Eastern Shore owns and operates approximately 304 miles oftransniission pipelines extending from supply interconnects 
at Parkesburg, Pennsylvania; Daleville, Pennsylvania and Hockessin, Delaware to approximately seventy-five delivery 
points in southeastern Pennsylvania, Delaware and the eastern shore of Maryland. Eastern Shore also owns compressor 
stations located in Daleville, Pennsylvania, Delaware City, Delaware and Bridgeville, Delaware. The coinpressor stations 
are used to increase pressures as necessary to meet system demands. 

(d) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
The company’s Delmarva-based propane distribution operation owns bulk propane storage facilities with an aggregate 
capacity of approximately 2.2 inillion gallons at 40 plant facilities in Delaware, Maryland and Virginia, located on real 
estate that is either owned or leased. The company’s Florida-based propane distribution operation owns three bulk 
propane storage facilities with a total capacity of 66,000 gallons. Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or 
equipment to transport propane; however, it leases propane storage capacity and pipeline capacity. 

(e) Water Services 
The Company owns a facility in Salisbury, Maryland that is currently being rented to another party. The Company 
intends to sell the facility during 2004. 
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

(f) General 
The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of 
business. The Company is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental 
agencies concerning rates. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a 
material effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company. 

(9) Environmental 
The Company has participated in the investigation, assessment and remediation of three former gas manufacturing 
plant sites located in different jurisdictions. The Company has accrued liabilities for each of the Dover Gas Light, 
Salisbury Town Gas Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Company is currently in discussions with the 
Maryland Department of the Environment (“MDE’) regarding a fourth site in Cambridge, Maryland. 

Dover Gas Light Site 
On January 15,2004, the Company received a Certificate of Completion of Work from the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (“EPA”) regarding the Dover Gas Light site. This concluded the remedial action obligation that 
Chesapeake had related to this site. The Dover Gas Light Site is a fomier manufactured gas plant site located in Dover, 
Delaware. In May 200 1,  the Company, General Public Utilities Corporation, Inc. (now FirstEnergy Corporation), the 
State of Delaware, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) and the United States Department of 
Justice (“DOJ”) signed a settlement term sheet to settle complaints brought by the Company and the United States in 
1996 and 1997, respectively, with respect to the Dover Site. In October 2002, the final Consent Decrees were signed and 
delivered to the DOJ. The Consent Decrees were lodged simultaneously with the United States District Court for the 
District of Delaware and a notice soliciting public comment for a 30-day period was published in the Federal Register. 
The public coinnient period ended April 30,2003 with no public comments. The DOJ filed an Unopposed Motion for 
Entry of Consent Decrees on June 26,2003. 

By Order dated July 18,2003, the U S .  District Court for the District of Delaware entered final judgment approving and 
entering the Consent Decrees resolving this litigation. The entry of the Consent Decrees triggered the parties’ obligations 
to make the payments required by the settlement agreement within thirty days. Chesapeake received from other parties, 
net settlement payments of $1.15 million. These proceeds will be passed on to the Company’s firm customers, in 
accordance with the environmental rate rider. Under the Consent Decrees, Chesapeake received a release from liability 
and covenant not to sue from the EPA and the State of Delaware. This relieves Chesapeake from liability for future 
remediation at the site, unless previously unknown conditions are discovered at the site, or information previously 
unknown to the EPA is received that indicates the remedial action related to the former manufactured gas plant is not 
sufficiently protective. These contingencies are standard, and are required by the United States in all liability settlements. 

At December 3 1, 2003, the Company had accrued $10,000 for costs associated with the Dover Gas Light site and had 
recorded an associated regulatory asset for the same amount. Through December 3 1, 2003, the Company has incurred 
approximately $9.6 million in costs relating to environmental testing and remedial action studies at the site. 
Approximately $9.4 million has been recovered through December 2003 from other parties or through rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 
In cooperation with the MDE, the Company completed an assessment of the Salisbury manufactured gas plant site, which 
determined that there was localized ground-water contamination, During I 996, the Company completed construction and 
began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been reporting the reinediation 
and monitoring results to the MDE on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 2002, the MDE granted permission to 
permanently decommission the air-spargingisoil-vapor extraction system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site well 
monitoring, except for one well that is being maintained for continued product monitoring and recovery. In November 
2002, a letter was submitted to the MDE requesting No Further Action (‘NFA”). In December 2002, the MDE 
recommended that the Company submit work plans to MDE and place deed restrictions on the property as conditions 
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prior to receiving an NFA. Once these items are completed, it is expected that MDE will issue an NFA. The Company 
has completed the MDE recoininended work plans and has executed the deed restrictions. During the third quarter of 
2003 the Company subinitted a revised request for the NFA. The MDE has not yet responded to the request. 

The Company has adjusted the liability with respect to the Salisbury Town Gas Light site to $8,000 at December 31, 
2003. This amount is based on the estimated costs to perform limited product monitoring and recovery efforts and fulfill 
ongoing reporting requirements. A corresponding regulatory asset has been recorded, reflecting the Company’s belief 
that costs incurred will be recoverable in base rates. 

Through December 3 1, 2003, the Company has incurred approxiinately $2.9 inillion for reinedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 inillion has been 
recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. The Company expects to recover the remaining costs through rates and 
has established a regulatory asset for those costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
Chesapeake has been working with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) in assessing a coal gas 
site in Winter Haven, Florida. In May 1996, the Company filed an Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction Pilot Study 
Work Plan for the Winter Haven site with the FDEP. The Work Plan described the Company’s proposal to undertake an 
Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction (“ASISVE”) pilot study to evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP, the 
Company filed a modified AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan, the description of the scope of work to complete the site 
assessment activities and a report describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In December 1998, the 
FDEP approved the ASISVE Pilot Study Work Plan, which the Company coinpleted during the third quarter of 1999. In 
February 200 1, the Company filed a reinedial action plan (“RAP”) with the FDEP to address the contamination of the 
subsurface soil and ground-water in a portion of the site. The FDEP approved the RAP on May 4,2001. 

Construction of the AS/SVE system was completed in  the fourth quarter of 2002 and the system is now fully operational. 

The Company has accrued a liability of $544,000 as of December 3 1,2003 for the Florida site. Through December 3 1, 
2003, the Company has incurred approximately $1.3 inillion of environiiiental costs associated with the Florida site. At 
December 3 1,2003 the Company had collected through rates $179,000 in excess of costs incurred. A regulatory asset of 
approximately $335,000, representing the uncollected portion of the estimated clean-up costs, has also been recorded. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

None 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SECURITY HOLDER MATTERS 

(a) Common Stock Price Ranges, Common Stock Dividends and Shareholder Information: 
The Company’s Coiiiiiion Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CPK.” The high, low and 
closing prices of Chesapeake’s Coninion Stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter during the 
years 2003 and 2002 were as follows: 

Dividends 
Declared 

Quarter Ended High Low Close Per Share 
2003 

March 3 1 .......................................... $19.8400 .................... $18.4000 .................... $18.8000 ...................... $0.2750 
June 30 ............................................... 23.8400 ...................... 18.4500 ...................... 22.6000 ........................ 0.2750 
September 30 ..................................... 24.4500 ...................... 20.4900 ...................... 22.9200 ........................ 0.2750 
December 3 1 ...................................... 26.7000 ...................... 23.0200 ...................... 26.0500 ........................ 0.2750 

March 3 1 .......................................... S 19.8500 .................... $1 8.8000 .................... $1 9.2000 ...................... $0.2750 
lune 30 ............................................... 21 ,9900 ...................... 1 8.7500 ...................... 19.01 00 ........................ 0.2750 
Septeiiiber 30 ..................................... 19.8500 ...................... 17.3900 ...................... 18.8600 ........... 
December 3 1 ...................................... 19.1 I00 ........ 

2002 

........ 16.j000 ...................... 18.3000 ........... 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Company contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions state that the 
Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization and the times interest earned ratio must be at 
least 2.5. Additionally, under the terms of the Company’s Note Agreement for the 6.64 percent Senior Notes, the 
Company cannot, until the retirement of the Senior Note, pay any dividends after October 3 I ,  2002 which exceed the sum 
of $10 million plus consolidated net income recognized after January I ,  2003. As of December 3 I ,  2003, the amount 
available for future dividends under this covenant is $ 1  1.6 million. 

At December 3 1, 2003, there a w e  approximately 2.069 shareholders of record of the Coninion Stock. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 I" 2001 (" 

Operating (in thousands of dollars)'" 
Revenues 

Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Prop an e 
Advanced infonnations systems 

$I 10.237 $93.588 $ 107-4 I8 
39.760 28. I24 35,142 
12.578 12,764 14,104 

Other and eliminations (287) (333) (113) 
Total revenues 5 162.298 $134.143 $ 1  57.1 5 1 

Operating income 
Natural gas distribution and traiismission $16.653 $11.973 $14,405 

Propane 3.875 1,052 913 

Advanced infonnations systeins 692 343 517 

Other and eliininations 359 237 386 
Total operating incoiiie $2 1.579 s 16,605 5 16,22 1 

$ 10.079 $7.535 $7,34 I Net iiicoiiie from continu~ng operations 

,Assets ( in  thousands of dollars) 
Gross property. plant and equipmen1 S233,9 I9 $279,128 $21 6,903 

Net property. plant and equipinent "' 5 167.872 S 166.846 $ 1  61.014 

lotal  assets "' $221,165 $223,721 $222.229 

Capital expenditures ''I $ 1 1,822 $13,836 $26.293 

Capitalization (in thousands of dollars) 
Stockliolders' cquty $72.939 $67,350 $67.5 17 

$69,4 16 $73.408 $48.409 Long-term debt. net of cunent maturities 
Total capital $142.355 S 140,758 $ I  15.926 

Curreiic portion of long-term debt $3.665 $3.938 S2.686 
Short-tenii debt S3.5 I 5  $ I0.900 $42,100 
Total cnpitalizat~on and short-term financing $149.535 5155.596 $160,712 

" 'The years 2002. 2001, 7000 and 1999 have been restated in order to reflect the Company's Delaware and Maryland natural gas 

"' 7lie y a r s  1998. 1997, 1996. I995 and 1994 have not been restated to reflect the "accrual" revenue recognition method due to the 

''I These amounts exclude the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued operations. 

divisions on the "accrual" rather tliaii the "as billed" revenue recognition method. 

iminateriality of the impact on the Company's financial results. 

The years 2003, 2002 and 2001 reflect the results of adopting SFAS 143 141 

'" 1994 has not been restated to include the business combinations with Tri-County Gas Company. Inc. .  

Tolaii Water Service and Xeron, Inc. 
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1994 ( 2 )  (5’ 2000 (‘) 1999 1 ’ )  1998 (2’ 1997 1996 (2) 1995 (” 

$101,138 $75.637 868.770 $SS. lOB 590,044 579.1 10 $71,781 
-3 1,780 15. I99 23.377 2X 614 36.727 26.806 20.770 
12.390 13.53 I 10.331 7,786 7.230 8,862 8.31 1 

(131 )  (14) (15) ( 182) (243) (1.661) (2.290) 
$145.1 77 $ I  14,353 5 102,463 $124,326 $133.758 $113.117 $98,572 

$12,798 $10,388 58,820 89,240 $9.627 $10,812 $7.820 
2.135 2 622 965 1.137 2,668 2,128 2.288 

336 1,470 1.316 I .046 1,056 I .06 I 1 05 
816 495 485 558 5 60 134) 1456) 

$16.085 9; 14,975 $ I 1,586 $ I  1,981 $13.91 I $13.967 $9.757 

$7,665 $8,372 $5229  $5.812 $7.764 57,681 $4 460 

$ 1  92.925 $172,068 5 152.99 I $114.251 $134001 $110,746 $I 10,023 

E13 1,466 $I 17 663 8104.266 599 879 594,014 $85,055 $75,313 

$2 1 1.664 $, 166,958 SI45 029 $145 719 $155.786 $130,998 $108 271 

$22,057 $21,365 81 2,5 16 5 13,471 $15.399 $12.887 $10.653 

$64.669 560.714 S56.356 $53.656 S50.700 $45.587 $37,063 
$50.921 $33.777 $37.597 $38.226 $28.984 $3 I .619 S24.329 

$I 15,590 $94.491 $93.953 $91,882 $79,684 $77,206 $6 1.392 

S2,665 S2.665 $520 $1.051 $3.526 S I  .787 $1.348 
$25 400 $23.000 s I I .600 $7 600 $12.735 $5.400 %8.000 

$113.655 $120. I56 S 106,073 $100.533 $95.945 $84.393 $70.740 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

For the  Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 (') 2001 ( ' I  

Common Stock Data and Ratios 
Basic eai-nings per sliai-e froin continuing operations ("  SI.80 $1.37 $1.37 

Return on average equity firon? continuing opei-ations "' 14.4% I 1.2% 1 I.lY0 

Coimnon equity / total capital 
Common equity 1 total capital and short-term financing 

5 1 2% 47.8% 58.2% 
48.8% 43.3% 4 2.0% 

Book \ d u e  per share 512 89 $12.16 $12.45 

Market price: 
High 
LOW 

Close 

$16 700 $21 990 $19 900 
S I 8  400 S I 6  500 SI7 375 
$26 050 $18 300 $19 800 

Average number of shares outstanding 
Shares outstanding end of year 
Registered common shareholders 

Cash dixridends declared per sliare 
Dividend yield (annualized) 
Payout ratio fioiii contiiiuing operations "' 

5,610,592 5,389,424 5.367.433 
5,660.594 5,537,710 5,424.962 

2.069 2.130 2,171 

$1.10 S I  10 $1.10 
4.2Yo 6 0% 5.6% 

6 1 . I "0 80.3% 80.3% 

Additional Data 
Customers 

Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Propane distribution 

17.649 45. I33 42,741 
34.894 34.566 35.530 

Volunies 
Natui-al gas deliveries (in MMCF) 27,821 27,935 27,264 
Propane distribution (in thousands of gallons) 25.147 21.185 23.080 

Heating degree-days (Delmarva Peninsula) 4.7 15 4.161 4,368 

Propane bulk storase capacity (111 thousands of gallons) 2.195 2.151 1.958 

Total employees ''I 439 455 458 

' I )  The years 2002, 2001. 2000 and 1999 have been restated iii order to reflect tlie Company's Delaware and Maryland natural gas 
divisions on the "accrual" rather than the "as billed" revenue recognition method. 

"' The years 1998, 1997, 1996. I995 and 1994 have not been restated to reflect the "accrual" revenue recognition inethod due to the 

'" These amounts excludc the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued operations. 

( 4 )  I994 has not been restated to include tlie business combinations with Tri-County Gas Coiiipany. Inc.. 

immateriality of the impact oii the Company's financial results. 

Tolan Water Service and Neron, Inc. 
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1994 (2) (4) 2000 (’) 1999 (” 1998 1997 1996 (’I 1995 (’I 

$1.46 $1.63 $1.05 $1.17 $1.58 $1.59 

12.2% 14.3% 9.7% 11.3% 16.2% 18.6% 

55.9% 
45.0% 

$12.21 

64.3% 
50.5% 

$1 1.71 

60.0% 
53.1% 

$11.06 

58.4% 
53.4% 

$ 10.72 

63.6% 
52.8% 

$10.26 

59.0% 
54.0% 

$9.38 

$1.23 

12.4% 

60.4% 
52.4% 

$10.15 

$18.875 $19.813 $20.500 $2 I .750 $ 1  8.000 $15.500 $15.250 
$16.250 $14.875 $16.500 $16.250 $ I  5.125 $12.250 $12.375 
$ 1  8.625 $ 18.375 $ I  8.3 I3 $20.500 $16.875 $14.625 $12.750 

4.836,430 3,628,056 5,249,439 5,144,449 5,060,328 4,972,086 4,912, I36 
5,297,443 5,186,546 5,093.788 5,004,078 4,939,5 15 4,860.588 3,653,182 

2,166 2,212 2,271 2,178 2,2 13 2,098 1,72 1 

$1.07 $1.03 $ I  .00 $0.97 $0.93 $0.90 $0.88 

5.8% 5.7% 5.5% 4.7% 5.5% 6.2% 6.9% 

73.3% 63.2% 95.2% 82.9% 58.9% 56.6% 71.5% 

40,854 39,029 37,128 35,797 34,7 I3 33,530 32,346 
35,563 35,267 34,l 13 33, I23 31,961 31,l 15 22.1 80 

30,830 27,383 2 1.400 23,297 24,835 29,260 22.728 
28,469 27,788 25,979 26,682 29,975 26,184 18,395 

4,730 4,082 3,704 4,430 4,717 4,594 4,398 

1,928 

47 I 

1.926 

466 

1.890 

43 I 

1.866 

397 

1,860 

338 

1,818 

335 

1,230 

3 20 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Business Description 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake” or “the Company“) is a diversified utility company engaged in 
natural gas distribution and transmission, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced infonnation 
services and other related businesses. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Chesapeake’s capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally attributable 
to the construction prograin and the retirement of outstanding debt. The Company relies on cash generated from 
operations and short-term borrowing to meet normal working capital requirements and temporarily to finance capital 
expenditures. During 2003, net cash provided by operating activities was $22.0 million, cash used by investing 
activities was $5.9 million and cash used by financing activities was $1 5.5 million. Cash provided by operating 
activities declined by $2.4 million from 2002 to 2003, as higher income in 2003 was niore than offset by changes in 
working capital itenis. Cash provided by operating activities increased by $8.9 million from 2001 to 2002, as 
increases in current liabilities and non-cash charges related to goodwill impairment more than offset a decline in 
income. 

The Company completed a private placement of S30.0 niillion of long-tern1 debt on October 3 I ,  2002. The debt has a 
fixed interest rate of 6.64 percent and is due October 3 I ,  2017. The funds were used to repay short-ten11 borrowing. 

As of December 3 1, 2003, the Board of Directors has authorized the Company to borrow up to $35.0 inillion of 
short-term debt fioni various banks and trust companies. On December 3 I ,  2003, Chesapeake had five unsecured 
bank lines of credit with three financial institutions, totaling $65.0 million, for short-tern1 cash needs to meet 
seasonal working capital requirements and temporarily to fund portions of its capital expenditures. Two of the bank 
lines, totaling $15.0 million, are committed. The other three lincs are subject to the banks’ availability of funds. Prior 
to the issuance of the $30.0 inillion long-term debt on October 3 1,2002, the Board had authorized the Company to 
borrow up to $55.0 million of short-term debt. The outstanding balances of short-term borrowing at December 3 I ,  
2003 and 2002 were $3.5 million and $10.9 million, respectively. In 2003 and 2002, Chesapeake used funds 
provided by operations to fund net investing and financing activities. 

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, net cash used for investing activities totaled approximately $5.9, $14.1 and $29.2 
million, respectively. Cash used by investing activities was down in 2003 compared to 2002, due to the combination 
of reduced capital expenditures and cash provided by the sales of the water businesses and recoveries of 
environmental costs. 2003 additions to property, plant and equipment totaled $1 1.8 million and were primarily for 
natural gas distribution ($7.5 million), propane distribution ($2.0 niillIon) and natural gas transmission ($1.8 
niillion). The property, plant and equipment expenditures for 2002 were primarily for natural gas distribution ($8.1 
million) and natural gas transmission ($4.0 million). In both 2003 and 2002, natural gas distribution utilized funds to 
improve facilities and expand facilities to serve new customers. Natural gas transmission spending related primarily 
to expanding its system. Capital expenditures in 200 1 were high primarily as a result of Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
expenditures. totaling $16.0 million, related to a system expansion. Natural gas distribution also spent approximately 
$7.2 inillion in 2001 for expansion of facilities to serve new customers and for improvements of facilities. The 
increase in intangibles shown on the cash flow statement was related to acquisitions of water companies. 

Chesapeake has budgeted S10.9 million for capital expenditures during 2004. This amount includes S15.8 million for 
natural gas distribution and transmission, S4.1 inillion for propane distribution and marketing, $285,000 for 
advanced information services and $6 14,000 for other operations. The natural gas distribution and transmission 
expenditures are foi- expansion and improvement of facilities. The propane expenditures are to support customer 
growth and for the replacement of equipment. The advanced information services expenditures are for computer 
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hardware, software and related equipment. The other category includes general plant, computer software and 
hardware. Financing for the 2004 capital expenditure program is expected to be provided from short-term borrowing 
and cash provided by operating activities. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous review and 
modification. Actual capital requirements may vaiy from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including 
acquisition opportunities. changing economic conditions, customer growth in existing areas? regulation, new growth 
opportunities and availability of capital. 

Chesapeake expects to incur approxiniately S 170,000 in 2004 and $250,000 in 2005 for en\riron~nental-related 
expenditures. Additional expenditures may be required in future years (see Note N to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). Management does not expect financing of future environiiiental-related expenditures to have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position or capital resources of the Company. 

Capital Structure 

As of December 3 1, 2003, comnion equity represented 5 1.2 percent of total capitalization, compared to 47.8 percent 
in 2002. Including short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt, the equity component of the 
Company’s capitalization would have been 48.8 percent and 43.3 percent, respectively. Chesapeake remains 
committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility 
needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate and timely rate relief for 
the Coniliany’s regulated operations, is intended to ensure that Chesapeake will be able to attract capital from 
outside sources at a reasonable cost. The Company believes that the achievement of these objectives will provide 
benefits to customers and creditors, as well as to the Company’s investors. 

Financing Activities 

On October 3 1, 2002, Chesapeake completed a prkate placement of $30.0 million of 6.64 percent Senior Notes due 
October 3 1, 2017. The Company used the proceeds to repay short-term debt. 

In May 200 1, Chesapeake issued a note payable of $300,000 at 8.5 percent, due April 6, 2006, in conjunction with a 
real estate purchase. This note was repaid in full on January 6, 2003. 

Chesapeake issued co~nnion stock in  connection with its Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 
in the amounts of 5 1,125 shares in 2003,49.782 shares in 2002 and 43,101 shares in 2001. Chesapeake also issued 
shares of common stock totaling 43,245, 52,740 and 54.921 in 2003,2002 and 2001, respectively, for matching 
contributions for the Retirement Savings Plan. 

Chesapeake repaid approximately $4.3 million and $3.8 million of long-term debt in 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Total Contractual Obligations I $34,699,030 

Contractual Obligations 

U'e have the following contractual obligations and other comniercial commitments as  of December 3 1, 2003: 

$27,039,098 $30,895,976 $93,217,273 

Contractual Obligations 

Long-term debt " )  

Operating leases (') 

Purchase obligations "' 
Transiniss ion capaci ty  

S to rage  -Natural  Gas 
Commodi t ies  

Forward contracts ~ Propane ''I 
Unfunded benefits 
Funded benefits 

Payments Due by Period 

I Less than 
1 year 

$3.665.09 I 

870.914 

8,501.240 
1,562.022 

13,259,7 17 

6.61 8.046 

179,000 

43.000 

1.223.288 387.242 

12.075.525 
2.752.481 

322,000 

86,000 

More than 
5 years 

$35,752,636 

199.200 

36,741,851 
8,395,586 

1.965.000 

I ,  160.000 

Total 

$72,508.637 

2.680,644 

72.036.042 
15,535,291 
I3,259,7 17 

6,618,046 

2,838,000 

1.375.000 

$186.85 1.377 

'I' Principal paynicnts on long-~cmi dcht. scc Scc Notc 1, "Long-Tct-m Dcbt," i n  IIic Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statcnicnts for 

additional discussion of this itcni. 
Scc Notc I<. "Lcasc Obligations," i n  tiic Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statcnicnts for additional discusion of this i tem 

'" Scc Notc 0, "Otlicr Commitments and Contingcncics," in the Notcs to tlic Consolidatcd Financial Statements for fiirtlicr infonnation 

Tlic Coiiipany lias also cntcrcd into fotward sale contracts of S7.356.527. scc "Market Risk" of the Managctncnt Discussion and 

A ti a1 ?si s foi- fii rtli cr i n  Eo nna ti on. 
'" The Company lias rcccrrdcd long-term liahilitics of S2.8 million at Dcccinbcr 3 I .  2003 for unfundcd ]post-rctircincnl bcncfit plans. Thc 

sciicdulc of casli outflows above IS bascd on cxpcckd paytncnts to ctirrcnt rctirccs and assumcs a rctii-cincnt age of 65 for currciitly 

active cniployccs. Tlicrc arc maiiy factors that would causc acttial lpayinciits to differ from thcsc ainoitnts. including carly rctircincnt. 

futurc licalth care costs that  differ froin past cxpcricncc and  ratcs of rcturn implicit in calc~ilations. 
''" The Company has I-ccordcd long-term liabilities of SI .3 iniillion ;it Dcccmbci- 3 I. 2003 for fundcd bcncfits. Of this total, S3S7.000 has 

bccn fiiiidcd using a Robhi Tixist and an asset i n  the  same aniotiiit is rccotdcd in tlic Invcst~ncnts caption on llic Balaiicc Slicct. The 

other balancc, S988,OOO rcprcscnts a liability for a dcfincd bcncfit petision plan. Tlic plan wids closcd to ncw participants on January 1 ,  

1999 and participants t i l  t he  p l a i i  on that datc wcrc givc tlic option to Icavc tlic plan. SCC Notc L. "Employcc Bcncfit Plans," in tlic Notcs 

to tlic Consolidated Financial Stntcincnts for ftitthcr infonnation o r  Ilic p l i l ~ ~ .  Sincc tlic plan inodification, no additional fund~ng has bccn 

rcqtiii-cd froiii the Company and nonc is cxpcctcd for the ncxt five years. bascd on factors in effect at Dccctnbcr 3 I ,  2003. Howcvcr, 

this is subjcct to cliangc bascd on the actual rctum carncd by t he  ~plati assets and othcr actuarial assuinptions. sucli as tllc discount ratc, 

long-(cnn expected late of rcttii-n on plan assets and cxpcctcd pay ratc incrcascs. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary. The 
corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane purchases by the subsidiary, in the case of the subsidiary's 
default. The guarantees at December 31, 2003, totaled $4.5 million and expire on various dates in 2004. 

The Company has issued a letter of credit to its main insurance company for $694,000, which expires June 1,  2004. 
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Results  of Operations 
Net income from continuing operations for 2003 was $10.1 million compared to restated net income of $7.5 inillion 
for 2002 and $7.3 inillion for 200 1. Net income for 2003 was $9.3 million or $1.66 per share compared to restated 
net income of $3.7 million and $6.7 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and restated earnings per share of $0.68 
and $1.25 in 2002 and 200 1 ,  respectively. During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and, 
at December 3 1, 2003, had sold the assets of six of seven dealerships. The results of water services have been 
reclassified to discontinued operations. Discontinued operations experienced losses of $0.14, $0.34 and $0.12 per 
share for 2003, 2002 and 200 1 ,  respectively. Chesapeake adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” in 2002. This resulted in a non-cash charge of $0.35 per share for 
goodwill impairment recorded as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. 

The Company has restated its 2002 and 2001 financial statements in order to reflect the results of its Delaware and 
Maryland natural gas divisions on the “accrual” rather than the “as billed” revenue recognition method. This change 
had an insignificant effect on the Company’s annual results for the last three years. Under the “as billed” method, 
revenues from customer sales are not recognized until the meter is read and the amount of gas actually used is billed. 
Under the “accrual” method, at the end of each period, the amount of gas used is estimated and is recognized as 
revenue. The Company’s Florida division has historically used the “accrual” method in accordance with Florida 
Public Service Coinmission (“PSC”) requirements. The Delaware and Maryland divisions have historically used the 
“as billed” method to recognize revenues consistent with the rate-setting processes in those states. In order to 
consistently apply the “accrual” method, the Company met separately with the staffs of the Delaware and Maryland 
Public Service Commissions to determine the regulatory inipact of the change. Having determined that there is little 
to no impact, the Company has conformed the revenue recognition method used in its Delaware and Maryland 
divisions to the method used by its Florida division. In order to provide comparable information, the Company has 
restated its 2002 and 2001 financial statements to reflect the “accrual” revenue recognition method. As a result of the 
restatement, retained earnings of the Company as of January 1, 2001 has increased by $697,000 compared to 
previously reported amounts. The change had no impact on basic earnings per share. There is no impact on fully 
diluted earnings per share in 2002 and a $0.01 decrease in 2001. See Note A to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further information on this change. 

Net lncome & Basic Earnings Per Share Summary 

2002 Increase 2002 2001 Increase 
For the Years Ended December 31’ Restated (decrease) Restated Restated (decrease) 
Net Income * 

Continuing operations 
Discontinued opei-ations 

$10,080 $7,535 $2,545 $7,535 $7,341 $194 
(788) (1,898) 1,110 (1,898) (649) (1,249) 

Change in accounting principle (1,916) 1,916 (1,916) ( 1 9  16) 
Total Net lncoine $9,292 $3,72 1 $5,571 $3,721 $6,692 ($2,971) 

Earnings Per Share 
Continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 

$1.80 
(0.14) 

$1.37 
(0.34) 

$0.43 
0.20 

$1.37 
(0.34) 

$1.37 
(0.12) 

$0.00 
(0.22) 

Change in accounting principle (0.35) 0.35 (0.35) (0.35) 
Total Eainings Per Share $1.66 $0.68 $0.98 $0.68 $1.25 ($0.57) 

* Dollars in ti7ousands 

Improvement in Chesapeake’s overall results is primarily related to strong customer growth and colder weather, 
which led to increased contributions from the Company’s Delinarva natural gas and propane distribution operations. 
The Delniarva natural gas operations experienced an increase of 6.4 percent in residential customers. Weather, 
measured in heating degree-days, was 13 percent colder than 2002. The Florida natural gas operations, propane 
wholesale marketing operation and the advanced information services segment also improved operating income 
compared to 2002. However, decreases in operating income for the natural gas transmission operation and the 
Florida propane distribution operation partially offset those improvements. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Operating Income Summary (in thousands) 

2002 Increase 2002 2001 Increase 
For the Years Ended December 317 Restated (decrease) Restated Restated (decrease) 
Business Segment: 

Natural gas distribution Kr trans~nission $16,653 $14.973 $1.680 $14.973 $34,405 $568 
Propane 3,875 1,052 2,823 1.052 913 I39 
Advanced information seln’ices 692 343 349 343 517 ( 174) 
Othei gL eliminations 359 237 122 237 386 ( 1  49) 

Total Operating Income $21,579 $36,605 $4,974 $16,605 $16.22 I $384 

During 2002, operating income increased over 200 1 levels for the natural gas and propane segments, despite 
teiiipcratures in the Delmarva region that were 5 percent warmer than both the IO-year average and 200 1. Those 
increases were partially offset by declines in the advanced information services and other segments. The advanced 
information services segment was adversely affected by a slowdown in the information technology services sector 

The following discussions of segment results include use of the term “gross margin.” Gross margin 
is determined by deducting the cost of sales froin operating revenue. Cost of sales includes the 
purchased gas cost for natural gas and propane and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue- 
producing activities for advanced information services. This should not be considered an 
alternative to operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Chesapeake believes that gross margin, although a non- 
GAAP measure, is useful and meaningful to investors because it provides them with valuable 
information that demonstrates the profitability achieved by the Company under its allowed rates 
for regulated operations and under its competitive pricing structure for non-regulated segments, as 
another criteria in making investment decisions. Chesapeake’s nianagement uses gross margin in 
measuring certain performance goals and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin 
information publicly. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission 
The natural gas distribution and transmission segment earned operating income of $16.7 inillion for 2003 compared to 
restated operating income of $15.0 million for the corresponding period last year, an increase of $1.7 million. 

Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission (in thousands) 

2002 Increase 2002 2001 Increase 
For the Years Ended December 31, Restated (decrease) Restated Restated (decrease) 

Revenue S110.247 $93.588 $16,659 $93.588 $107.415 ($13,830) 

2003 

Cost of gas 65,434 52.735 12,699 52.735 70.1 12 (17,377) 
GI-oss Margin 44,813 40.853 3,960 40.853 37.306 3,547 

Operations Kr maintenance 
Depreciation gL aiiioi-tizatioti 

19,954 18,047 1,907 18,047 15.9X0 2,067 
5,188 5,050 138 5,050 4.359 66 1 

Othei taxes 3,018 2.753 235 2,783 2,532 25 I 
Opeiattng expenses 28,160 25.880 2,280 25,880 22,901 2,979 

Total Operating Income $16,653 $14,973 $1,680 $14,973 $14.405 $568 

Revenue and cost of gas increased in 2003 compared to 2002 and decreased in 2002 compared to 2001, due 
primarily to changes in natural gas commodity costs. Commodity cost changes are passed on to the ratepayers 
through a gas cost recovely or purchased gas cost adjustment in all jurisdictions; therefore, they have no impact on 
the Company’s profitability. Revenue and cost of gas were also affected by the unbundling of services that took 
effect in 2001 for all nonresidential customers of the Florida division and in  November 2002 for residcntial 
customers.  As a result, all Florida customcrs havc s v h h c d  from sales service, where they purchased both the 
conmodity and transportation service from the Company, to purchasing transportation service only. 
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Gross margins for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions increased $2.7 inillion in 2003 over 2002. 
Teinperatui-es in 2003 were 13 percent colder than 2002 (554 heating degree-days) and 7 perccnt colder than the 10- 
year average (306 heating degree-days). The Company estimates that, on an annual basis, for each heating degree- 
day variance from the 10-year average, gross margins change by $1,680. An increase in the average number of 
customers also contributed to the increase. Delaware and Maqland experienced an increase of 1,923 in the average 
number of residential customers. or 6.4 percent, in 2003 compared to the same period in 2002. The Company 
estimates that each residential custonier added contributes $360 annually to gross margin and requires an additional 
cost of $100 for operations and maintenance expenses. .4ko contributing to the increased margins were rate 
increases in Delaware that were effective i n  December 2007 and volumetric increases for existing customers. 

Gross margin for the Florida distribution operations increased $1.2 million, due to the implementation of transportation 
services for residential custoiners and customer additions. Residential customer growth reached 4.4 percent in Florida, an 
increase of 434 customers. Agreements with two new industrial customers also helped increase margins. 

Margins for the transmission operation increased by $219,000 in 2003 compared to 2002. An increase in 
interruptible transportation mal-gins and volume added through a system expansion completed in November 2002 
were partially offset by a ]-ate reduction that was effective December 2002. The rate agreement is more fully 
discussed in the section below captioned “Regulatory Matters.” 

The natural gas margin increases were partially offset by higher operating expenses, primarily operations and 
maintenance expenses and other taxes that relate to the increased volumes and earnings and pension and employee 
costs. 

The natural gas distribution and transmission segment increased operating income to S 15.0 million for 2002 
compared to restated operating income of $14.4 million for 200 1,  an increase of $568,000. Restated gross margin 
increased $3.5 million over the same period in 2001 due to increases in the margins for the transmission operation 
and the Delaware and Florida distribution operations. Transmission margins were up due to the completion of a 
major system expansion in November of 200 1. This system expansion increased margins by approximately $2.2 
million per year. Margins in Delaware and Maryland were adversely impacted by temperatures that were 4.7 percent 
warmer (207 heating degree-days) than 2001 and 5.2 percent (232 heating degree-days) wanner than the 10-year 
average. This decline was more than offset by residential customer growth of 1,838, or 6.5 percent, and a rate 
increase in Delaware. The margin increases were partially offset by higher operating expenses, primarily 
administrative and general and depreciation. The increase in depreciation reflects completion of recent capital 
projects that increased the transmission capacity and various expansion projects in Florida. 
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Propane 
The propane segment experienced an increase in operating income of $2.8 million, or 268 percent over 2002. Gross 
margin increased $3.1 million, with an increase of only $230,000 in operating expenses. 

Propane (in thousands) 

Increase 
(decrease) 

2002 
Increase 

2o02 (decrease) 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

Revenue $39,760 $28,124 $ I  1,636 $28,124 $35,742 ($7,618) 
Cost of sales 22,256 13,673 8.583 13,673 21,168 (7,495) 
Gross Margin 17,504 14,45 1 3,053 I4,45 1 14,574 (123) 

Opemtions & inaiiirenaiice 
Depreciation & amortization 

11,290 11,053 237 1 1,053 1 1,459 (406) 
1,506 1,603 (97) 1,603 1,465 138 

Other taxes 833 743 90 743 737 6 
Operating expenses 13,629 13,399 230 13,399 13,661 (262) 

Total Operating Income $3,875 $1,052 $2,823 $1,052 $913 $139 

The increases in revenues and cost of sales in 2003 compared to 2002 were caused both by increases in volumes and 
by increases in the commodity costs of propane. Commodity costs changes are generally passed on to the customer, 
subject to Competitive inarket conditions. The margin increase for the propane segment was due primarily to an 
increase of $2.9 million for the Delmarva distribution operations. Volumes sold in 2003 increased 3.3 million gallons 
or 15 percent. Temperatures in 2003 were 13 percent colder than 2002 (554 heating degree-days) and 7 percent 
colder than the 10-year average (306 heating degree-days). The Company estimates that on an annual basis, for each 
heating degree-day variance from the 1 0-year average, margins change by $1,670. Additionally, the margin per retail 
gallon improved by $0.0374 in 2003 compared to 2002. The margin increase was partially offset by increased 
operating expenses, primarily related to the higher volumes, such as delivery costs, and incentive compensation costs 
associated with higher income. The Florida propane distribution operations experienced an increase in margins of 
$102,000 in 2003; however, the margins included $192,000 related to a non-recurring service project. 

The Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation experienced an increase in margins of $5 1,000 and a 
decrease of $148,000 in operating expenses, leading to an improvement of $199,000 in operating income. Wholesale 
price volatility created trading opportunities during some portions of the year; however, these were partially offset 
by reduced trading activities particularly during the third quarter. Cost savings, primarily reduced taxes on propane 
inventory, have also helped to improve operating income for the period. 

Operating income for the propane segment increased from $9 13,000 in 200 1 to $1.1 million in 2002. Reductions in 
operating expenses of $262,000 more than offset a decrease of $123,000 in gross margin. Propane revenues and 
costs were lower by $7.6 million and $7.5 million, respectively, due to a drop in propane commodity prices and 
volume decreases. Both increases and decreases in commodity costs, are generally passed on to the distribution 
customers subject to competitive market conditions. 

Propane wholesale marketing margins declined by $1.1 million in 2002 compared to 200 1 and were partially offset 
by a reduction of $258,000 in operating expenses. The 2001 results reflected increased opportunities due to the 
extreme price volatility in the propane wholesale market. The same level of price fluctuations was not experienced in 
2002. Additionally, there was a decrease in the number of suitable trading partners due to a decision by some 
companies to exit energy trading activities and the decreased credit-worthiness of other parties. The 2002 results 
reflected increased margins of approximately $650,000 that resulted from a bankrupt vendor defaulting on supply 
contracts during the first quarter of 2002. The supply was replaced by purchasing from different vendors at a lower 
cost than the original contract. 

The Delniarva distribution operations experienced an increase of $624,000 in gross margin in 2002. Although 
volumes sold were down 8 percent, higher margins per gallon and stable wholesale propane prices resulted in 
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increased margin dollars. Volumes were negatively impacted by teiiiperatures that were 4.7 percent wanner than 
200 1 (207 heating degree-days) and 5.2 percent wanner than the 10-year average (232 heating degree-days), 
increased competition and lower volume sales to the poultry industry. Operating expenses decreased by $249,000 
resulting froin cost containment efforts that began in April 200 1 and remain in effect. These efforts have reduced 
customer accounting, sales and marketing costs. Other costs, such as delivery expenses, decreased due to the lower 
volumes sold. The operating income of the Florida propane operation increased by $195,000 in 2002. Margins 
increased $441,000, but were partially offset by an increase of $246,000 in operating expenses. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology 
related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. The advanced infonnation 
services business earned operating income of $692,000 in 2003 compared to $343,000 in 2002. 

Advanced Information Services (in thousands) 

Increase 
2o01 (decrease) 

2002 
Increase 

2o02 (decrease) For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

$12,578 $12,764 ($186) $12,764 $14,104 ($1,340) Revenue 
Cost of sales 7,018 6,700 318 6,700 7,385 (685) 
Gross Margin 5,560 6,064 (504) 6,064 6,719 (655)  

Operations & maintenance 4,196 4,940 (744) 4,940 5,361 (42 1) 
Depreciation & amortization 191 208 (17) 208 256 (48) 
Other taxes 481 573 (92) 573 585 (12) 
Operating expenses 4,868 5,72 1 (853) 5,721 6,202 (48 1 ) 

Total Operating income $692 $343 $349 $343 $517 ($174) 

Revenues continued to decline in 2003; however, at a rate that was less than 2002. The revenue decline was more 
than offset by reduced operating costs, priinarily payroll and benefits. A non-recurring sale of software contributed 
$302,000 to operating income in 2003. 

During 2002, this segment was adversely affected by the nation's economic slowdown as discretionary consulting 
projects were postponed or cancelled. Lower revenues in 2002 were partially offset by reductions in the cost of sales 
and in operating expenses, principally sales and marketing. 
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Other Operations and Eliminations 
The other operations segment consists of subsidiai-ies that own real estate leased to other Chesapeake subsidiaries 
Eliminations are entries required to eliminate activities between business segments from the consolidated results. 

Other Operations & Eliminations (in thousands) 

Increase 
2o01 (decrease) 

2002 
Increase 

2o02 (decrease) For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

Revenue $702 $717 ($15,  $717 $783 (566) 
Cost of salcs 
GI-oss Margin 702 717 ( 1  5 )  717 7x3 (66) 

Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation 6i ilino~I~z;~tIon 

80 81 (4) 81 107 ( 2 3 )  
238 133  5 233 233 

Other taxes 55 57 ( 2 )  57 57 
Operaling expenses 373 374 ( 1 )  374 397 (13 )  

Operatins Incoine - Other 
OpeiatIng Iiiconie - Eliininatioiis 

$329 $343 ($14) $343 $386 ($43) 
$30 (SIO6) 5136 ($106) $0 ( S  106) 

Total Operating Income $359 $237 $122 $237 $386 (S 149) 

Discontinued Operations 

In 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold during 
2003. A net gain of S 12,000, after-tax, was recorded in 2003 for the sale of the assets. The Company expects to 
dispose of the remaining operation of during 2004. Accordingly, the assets were recorded at their fair value. The 
results of the water companies‘ operations for all periods presented in the consolidated incoiiie stateinelits have been 
reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax. Losses froin discontinued operations were $800.000, 
$1.9 million and $649,000 for 2003, 2002 and 200 I, respectively. The 2002 loss included a non-cash impainnent 
charge of $973,000 (after-tax) related to goodwill. 

Income Taxes 

Operating incoiue taxes increased in 2003 compared to 2002, due to increased income. The effective federal income 
tax rate for both years was 34 percent. Operating income taxes were lower in 2002 compared to 2001 ~ due to the 
decrease in operating income and a lowering of the effective federal income tax rate from 35 percent to 34 percent in 
2002. During both 2003 and 2002, the Coiiipany benefited from a change in the tax law that allows tax deductions 
for dividends paid on Coinpany stock held in Eiiiployee Stock Ownership Plans (“ESOP”). 

Other income 

Other income \vas $238.000, $495,000 and $694,000 for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. This includes 
interest income, earned primarily on regulatory assets, and gains froiii the sale of plant assets. 

Interest Expense 

In 2002, approximately S 103,000 of interest expense was associated with discontinued operations and has therefore 
been reclassified on the income statement. Total interest expense for 2003 increased approximately $648,000, or 13 
percent, over 2002. The increase reflects the increase in the average long-term debt balance caused by the placeincnt 
of $30.0 million completed in October 2002. The average long-term debt balance during 2003 was 575.4 million 
with an average interest rate of 7.24 percent, coiiipared to S53.6 million with an average interest rate of 7.52 percent 
in 2002. The increase in long-term debt vias partially offset by a reduction in the average short-term borrowing 
balance, which decreased from $29.4 inillion in 2002 to $3.5 inillion in 2003. The average interest rate for short-term 
borrowing increased slightly from 2.35 percent for 2002 to 2.40 percent for 2003. 

In the years 2002 and 200 1, interest expense associated with discontinued operations was approximately $103,000 
and $269,000, respectively. Those amounts have been reclassified to discontinued operations on the income 
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statement. Total interest expense for 2002 decreased approximately S222.000, or 4 percent, over the same period in 
2001. The decrease was due primarily to a reduction in the average interest rate for short-term borrowing from 4.43 
percent on an average balance of $26.9 inillion in 2001 to 2.35 percent on an average balance of $29.4 million for 
the same period in 2002. Interest on long-term debt partially offset the short-tenn savings, due to an increase in the 
average balance outstanding from $52.4 million in 200 1 to $54.6 million in 2002. However, the average long-tern1 
interest rate declined from 7.64 pel-cent to 7.52 percent, offsetting a portion of the increase related to higher 
balances. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Chesapeake’s reported financial condition and results of operations are affected by the accounting methods, 
assumptions and estiinates that are used in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements. However, because 
most of Chesapeake’s businesses are regulated, the accounting methods used by Chesapeake must comply with the 
requirements of the regulatory bodies; therefore, the choices available are, in inany cases, limited by these regulatory 
requirements. Management believes that the following policies require significant estimates or other judgments of 
matters that are inherently uncertain. These policies have been discussed with the Audit Committee of Chesapeake. 

Requlatory Assets and Liabilities 
Chesapeake records certain assets and liabilities in  accordance with SFAS No, 71 “Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation.” Costs are deferred when there is a probable expectation that they will be recovered in 
future revenues as a result of the regulatory process. At December 3 1, 2003, Chesapeake had recorded regulatory 
assets of $3.1 million, including $66 1,000 for underrecovered purchased gas costs and $7 17,000 for environmental 
costs. The Company has recorded regulatory liabilities for accrued asset removal cost and self-insurance of S 13.5 
inillion and $1.3 million, respectively. at December 3 1 ,  2003. If the Company were required to terminate application 
of SFAS No. 7 I ,  it would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as a charge to earnings, net of 
applicable income taxes. Such a charge could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. 

Goodwill Impairment 
In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, Chesapeake no longer amortizes 
goodwill. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment. The initial test was performed upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 
on January I ,  2002> and again at the end of 2002 and 2003. These tests were based on subjective measurements, 
including discounted cash flows of expected future operating results and market valuations of similar businesses. 
Those tests indicated that the goodwill associated with the water business was impaired and charges totaling $4.7 
million (pre-tax) were recorded in 2002. At December 3 1, 2003, no goodwill remained related to the water 
companies. Goodwill is tested annually and when events change. 

Valuation of Environmental Assets and Liabilities 
As more fully described in Note N to the Financial Statements, Chesapeake has completed its responsibilities related 
to one environmental site and is currently participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of three other 
former gas manufacturing plant sites. Amounts have been recorded as environmental liabilities and associated 
environmental regulatory assets based on estimates of future costs provided by independent consultants. There is 
uncertainty in these amounts because the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or state authority may not have 
selected the final remediation methods. Additionally. there is uncertainty due to the outcome of legal remedies 
sought from other potentially responsible parties. At December 3 I ,  2003, Chesapeake had recorded environmental 
regulatory assets of S7 17,000 and a liability for environmental costs of S562,OOO. 

Propane Wholesale Marketinq Contracts 
Chesapeake’s propane wholesale marketing operation enters into foi-ward and futures contracts that are considered 
derivati\res under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” In accordance 
with the pronouncement, open positions are marked to market prices at the end of each reporting period and 
unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the Consolidated statement of Income. The contracts all mature within one 
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year, and are almost exclusi\,ely for propane conunodities with delivery points of hilt. Belvieu, Texas and 
Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Management estimates the market valuation based on reference to exchange-traded futures 
prices, historical differentials and actual trading activity at the end of the reporting period. At December 3 1 ,  2003 
and 2002, these contracts had net unrealized gains of $172,000 and $630,000, respectively. 

Operafinq Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved by the various 
public service commissions. The natural gas transinission operation revenues are based on rates approved by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). Customers’ base rates may not be changed without fonnal 
approval by these commissions. However, the regulatory authorities have granted the Company’s regulated natural 
gas distribution operatioils the ability to negotiate rates with customers that have competitive alternatives using 
approved methodologies. I n  addition, the natural gas transmission operations can negotiate rates above or below the 
FERC approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution operations each have a gas cost recovery mechanism that provides for the 
adjustment of rates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are collected or refunded through 
adjustments to rates in subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial interruptible customers to make thein 
competitive with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative 
types of supply. Neither the Coinl~aiiy nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive 
natural gas. 

In 2003 Chesapeake changed the revenue recognition method for its Delaware and Maryland natural gas distribution 
divisions to conforin to its Florida division. See Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further 
infomiation. 

The propane marketing operation records trading activity net, on a mark-to-market basis for open contracts. The 
propane distribution, advanced information services and other segments record revenue in the period the products are 
delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Regulatory Activities 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida 
Public Service Commissions. The natural gas transmission operation is subject to regulation by the FERC. 

On August 2, 2001, the Delaware division filed a general rate increase application with the Delaware Public Service 
Commission (“PSC”). Interim rates. subject to refund, went into effect on October 1, 2001, The PSC approved a 
settlement agreement for Phase I of the Rate Increase Application in April 2002. Phase I resulted in an increase in 
rates of approximately $380,000 per year. Phase IT of the filing was approved by the Delaware PSC in November 
2002. It resulted in an additional increase in rates of approximately $90,000. Phase I1 also reduces the Company’s 
sensitivity to weather by changing the minimum customer charge and the margin sharing arrangement for 
interruptible sales, off system sales and capacity release income. 

On October 3 1, 2001. Eastern Shore filed a rate change with the FERC pursuant to the requirements of the 
Stipulation and ,4greement dated August I ,  1997. Following settlement conferences held in May 2002, the parties 
reached a settlement in principle on or about May 23, 2002, to resolve all issues related to its rate case. 

The Offer of Settlement and the Stipulation and Agreement were finalized and filed with the FERC on August 2, 
2002. The agreement provided for a ireduction in rates of approximately 5156,000 on an annual basis. On October 
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10, 2002, the FERC issued an  Order approving the Offer of Settlement and the Stipulation and Agreement. 
Settlement rates went into effect on December 1. 2002. 

During October 2002, Eastern Shore filed for recovery of gas supply realigniiient costs associated \vith the 
implenientation of FERC Order No. 636. The costs totaled S 196,000 (including interest). At that time. the FERC 
would not review Eastern Shore’s filing, because tlie FERC wished to settle a related matter with another 
transmission company first. Tlie other transmission company submitted a filing on December 5 .  2003. The FERC has 
not yet acted on the filing. Eastern Shore will resubmit its transition cost recovery filing immediately upon learning 
of FERC’s approval. 

On December 16, 2003, Eastern Shore filed revised tariff sheets to implement revisions to its Fuel Retention and Cash 
Out provisions. These became effective January 1 5 .  2004. The proposed tariff revisions permit Eastern Shore to 
incoiyorate its Deferred Gas Required for Operations amounts into the calculation of its annual Fuel Retention 
percentage adjustment and to implement a surcharge. effective July 1 of each year, to recover cash-out amounts. The 
FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s revised tariff sheets on January IS, 2004, subject to certain revisions to clarify tlie taiiff 
sheets. On January 30, 2004, Eastern Shore submitted the revised tariff sheets. 

On March 29, 2002, the Florida division filed tariff revisions with the Florida PSC to complete the unbundling 
process by requiring all customers, including residential, to migrate to transportation service and authorized the 
Florida division to exit the merchant function. Transportation services were already available to all nonresidential 
customers. On Noveinber 5> 2002, the Florida PSC approved the Company’s request for the first phase of the 
unbundling process as a pilot progi-am for a minimum two-year period. The Company has implemented the program. 
As a part of this pilot program, the Company submitted several filings during 2003 to address transition costs, the 
disposition of tlie unrecovered gas cost balances, the implementation of the operational balancing account and the 
level of base rates. On July 15, 2003, tlie Florida PSC approved a rate restructuring proposed by Chesapeake. The 
restructuring created three new low volume rate classes, with customer charge levels that ensure that all customers 
receive benefits from the unbundling. On January 4, 2004. tlie Florida PSC authorized the refund of the remaining 
balance in the PGA account, totaling $236,000. 

Environmental Matters 

The Company has completed its responsibilities related to the Dover Gas Light site and continues to work with 
federal and state environmental agencies to assess the environmental impact and explore corrective action at three 
other eiivironmental sites (see Note N to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Coiiipaiiy believes that future 
costs associated with these sites will be recoverable in rates or through sharing arrangements with, or contributions 
by, other responsible parties. 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Long-term debt is 
subject to potential losses based on the change in interest rates. The Company’s long-term debt consists of first 
mortgage bonds, senior notes and convertible debentures (see Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
annual niaturities of consolidated long-term debt). All of Chesapeake’s long-term debt is fixed-rate debt and was not 
entered into for trading purposes. The carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt, including current maturities, 
was $73.1 inillion at December 3 1. 2003, as compared to a fair value of $80.9 million, based mainly on current 
market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar tcrius and remaining 
maturities. The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates as a result of financing through its issuance of fixed- 
rate long-tern1 debt. Tlie Company evaluates whether to refinance existing debt or permanently finance existing 
short-term borrowing based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. 

The Company’s propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage activities and 
entering into fixed price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximately four million gallons of 
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propane (including leased storage and rail cars) during the winter season to meet its customers’ peak requirements 
and to serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of propane niay cause the value of stored propane 
to decline. To mitigate the iinpact of price fluctuations, the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy that 
allows the propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its inventory. At December 3 1, 2003, the 
propane distribution operation had entered into contracts to hedge 2.6 inillion gallons of propane inventory. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids (“NGL”) forward contracts, primarily 
propane contracts, with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane marketing operation purchase 
or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration, the contracts are settled by the deliveiy of NGL to 
the Company or the counter party or booking out the transaction (booking out is a procedure for financially settling a 
contract in lieu of the physical deliveiy of energy). The propane wholesale marketing operation also enters into 
futures contracts that are traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are 
settled by the payinent of a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the futures 
contract and the original contract price. 

The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The propane 
wholesale marketing operation is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent that market 
prices for NGL deviate froin fixed contract settlement amounts. Market risk associated with the trading of futures 
and forward contracts are monitored daily for coinpliance with Chesapeake’s Risk Management Policy, which 
includes voluinetric liinits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices, open positions are 
marked up or down to market prices and reviewed by oversight officials on a daily basis. Additionally, the Risk 
Management Coinmittee reviews periodic reports on market and credit risk, approves any exceptions to the Risk 
Management Policy (within the limits established by the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types 
of contracts. Quantitative information on the forward and futures contracts at December 3 1,2003 and 2002 is shown 
in the following chart. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31,2003 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 1 1,956,000 $0.6650 - $0.6900 $0.6153 
Purchase 10,876,000 $0.6650 - $0.6900 $0.6085 

Futures Contracts 
Sale 200,000 $0.6650 - $0.6675 $0.6675 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expire in 2004. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31,2002 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 7,291,200 $0.5200 - $0.5700 $0.5349 
Purchase 4,5 15,000 $0.5200 - $0.5700 $0.5001 

Futures Contracts 
Sale 1,764,000 $0.5200 - $0.5400 $0.5449 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expired in 2003. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers to 
purchase natural gas for resale to their customers, Purchases under these contracts are considered “normal purchases 
and sales” under SFAS No. 133 and are not marked to market. 
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Competition 

The Company’s natural gas operations compete with other forms of energy including electricity, oil and propane. 
The principal competitive factors are price, and to a lesser extent, accessibility. The Company’s natural gas 
distribution operations have several large volume industrial customers that have the capacity to use fuel oil as an 
alternative to natural gas. When oil prices decline, these interruptible customers convert to oil to satisfy their fuel 
requirements. Lower levels in interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower relative to the price of natural gas. 
Oil prices, as well as the prices of electricity and other fuels are subject to fluctuation for a variety of reasons; 
therefore, future competitive conditions are not predictable. To address this uncertainty, the Company uses flexible 
pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales side of its business to maximize sales volumes. As a result of the 
transmission business’ conversion to open access, this business has shifted from providing competitive sales service 
to providing transportation and contract storage services. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida offer transportation 
services to certain industrial customers. In 200 1, the Florida operation extended transportation service to coinmercial 
customers and, in 2002, to residential customers. With transportation service now available on the Company’s 
distribution systems, the Company is competing with third party suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. As it 
relates to transportation services, the Company’s competitors include the interstate transmission company if the 
distribution customer is located close enough to the transmission company’s pipeline to make a connection 
economically feasible. The customers at risk are usually large volume commercial and industrial customers with the 
financial resources and capability to bypass the distribution operations in this manner. In certain situations, the 
distribution operations may adjust services and rates for these customers to retain their business. The Company 
expects to continue to expand the availability of transportation service to additional classes of distribution customers 
in the future. The Company established a natural gas sales and supply operation in Florida in 1994 to compete for 
customers eligible for transportation services. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their service 
territories, primarily on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. 
competition is generally from local outlets of national distribution companies and local businesses, because 
distributors located in close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. Propane competes with 
electricity as an energy source, because it is typically less expensive than electricity, based on equivalent BTU value. 
Propane also competes with home heating oil as an energy source. Since natural gas has historically been less 
expensive than propane, propane is generally not distributed in geographic areas serviced by natural gas pipeline or 
distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, inany of which have significantly 
greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors 
having substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition, changes in the 
advanced information services business are occurring rapidly, which could adversely impact the markets for the 
products and services offered by these businesses. This segment competes on the basis of technological expertise, 
reputation and price. 

inflation 

Inflation affects the cost of labor, products and services required for operation, maintenance and capital 
improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane prices are 
subject to rapid fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural gas prices are passed on to customers through the gas cost 
recovery mechanism in the Company’s tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its capital investments 
and returns, the Company seeks rate relief from regulatory coinmissions for regulated operations while monitoring 
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the returns of its unregulated business operations. To coinpensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, Chesapeake 
adjusts its propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the market. 

Recent Pronouncements 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) adopted SFAS No. 146: “Accounting for Costs hssociated 
with Exit or Disposal Activities” in June 2002> which requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or 
disposal activity bc recognized when a liability is incurred. Under previous guidelines, a liability for an exit cost was 
recognized at the date of an entitbr’s conuiiitment to an exit plan. This statement was effective for exit or disposal 
activities initiated on January 1 ,  2003 01- thereafter and had no effect on the Company during 2003. 

FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor’s .4ccounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, 
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” was adopted in November 2002. The Company has 
adopted FIN No. 45. There was no impact on the financial statements; however, the disclosures in the Coiniiiitnients 
and Contingencies footnote (Note 0) were expanded to include additional disclosures required by the 
pronouncement. 

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which replaced 
FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” issued in January 2003. FIN No. 46R was issued to 
replace FIN No. 46 and to clarify the required accounting for interests in variable interest entities. A variable interest 
entity is an entity that does not have sufficient equity investment at risk, or the holders of the equity instruments lack 
the essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest. A lrariable interest entity is to be consolidated by a 
company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities, or is 
entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns, or both. As of December 3 I ,  2003, the Company did not 
have any variable interests in a variable interest entity. 

Chesapeake adopted SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” in 2003. See Note B for 
additional information on the i q a c t .  

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and 
Disclosure.” This had no impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. The Company 
continues to apply the intrinsic value method in accounting for stock-based employee compensation permitted by 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123. For each of the periods prcsented in the 
consolidated statement of income. no stock-based compensation expense was recorded as no new stock options were 
issued during those periods. 

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Ainendnient of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities.” This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative 
instruments and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities” by requiring that contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on Chesapeake’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

On August 13. 2003, the FASB ratified the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03- I 1 “Reporting 
Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That Ai-e Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not ‘Held 
for Trading Puiposes’ as Defined in EITF Issue No. 02 - 3.” This did not have any effect on the Company’s 
financial position or results of operations. 

On January 12, 2004, the FASB released FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-1 “Accounting and Disclosure 
Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Iniprovement and Modernization Act of 2003.” The 
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Company has elected to defer the accounting for the Act, as allowed under Staff Position No. 106- 1. See Note L for 
required disclosures. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Cautionary Statement 

Chesapeake has made statements in this report that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These 
statements are not matters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” 
“plans,” “will,” or “may,” and other similar words of a predictive nature. These statements relate to matters such as 
customer growth, changes in revenues or margins, capital expenditures, environmental remediation costs, regulatory 
approvals, market risks associated with the Company’s propane marketing operation, competition and other matters. 
It is important to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees but are subject to certain risks 
and uncertainties and other iniportant factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the 
forward-looking statements. These factors include, among other things: 

0 

0 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 
the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices of natural gas and propane on the Company’s distribution, 
wholesale marketing and energy trading businesses; 
the effects of competition on the Company’s unregulated and regulated businesses; 
the effect of changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including deregulation; 
the effect of accounting changes; 
the effect of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental damage; 
the effects of general economic conditions on the Company and its customers; 
the ability of the Company’s new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected revenues; and 
the Company’s ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators and the timing 
of the requested regulatory actions. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk is included in Item 7 under the heading 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk.” 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation: 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(l) on page 64 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries at 
December 3 I ,  2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 3 I ,  2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) 
on page 64 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the 
related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its December 3 1,2002 and 
200 1 financial statements with respect to utility unbilled revenue accounting matters. 

As discussed in Note G to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in 2002. In addition, as discussed in Note B to 
the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, 
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” in 2003. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
February 19,2004 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

2002 2001 
Restated Restated 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

Operutitig Revenues $162,298,007 $134.142,530 $ 1  57,151,253 

Operatirig Experises 
Cost of sales, ercluding costs below 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Depreciation and aiiiortIzation 

94,680,207 72,999.567 98.663,948 
32,823,830 3 1,368.621 30263,403 

1,737,855 1,924,210 1,748,932 
7,089,837 7,089,190 6,342.412 

Other taxes 4,386,878 4,156,263 3,911,557 
Total operating expenses 140,718,607 117,537,851 140,930.252 

Operuting Illcot?le $21,579,400 $16.604,679 $16,221,001 

694.441 Other lr7corne 238,439 494,904 

Iticotiie B@re Ititerest Clturges 21,817,839 17,099.583 16,915,442 

Inremr C h f l r g ~  5,705,911 4.955,022 5,010,516 

Iticonic before It1conie Tuxes 16,111.928 12,143,561 I 1.904,926 

It7CO17762 T U X ~ S  6,032,445 4,609,552 4,564.363 

Itzcoiize from contirz uing operutiotis 10,079,483 7.535,009 7,340.563 

Ii7come (Loss), ftum Cli~~oniii7zied 
opei~ifiOl7S, i7er of iox 

Discontinued operations (799,794) ( I  ,897.837) (648,75 1) 
Gain 011 sale 12,187 

Total loss fioin discontinued operations (787,607) (1,897.837) (638.75 1 ) 

Cumulative Effect of Change in 
Accounting Principle. net of tax - (1,9 16,000) 

;\'et Iiiconie $9,291,876 $3,721,172 S6,691,8 12 

Earnings Per Shure of Contt?lott Stock: 
Basic 

Froiii continuing operations 
From discontinued operations 

$1.80 S1.37 $1.37 
(0.14) (0.34) (0.12) 

Effect of change in accounting principle (0.35) 
Net Income $1.66 $0.68 $1.25 

Diluted 
From continuing operations $1.76 $1.37 $1.35 

Effect of change in accounting principle 
From discontinued operations (0.13) (0.34) (0.12) 

Net Income $1.63 S0.68 $1.23 
(0.35) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

2002 2001 
Restated Restated 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

Operating Activities 
Net Income 
Adjustments to reconcile net inconic to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciation and accretion iiicluded in other costs 
Goodwill impairment 
Deferi-ed income taxes, net 
Marlc-io-market adjustmenls 
Employee benefits and compensation 
Other, net 

Accounts I-eceivable, net 
Inventories, storage gas and materials 
Prepaid expenses and other cur~-ent assets 
Other deferi-ed charges 
Accounts payable, net 
Refunds payable to custoinei-s 
Income taxes receivable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued compensation 
Over (under) recovered deferred purchased gas costs 
Other current liabilities 

Changes i n  assets and liabilities: 

$9,291,876 

8,030,398 
2,467.582 

2.397.594 
457,901 

1 . I  21,571 
15,874 

(3,565,363) 
(466.41 1) 
226,455 
239,862 
882,575 

(291,260) 
25,090 

(47,464) 
762,629 
102,666 

(192,996) 

53,721,172 

7,932.345 
2490,799 
4.674,000 

263.826 
(704,908) 
188,616 
34,571 

(2 ,82  1,343) 
3 1 1.668 

(675,063) 
(347,67 1 )  

6,590,375 

182.59 1 
(1,058.570) 

(261,l  14) 
3,606,075 

594,107 

(473,733) 

Othei long-term liabilities 521,870 14 1.358 

Net cash piovided by opeiating activilies 21,980,449 24,389,101 15,450,597 

S6,69 1,s 12 

7,084,080 
1,908,978 

475.901 
906,55 1 
193.717 
197.415 

17,193,93 1 
1, I 17,052 
(293.836) 

( I .8 14,802) 
(19,103,097) 

(43,553) 
497,581 

1,163,276 
313,625 
358,779 

(1,083.994) 
(3 12,889) 

Iitvesting Activities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures, net (11,790,364) (34,705,244) (27,414,426) 
Change in intangibles 12,426 (2,208,699) 
Sale of discontinued operations 3,732,649 
Environmental recoveries, net of expenditures 2.193,318 63 1,750 437,3 19 

Net cash used by investing activities (5,864,397) (14.061.068) (29,185,806) 

Financing Activities 
Cominon stock dividends 
lssuaiice of stock: 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan optional cash 
Dividends reinvested by slocltholders 
Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 

Net (repayments) borrowing under line of credit agreeinents 
Pi-oceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net 
Repayment of long-term debt 

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 

(6,147.264) 

347,546 
743,728 
920,522 
319,437 

(7,384,742) 

(1.265.054) 

(1 5,465,827) 

(6,016.052) 

266.638 
693,858 

1,011.5 15 
76,831 

(3 1,200.000) 
29,918.850 
(3.809.732) 

(9.058,092) 

(5.825,837) 

191,765 
609,793 

1,023,919 
108,756 

16,700,000 
300,000 

(2,791 ,I 68) 

10,3 17,228 

,Vet Increme in Cash arld Cash Eqiiivaleltts 650,225 1,269,941 (3,417,981) 

Cash arid Cash Eqriii~nlerits - Beginrtirtg of Period 2,458,276 1,188.335 4.606.3 16 

Cash and Cash Eqiiivalenis - Ertd of Period $3,108,501 $2,458,276 $1.188,335 

Siipplertreiitnl Disclorwe of Cush Flow Iiiforrriatiort 
Cash paid foi iiiteiest $5,648,332 $6,255.1 93 S4,128,477 
Cash paid foi incoine taxes $3,767.816 $2,160.750 E3,601,400 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Assets 
2002 

Restated 
At December 31, 2003 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Natural gas distribution and transmission 9; 186,661,469 $1 78.082,794 

Propane 35,577,104 34,347,597 
Advanced information services 1,396,595 1,475,060 
Water services 762,383 4,603,745 
Other plant 8,796,305 9,062,339 

Total property, plant and equipment 233,193,856 227.571.535 

1,724,721 1,556.040 Plus: Coiistniction work in progress 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amoriization (67,046,318) (62.28 1,788) 

167,872.259 166.845,787 Net property, plant and equipment 

Investments 386,710 362,855 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 3,108,501 2,458,276 

of $659,047 and 5659,628, respectively) 30,689,597 27.343.754 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 923,556 995.365 
Appliance and other inventory, at FIFO 173,044 1 , I  93,585 
Propane inventory. at average cost 3,387,535 4,028,878 
Storage gas prepayments 4,622,601 3,033.772 
Underrecovcred purchased gas costs 660,601 763,267 
Income taxes receivable 489,841 5 l4,93 1 
Prepaid expenses 2,069,988 2.833.314 
Other current assets 768,958 755,682 

Total current assets 46,894,222 43,920.624 

Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectibles 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
En\~ironiiiental regulatory assets 353,092 2527,251 
Enbu onmental expenditures 364,088 2,557,406 
Goodwill, net 674,451 869.5 19 

305,213 I .927,622 Other intangible assets, net 
Long-tenn recelvables 1,637,998 1,536,624 
Other regulator) assets 1,693,401 2,029.073 
Other deferred charges 983,230 1,144,020 

Total deferred charges and other assets 6,011,473 12,591,515 

Total Assets $221,164,664 $223,720,781 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Capitalization and Liabilities 
c)nn? 
L U U L  

At December 31, 2003 Restated 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equity 

Common Stock, par value S.4867 per share; 
(authorized 12,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 
5,660,594 and 5,537,710 shares. respectively) $2,754,748 $2,694,935 
Additional paid-in capital 34,176,361 3 1,756,983 
Retained earnings 36,008,246 32,898,283 

Total stockholders' equity 72,939,355 67,350,20 1 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 69,415,545 73,407,684 

Total capitalization 142,354,900 140,757,885 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 3,665,091 3,938,006 
Short-term borrowing 3,515,258 10,900,000 
Accounts payable 21,997,413 2 1,141,996 
Refunds payable to customers 206,582 497,842 
Customer deposits 2,008,3 79 2,007,983 
Accrued interest 652,367 699,83 1 
Dividends payable 1,556,631 1,521,982 
Deferred income taxes payable 119,814 49,714 

Other accrued liabilities 1,657,523 2,052,442 

Total current liabilities 38,645,130 44,587,340 

Accrued compensation 3,266,072 1,777,544 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 19,590,995 17,263,501 
Deferred investment tax credits 492,725 547,541 
Environmental liability 562,194 2,802,424 
Accrued pension costs 2,015,128 1,619,456 
Accrued asset removal cost 13,536,209 12,067,121 
Other liabilities 3,967,383 4,075,5 13 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 40,164,634 38,375,556 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes N and 0) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $221,164,664 $223,720,781 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity 

Cnnirizon Stork 
Balance - beginning of year 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 
Perfomiance shares and ontions exercised 

$2,694,935 $2,640,060 S2.577,992 
24,888 24,239 20,977 
21,047 25.669 26,730 

9,144 2,199 3,117 
4,734 2.778 1 1.244 

Balance - end of year 2,754,748 2.694,935 2,640,060 

A rlrlitioriul Puid-in Cupiful 
Balance - beginning of veal 31.756,983 29,653.992 27.672.005 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 1,066,386 936.268 780,582 
Retirement Sa\ ings Plan 899,475 985,846 997,187 
Conversion of debentures 310,293 74.632 105,639 
Perfonnance shales dlid options exeicised 143,224 106,245 98,579 

Balance - end of )ear 34,176,361 3 1.756,983 29.653,992 

Retuiiied Euriziiigs 
Balance - - beginning of gedi 32,898,283 35,223.3 I4 34.319.225 

Net income 9,291,876 3.72 1 .I72 6.69 1,8 12 
Cash dividends “ I  (6,181,913) (6,046,203) (5,887.723) 

Balance - end of year 36,008,246 32,898.283 35,223,314 

Totul Stockholders Eyrri!, $72,939,355 $67.350,201 $67.51 7,366 

( I ’  Cash dividends dcclarcd pcr sharc for 2003, 2001 and 2001 wci-c 5: I. I O .  $ 1 .  I0 and $ I  ,095, rcspcctivcly 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Common Stock shares issued and outstanding ”) 
Balance - beginning of  year 5,537,7 10 5,424.962 5297,443 

Dividend Reinvest men t PI an ‘.’I 51,125 49,782 33,101 
Sale of stock to the Company’s Retirement Savings Plan 43,245 52.740 54,921 
Conversion of debentures 18,788 4,5 18 6,395 
Perfonnance shares and options exercised 9,726 5,708 23,102 

Balance - elid of year (4) 5,660,594 5,537,710 5,424,962 

(?’ 12.000.000 sliai-cs arc authorizcd at a par valuc of $0.4867 pcr sliarc. 

(‘I Includes dividcnds I-cinvcstcd and optional cash paymcnts. 
‘I’ Thc Company had 47.659. 37.353, and 30.436 shares hcld in R a b b ~  Trusts at Dcccmbcr 3 I .  2003, 2002 and 2001, rcspcctivcly. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes 

2002 2001 
Restated Restated For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 

Ciirrertt Iricorne Tax Experzse 
Federal 
State 

$2,732,101 $1,624,698 $3,204,526 
943,993 57 1,540 605,459 

Investment tax credit adjustments, net (54,816) (54,816) (54,815) 
Total current income tax expense 3,621,218 2,14 1,422 3,755,170 

Deferred Income Tux Expense ( I )  

Property, plant and equipment 
Deferred gas costs 
Pensions and other employee benefits 
Impairment of intangibles 
Environmental expenditures 

1,855,131 3,742,415 
105,846 (1,701,273) 

(203,229) (139,861) 
1,463,995 (1,785,160) 
(866,206) (404,659) 

769,264 
(48,426) 
(71,089) 

0 
(142,362) 

Other (19,367) 507,799 (29,885) 

Total deferred income tax expense 2,336,170 219,261 477,502 
Total  Income T a x  Expense $5,957,448 $2,360,683 $4,232,672 

Reconciliution of Ejfectiw Iiicoine Tux Rates 
Continuing operations 

Federal income tax expense 
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 

$5,478,056 $4,129,150 $4,166,724 
731,367 582,68 1 492,061 

Other (1 82,978) (1 02,279) (94,422) 
Total continuing operations 6,032,445 4,609,552 4,564,363 
Discontinued operations (74,997) (2,248,869) (33 1,691) 

Total Income Tax Expense $5,957,448 $2,360,683 $4,232,672 

Effective income tax rate 39.1 yo 38.8% 38.7% 

2002 
Restated At December 31, 2003 

Deferred Iricoine Tuxes 
Deferred income tax liabilities: 

Property, plant and equipment 
Environmental costs 
Deferred gas costs 

$21,186,978 $19,568,426 
67,354 881,567 

277,438 70,542 
Other 910,705 1,307,082 

Total deferred income tax liabilities 22,442,475 21,827,611 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Pension and other employee benefits 1,500,539 1,505,008 
Impairment of intangibles 125,165 1,785,160 

Other 520,438 676,885 
2,731,666 4,514,402 

Deferred Income Taxes Per Consolidated Balance Sheet $19,710,809 $17,313,215 

Self insurance 585,524 547,349 

Total deferred income tax assets 

( ' I  lncludcs $ 1  13,000, $ I3 1.000 and $98,000 of dcferrcd statc income taxcs for thc ycars 2003, 2002 and 2001, rcspectivcly. 
12) Fcdcral inconlc taxes for thc ycars 2003 and 2002 wcrc rccordcd at 34%. Thc ycar 2001 was rccordcd at 35%. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Restatement 
The Company has restated its 2002 and 2001 financial statements in order to reflect the results of its Delaware and 
Maryland natural gas divisions on the “accrual” revenue recognition method rather than the “as billed” revenue 
recognition method. This change had an insignificant effect on the Company’s annual results for the last three years. 
Under the “as billed” method, revenues from customer sales are not recognized until the meter is read and the 
amount of gas used is billed. Whereas, under the “accrual” method, at the end of each period, the amount of gas used 
is estimated and is recognized as revenue. The Company’s Florida division has historically used the “accrual” 
method in accordance with Florida Public Service Commission (“PSC”) requirements. The Delaware and Maryland 
divisions have historically used the “as billed” method to recognize revenues consistent with the rate-setting 
processes in those states. In order to consistently apply the “accrual” method, the Company iiiet separately with the 
staffs of the Delaware and Maryland Public Service Commissions to determine the regulatory impact of the change. 
Having determined that there is little to no impact, the Company has conformed the revenue recognition method 
used in its Delaware and Maryland divisions to the method used by its Florida division. In order to provide 
comparable information, the Company has restated its 2002 and 200 1 financial statements to reflect the “accrual” 
revenue recognition method. As a result of the restatement, retained earnings of the Company as of January 1, 2001 
increased by $697,000 compared to previously reported amounts. As indicated below, the change has no impact on 
basic earnings per share. There is no impact on fully diluted earnings per share in 2002 and a $0.01 decrease in 2001. 

Selected Income Statement Information 
Operating Revenues 
Operating Income 
Income froin Continuing Operations 
Net lncoiiie 

Earnings Per Share of Coinmoo Stock 
Basic 

From Continuing Operations 
Net Income 

Diluted 
From Continuing Operations 
Net Income 

Selected Balance Sheet Information 
Assets 

Accounts receivable 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Income taxes 
Other regulatory assets 

Liabilities 
Deferred Incoine taxes 

Stockholders’ Equity 
Retained Eaniings 

December 31, Impact of December 31, 
2002 Revenue 2002 

As Previously Recognition 
Reported (1) Change As Restated 

$134,100,730 
I6,618,I3 I 
7,542,990 
3,729,153 

$1.37 
$0.68 

$1.37 
$0.68 

$24,045,852 
2,968,931 

488,339 
2,020,751 

($41 7,665) 

$32,238,510 

$41,800 $134,142,530 
(13,452) 16,604,679 

(7,981) 7,535,009 
(7,981) 3,721,172 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$1.37 
$0.68 

$1.37 
$0.68 

$3,297,902 27,343,754 
(2,205,664) 763,267 

26,592 514,931 
8,322 2,029,073 

$467.379 49.714 

$659,773 32,898,283 

December 31, Impact of December 31, 
2001 Revenue 2001 

As Previously Recognition 
Reported (1) Change As Restated 

$157,670,322 ($519,069) $157,151,253 
16,270,3 15 (49,314) 16,221,001 
7,370,288 (29,725) 7,340,563 
6,721,537 (29,725) 6,691,812 

$1.37 
$1.25 

$1.35 
$1.24 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
($0.01) 

$1.37 
$1.25 

$1.35 
$1.23 

(1) Dcccnibcr 31, 2002 and 2001 Opcl-ding Revoiuc. Opcraling lnconx and lncoiiic froiii Conlinuing Opcrations cxcludc the rcsulls 
0 1 t h ~  opcralionr disconlinucd in 2003 and iocludc iniinor rcclassifications lo conrornl with 1hc prcsenlation o f thc  2003 rcsulls. 

Nature of Business 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake” or “the Company”) is engaged in natural gas distribution to 
approximately 47,600 customers located in central and southern Delaware, Maryland’s Eastern Shore and Florida. 
The Conipany’s natural gas transinission subsidiary operates a pipeline froin various points in Pennsylvania and 
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northern Delaware to the Company’s Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as other utility and 
industrial customers in Pennsylvania, Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company’s propane 
distribution and wholesale marketing segment provides distribution service to approximately 34,900 customers in 
central and southern Delaware, the Eastern Shore of Maryland, Florida and Virginia, and markets propane to a 
number of large independent oil and petrochemical companies, resellers and propane distribution companies in the 
southeastern United States. The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients 
with information technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Coinpany and its wholly owned subsidiaries. The 
Company does not have any ownership interests in investnients accounted for using the equity method or any 
variable interests in a variable interest entity. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

System of Accounts 
The natural gas distribution divisions of the Company located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to 
regulation by their respective PSCs with respect to their rates for service, maintenance of their accounting records 
and various other matters. Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company is an open access pipeline and is subject to 
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The Company’s financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which give appropriate recognition to the rateinaking and 
accounting practices and policies of the various commissions. The propane and advanced information services 
segments are not subject to regulation with respect to rates or niaintenance of accounting records. 

Property, Plant, Equipment and Depreciation 
Utility property is stated at original cost while the assets of the non-utility segments are recorded at cost. The costs of 
repairs and ininor replacements are charged against income as incurred and the costs of major renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. As of January 1,2003, Chesapeake Utilities adopted SFAS No. 143. See Note B for a 
suinmary of the impact on the financial statements. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 143, upon retirement or 
disposition of utility property, the recorded cost of removal, net of salvage value, was charged to accumulated 
depreciation. In 2003, the costs were charged against accrued asset reinoval cost. Upon retirement or disposition of 
non-utility property, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to income. The provision for depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable property over the 
estimated remaining useful life of the asset. Depreciation and amortization expenses are provided at an annual rate 
for each segment. Average rates for the past three years were 3 percent for natural gas distribution and transmission, 
5 percent for propane, 14 percent for advanced information services and 8 percent for general plant. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Company’s policy is to invest cash in excess of operating requirements in overnight income producing accounts. 
Such amounts are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less are considered cash equivalents. 

Inventories 
The Company uses the average cost method to value propane and materials and supplies inventory. The appliance 
inventory is valued at first-in first-out (“FIFO”). If the market prices drop below cost, inventory balances are 
adjusted to market values. 

Environmental Regulatory Assets, Liabilities and Expenditures 
Environmental regulatory assets represent amounts related to environmental liabilities for which cash expenditures 
have not yet been made. As expenditures are incurred, the environmental liability is reduced along with the 
environmental regulatory asset. These amounts awaiting rateinaking treatment are recorded to either environmental 
expenditures as an asset or accumulated depreciation as cost of removal. Environmental expenditures are amortized 
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and/or recovered through a rider to base rates in accordance with the rateinaking treatment granted in each 
jurisdiction. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
Goodwill and other intangible assets are associated with the acquisition of non-utility companies. In accordance with 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for 
impairment on an annual basis and when events change. Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated econoinic useful lives. 

Other Deferred Charges 
Other deferred charges include discount, preiniuin and issuance costs associated with long-term debt and rate case 
expenses. Debt costs are deferred, then amortized over the original lives of the respective debt issuances. Rate case 
expenses are deferred, then amortized over periods approved by the applicable regulatory authorities. 

Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credit Adjustments 
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. Income tax expense allocated to the Company’s 
subsidiaries is based upon their respective taxable incomes and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial 
statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using current effective incoine tax rates. The 
portions of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities applicable to utility operations, which have not been reflected in 
current service rates, represent income taxes recoverable through future rates. Investment tax credits on utility 
property have been deferred and are allocated to income ratably over the lives of the subjectproperty. 

Financial Instruments 
Xeron, the Company’s propane marketing operation, engages in trading activities using forward and futures 
contracts which have been accounted for using the mark-to-market method of accounting. Under mark-to-market 
accounting, the Company’s trading contracts are recorded at fair value, net of future servicing costs, and changes in 
market price are recognized as gains or losses in revenues on the income statement in the period of change. The 
resulting unrealized gains and losses are recorded as assets or liabilities, respectively. There were unrealized gains of 
$172,000 and $630,000 at December 3 1,2003 and 2002, respectively. Trading liabilities are recorded in other 
accrued liabilities. Trading assets are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets. 

The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas and 
propane suppliers to purchase gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts are considered 
“normal purchases and sales” under SFAS No. 133 and are accounted for on an accrual basis. 

The propane distribution operation has entered into fair value hedges of its inventory, in order to mitigate the impact 
of wholesale price fluctuations. At December 3 1,2003, propane distribution had entered into contracts to hedge 2.6 
million gallons of propane inventory. 

Earnings Per Share 
The calculations of both basic and diluted earnings per share froin continuing operations are presented in the 
following chart. In 2002, the impact of converting the debentures would have been anti-dilutive; therefore, it was not 
included in the calculation. Additionally, in both 2002 and 200 1, the effect of exercising the outstanding stock 
options would have been anti-dilutive; therefore, it was not included in the calculations. 
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Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share from 

Net income froin continuing opcrations 
Continuing Operations: 

$10,079,483 $7,535,009 $7,340,563 
Wcighted avcragc s h a m  outstanding 5,610,592 5,489,424 5,367,433 

Basic Earnings Per Share from 
Continuing Operations $1.80 $1.37 $1.37 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share from 
Continuing Operations: 

Reconciliation of Numerator: 
Net Incoinc froin continuing operations - Basic $10,079,483 $7,535,009 $7,340,563 
Effcct of 8.25% Convcrtiblc dcbcnturcs 157,557 171,725 

Adjusted numcrator - Dilutcd $10,237,040 $7,535,009 $7,512,288 
Reconciliation of Denominator: 

Wcightcd shares outstanding - Basic 5,610,592 5,489,424 5,367,433 
Effcct of dilutivc sccuritics 

Stock options 1,361 
Warrants 5,481 1,649 849 
8.25% Convertiblc dcbcnturcs 184,532 201,125 

Adjustcd dcnominator - Dilutcd 5,801,966 5,491,073 5,569,407 

Continuing Operations $1.76 $1.37 $1.35 
Diluted Earnings Per Share from 

Operating Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved by the various 
public service coinmissions. The natural gas transmission operation revenues are based on rates approved by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). Customers’ base rates may not be changed without formal 
approval by these commissions. However, the regulatory authorities have granted the Company’s regulated natural 
gas distribution operations the ability to negotiate rates with customers that have competitive alternatives using 
approved methodologies. In addition, the natural gas transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below the 
FERC-approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution operations each have a gas cost recovery mechanism that provides for the 
adjustment of rates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are collected or refunded through 
adjustments to rates in subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial interruptible customers to compete 
with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative types of 
supply. Neither the Company nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural 
gas. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity net, on a mark-to-market basis for open 
contracts. The propane distribution, advanced information services and other segments record revenue in the period 
the products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Certain Risks and Uncertainties 
The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles that require 
management to make estimates in meauring assets and  liabilities and related revenues a n d  expcnscs  ( S C C  N o t c s  N 
and 0 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for significant estimates). These estimates involve judgments with 
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respect to, among other things, various future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond the control 
of the Company. Therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The Coinpany records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 71, If the Company were required 
to terminate application of SFAS No. 71 for its regulated operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized 
in the income statement at that time. This would result in a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes, which 
could be material. 

FASB Statements and Other Authoritative Pronouncements 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated 
with Exit or Disposal Activities” in June 2002, which requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or 
disposal activity be recognized when a liability is incurred. Under previous guidelines, a liability for an exit cost was 
recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. This statement was effective for exit or disposal 
activities initiated on January I ,  2003 or thereafter and had no effect on the Company during 2003. 

FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, 
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” was adopted in November 2002. The Company has 
adopted FIN No. 45. There was no impact on the financial statements; however, the disclosures in the Cominitinents 
and Contingencies footnote (Note 0) were expanded to include additional disclosures required by the 
pronouncement. 

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which replaced 
FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” issued in January 2003. FIN No. 46R was issued to 
replace FIN No. 46 and to clarify the required accounting for interests in variable interest entities. A variable interest 
entity is an entity that does not have sufficient equity investment at risk, or the holders of the equity instruments lack 
the essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest. A variable interest entity is to be consolidated by a 
company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities, or is 
entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns, or both. As of December 3 1, 2003, the Company did not 
have any variable interests in a variable interest entity. 

Chesapeake adopted SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” in 2003. See Note B for 
additional information on the impact. 

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Coinpensation - Transition and 
Disclosure.” This had no impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. The Company 
continues to apply the intrinsic value method in accounting for stock-based employee compensation permitted by 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123. For each of the periods presented in the 
consolidated statement of income, no stock-based compensation expense was recorded as no new stock options were 
issued during those periods. 

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities.” This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative 
instruments and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities” by requiring that contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on Chesapeake’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

On August 13, 2003. the FASB ratified the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03-1 1 “Reporting 
Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not ‘Held 
for Trading Purposes’ as Defined in EITF Issue No. 02-3.” This did not have any effect on the Company’s financial 
position or results of operations. 
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On January 12, 2004, the FASB released FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-1 “Accounting and Disclosure 
Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improveinent and Modernization Act of 2003 .” The 
Company has elected to defer the accounting for the Act, as allowed under Staff Position No. 106-1. See Note L for 
required disclosures. 

Reclassification of Prior Years’ Amounts 
Certain prior years’ amounts have been reclassified to conforin to the current year’s presentation. 

B. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Chesapeake adopted SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” during 2003. The Company’s 
regulated operations are allowed by the regulatory bodies to recover the costs of retiring their long-lived assets 
through approved depreciation rates. Under the pronouncement, the Coiiipany was required to record the portion of 
depreciation that represents asset reiiioval cost as a regulatory liability on its financial statements, Previously, asset 
removal costs were included in accumulated depreciation. Additionally, the portion of the depreciation rates 
approved by the regulators that represents asset renioval costs are now recorded in operations expense. In the past, 
they were recorded in depreciation expense. These changes had no impact on the net earnings of the Company. All 
periods presented have been reclassified in order to make the statements comparable. Accrued asset removal cost 
was $13.5 iiiillion and $12.1 iiiillion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Please refer to Note G for information on the adoption of SFAS No. 142. 

c. BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS, DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS 

During 2001, Chesapeake acquired Absolute Water Care, Inc., and selected assets of Aquarius Systems, Inc., 
EcoWater Systeiiis of Rochester and Intermountain Water, Inc. These coiiipanies provided water treatment, water 
conditioning and bottled water to customers in various geographic regions. These acquisitions were all accounted for 
as purchases and the Company’s financial results included the results of operations beginning on the date of 
acquisition. Previously, Chesapeake had acquired three other water service companies. 

During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and sold six of the operations. Chesapeake 
expects to dispose of the remaining operation during 2004. As of December 3 I ,  2003, the results for all water service 
businesses have been reclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented. A gain of $12,000, net of tax, 
was recorded in 2003 on the sale of the water operations. 

Operating revenues for discontinued operations were $9.8 million, $1 1.7 iiiillion and $10.0 million for 2003, 2002 
and 2001, respectively. Operating losses for discontinued operations were $9 17,000, $2.8 million and $725,000 for 
2003, 2002 and 200 1,  respectively. The following table represents amounts for discontinued operations that are 
included in the balance sheets at December 3 1,2003 and 2002. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation - Discontinued Operations 

Balance Sheets 

Assets 
At December 31, 2003 2002 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property. plant and equipinent $762,383 $4.6 19,703 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and anioi~izalion (326,792) ( I  ,8 14,296) 

Net propei-ty. plant and equipment 435.591 2,805.407 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,437,821 444,167 
.4ccounts receivable i less allowance for uncollectibles 

of 55,346 and S 100.069. respectively) 273,799 1,198,892 
84 I .688 Appliance and other inventory. at FIFO 

Deferred income taxes i-eceivable 20,725 35,024 
Prepaid expenses 110,175 146,240 

Total cui-i-ent assets 1,942,359 2.666.01 I 

99,839 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodwill, net 
Other intangible assets, net 
Deferred income taxes receivable 

195,068 
70,018 1.677.197 

350,847 1,439.098 
Other deferred charges 624 

Total deferred charges and other assets 220,865 3,311.987 

Total Assets $2,598,815 $8,783.405 

Capitalization and Liabilities 
Capitalization 

Common Stock %51,010 S 5  1,010 
Additional paid-in capital 3,914,783 3,914.783 
Retained deficits (5,271,164) (4.483.557) 

Total stocltholders' equity (1,305,371) ( 5  17,764) 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 

Total capitalization (1,305,371) (5 10,717) 

7,047 

Current Liabilities 
Curl-ent portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Due to parent coiiipany 
Custonier deposits 
Income taxes payable 
Other accrued liabilities 

7,047 
67,303 240,9 13 

3,558,434 7,710,706 
1 1,403 79,s 13 

192,290 146,978 
74,756 378.924 

Total current liabilities 3,904,186 8.564,08 I 

Other Liabilities 730.04 I 

Total Caoitalization and Liabilities $2,598,815 $8.783.405 
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D. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
T h e  following table presents information about the Company's  reportable segments .  Resul ts  exclude discontinued 
operat ions.  

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 
Restated Restated 

2003 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $110,071,054 $93,497,345 $107,305,685 
Propane distribution and marketing 39,759,536 28,124,093 35,741,678 
Advanced information services 12,476,746 12,523,856 14,103,890 
Other (9,329) (2,764) 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers $162,298,007 $134,142,530 $1 57,151,253 

lntersegment Revenues (') 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $175,757 $90,730 $1 12,006 
Advanced infonnation services 100,804 239,767 
Other 711,159 720,221 783,05 1 

Total intersegment revenues $987,720 $1,050,718 $895,057 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $16,653,111 $14,973,405 $14,405,352 
Propane distribution and marketing 3,875,351 1,05 1,888 912,819 
Advanced infonnation services 691,909 343,296 5 17,427 
Other and eliminations 359,029 236,090 385,403 

Total operating income $21,579,400 $16,604,679 $16,221,001 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $5,188,273 $5,049,546 $4,388,935 
Propane distribution and marketing 1,506,201 1,602,655 1,465,215 
Advanced information services 190,548 208,430 255,760 
Other and eliminations 204,815 228,559 232,502 

Total depreciation and amortization $7,U89,S37 $7,089,190 $6,342,412 

Capital Expenditures 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $9,078,043 $12,116,993 $23,185,889 
Propane distribution and marketing 2,244,583 1,23 1,199 2,453,081 
Advanced information services 16,924 99,290 252,159 
Other 422,789 388,051 401,877 

Total capital expenditures $11,822,339 $13,835,533 $26,293,006 

( I )  All significant intcrscgmcnt rcvcniics arc billcd at niarkct ratcs and havc bccn cliniinatcd fi-om consolidated rcvcnucs. 

2002 2001 
Restated Restated 

At December 31, 2003 

identifiable Assets 
Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Propane distribution and marketing 
Advanced information services 
Other 

$169,865,930 $166,478,223 $163,766,176 
38,359,251 37,939,683 34,3 14,633 

2,912,733 2,680,304 2,593,740 
7,791.796 9.460.267 9.552.844 

Total identifiable assets S218.929.710 $216.558.477 $210.227.393 
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Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its business 
around differences in products or services and the operating results of each segment are regularly reviewed by the 
Company’s chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about resources and to assess performance. 
The segments are evaluated based on their pre-tax operating income. 

E. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instruments because they are cash or are to be 
settled in cash. The carrying values of these iteins generally approximate their fair value (see Note F to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure of fair value of investments). The Company’s open forward and 
futures contracts at December 3 I ,  2003 and 2002 had net unrealized gains in fair value of $172,000 and $630,000, 
respectively, based on market rates. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is estimated using a discounted 
cash flow methodology. The Company’s long-term debt at December 3 1, 2003, including current maturities, had an 
estimated fair value of $80.9 million as compared to a carrying value of $73.1 million. At December 31, 2002, the 
estimated fair value was approximately $88.0 inillion as compared to a carrying value of $77.3 million. These 
estimates are based on published corporate borrowing rates for debt instruiiients with similar terms and average 
maturities. 

F. INVESTMENTS 

The investment balances at December 3 1, 2003 and 2002, consisted primarily of a Rabbi Trust (“the trust”) 
associated with the acquisition of Xeron, Inc. The Company has classified the underlying investments held by the 
trust as trading securities, which require all gains and losses to be recorded into other income. The trust was 
established during the acquisition as a retention bonus for an executive of Xeron. The Company has an associated 
liability recorded which is adjusted, along with other expense, for the gains and losses incurred by the trust. 

G. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2002. The Company perfonned a test as of January 1, 
2002, for goodwill iinpairment using the two-step process prescribed in SFAS No. 142. The first step was a screen 
for potential impairment, using January 1, 2002, as the measureinent date. The second step was a measurement of the 
amount of the goodwill determined to be impaired. The results of the tests indicated that the goodwill associated 
with the Coinpany’s water business was impaired and that the amount of the inipainnent was $3.2 million. This was 
recorded as the cuinulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The fair value of the water business was 
determined using several methods, including discounted cash flow projections and market valuations for recent 
purchases and sales of siiiiilar businesses. These were weighted based on their expected probability. The previous 
test for impairment of goodwill, prescribed under SFAS No. 121, looked at undiscounted cash flows. The 
determination that the goodwill associated with the Company’s water business was impaired was the result of the 
inore stringent tests required by the new pronouncement. SFAS No. 142 requires that iinpainiient tests be performed 
annually. At December 3 1, 2002, the test indicated an additional impairment charge of $1.5 inillion was necessary, 
The unprofitable performance of the Company’s water services business was the primary cause of the impairment, 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company did not record any ainortization of goodwill in 2003 or 2002. In 
2001, ainortization of goodwill, net of associated taxes, decreased income by $154,000 ($0.03 per share). 
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The change in the carrying \ d u e  of goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2003, is as follows: 

Water 
Businesses Propane Total 

Balance at January I ,  2002 $4,869.068 $614.45 1 S5.543.519 
Impairment charges (4,674.000) (4,674,000) 
Balance at December 3 1. 2002 195.068 674,45 1 859,5 19 
Sale of discontinued ooeratioiis ( I  95,068) (195.068) 

Balance at December 3 1, 2003 so 5674,45 I $674,45 1 

Intangible assets subject to aiiiortizatioii are as follows: 

December 31.2003 December 31.2002 

Gross 
Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization 

Customer Lists $216,616 $142.780 
Non-compete agreements 
Acauisitioii costs 253.659 92.282 

Gross 
Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization 

SI ,099,202 $191,838 
1,000,000 256,257 

379.400 102.885 

Total $540,275 $235.062 $2,478,602 $550,980 

The decrease from 2002 to 2003 reflects the sale of the assets of the water businesses, including intangible assets. 
Aiiiortization of intangible assets was $168,000 and $241,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. For the year ended December 3 1, 2001, amortization of intangibles, excluding goodwill, was $132,000 
The estimated annual amortization of intangibles for the next five years is: S 15,000 for 2004; $14,000 for 2005; 
$14,000 for 2006; $14,000 for 2007; and $14,000 for 2008. 

H. COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 

In 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into agreements with an investment banker to assist in identifying 
acquisition candidates. Under the agreements, the Company issued warrants to the investment banker to purchase 
15,000 shares of Company stock in 2001 at a price of $38.25 per share and 15,000 shares in 2000 at a price of 
$1 8.00. The warrants are exercisable during a seven-year period after the date granted. The Company recognized 
expenses of $47,500 related to the warrants. No warrants have been exercised. 
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I. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The outstanding long-term debt, net of current maturitics, is as shown below. 

First iuortgage sinking fund bonds: 
At December 31, 2003 2002 

9.37% Series I ,  due Deceinber 15, 2004 $0 $756,000 

Uncollateralized senior notes: 
7.97Oh note. due February I ,  2008 

6.91% note, due October I .  2010 
6.85% note. due January 1 .  2012 

7.83% note, due January 1 .  201 5 
6.64% note, due October 3 1. 201 7 

Convertible debentures: 
8.25% due March 1, 2014 

4,000,000 5.000,000 
5,454,545 6.363,636 
7,000,000 8,000,000 

20,000,000 20.000,000 
30,000,000 30,000.000 

2,961,000 3.281.000 

Other debt 7,048 
Total Long-Term Debt $69,415,545 $73,407,684 

Annual iiintui-itics of consoiidatcd long-tcrin deht for- thc ncxt fivc ycars ai-c its follows: 

$3,665,091 fol- 2004; ~ 2 , 9 0 9 . 0 9 1  rol- 2005; ~ 4 , 0 o 9 . 0 9 1  for 2006: s7.h36,364 for 2007; 
and S7.636.361 for 2008. 

The Company completed the private placement of $30 0 inillion of long-tern] debt due October 3 1, 201 7, and drew 
down the funds on Octobei 3 1, 2002 The debt has a fixed interest rate of 6 64 percent The funds were used to repay 
short-tern] borrowing 

The convertible debentures may be converted, at the option of the holder, into shares of the Company’s coininon 
stock at a conversion price of $17.01 per share. During 2003 and 2002, debentures totaling S320,OOO and $77,000, 
respectively, were converted to stock. The debentures are also redeemable for cash at the option of the holder, 
subject to an annual non-cumulative inaxiinuni liinitation of S200,000. During 2003 and 2002 no debentures were 
redeemed for cash. At the Company’s option, the debentures may be redeemed at stated amounts. 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The most stringent 
restrictions state that the Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization and the tiines 
interest earned ratio must be at least 2.5. The Company is in coinpliance with all of its debt covenants. 

Portions of the Company’s natural gas distribution plant assets are subject to a lien under the mortgage pursuant to 
which the Company’s first mortgage sinking fund bonds are issued. 

J. SHORT-TERM BORROWING 

As of December 3 1, 2003, the Board of Directors had authorized the Conipany to borrow up to $35.0 million from 
various banks and trust companies under short-tern1 lines of credit. Prior to the issuance of the $30.0 inillion Iong- 
term debt on October 31, 2002, the Company had authorization to borrow up to $55.0 million. As of December 31, 
2003, the Company had three uncommitted and two committed, short-term bank lines of credit totaling $65.0 
million, none of which required compensating balances. Under these lines of credit, the Company had short-term 
debt outstanding of approximately $3.5 million and S 10.9 million at December 3 1, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The 
annual weighted average interest rates were 2.40 percent for 2003 and 2.35 percent for 2002. The Company also had 
R letter nf credit outstanding in the amount of $694,000 that reduced the amounts available under the lines of credit. 
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K. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The Company has entered several operating lease arrangements for office space at various locations, equipment and 
pipeline facilities. Rent expense related to these leases was $1.1 million, $1.2 million and $952,000 for 2003, 2002 
and 200 1, respectively. Future inininium payments under the Company’s current lease agreements are $87 1,000, 
$669,000, $554,000, $222,000 and $1 65,000 for the years of 2004 through 2008, respectively; and $199,000 
thereafter, totaling $2.7 million. 

L. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Retirement Plans 

Prior to January 1,1999, the Company offered both a defined benefit plan and defined contribution plan to qualified 
employees. On Januaiy 1, 1999, the Company restructured its employee benefit plans to be competitive with those in 
similar industries. Chesapeake offered participants of the defined benefit plan the option to remain in the plan or 
receive a one-time payout and enroll in an enhanced retirement savings plan. Chesapeake closed the defined benefit 
plan to new participants, effective December 3 I ,  1998. 

Defined Benefit Pian 
Benefits under the plan are based on each participant’s years of service and highest average compensation. The 
Company’s funding policy provides that payments to the trustee shall be equal to the minimum funding requirements 
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Company does not expect to be required to make any 
funding payments in 2004. 

The following schedule suiimarizes the assets of the pension plan, by investment type, at December 31,2003 and 
2002: 

At December 31, 2003 2002 
Asset Category 

Equity securities 
Debt securities 

73.69% 
14.95% 

63.59% 
35.15% 

Cash 11.36% 1.26% 
100.00% Total 100.00% 

The investment policy of the Plan calls for an allocation of assets between equity and debt instruments with equity 
being 60 percent and debt at 40 percent, but allowing for a variance of 20 percent in either direction. Additionally, as 
changes are made to holdings, cash, money market funds or United States Treasury Bills may be held temporarily by 
the fund. Investments in the following are prohibited: options, guaranteed investment contracts, real estate, venture 
capital, private placements, futures, commodities, limited partnerships and Chesapeake stock. Additionally, short 
selling and margin transactions are prohibited. 
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The following schedule sets forth the funded status of the pension plan at December 3 1, 2003 and 2002: 

At December 31, 2003 2002 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year $10,781,990 $10,120,364 
Service cost 325,366 3 19,230 
Interest cost 684,239 672,392 
Change in discount rate 772,254 372,918 
Actuarial (gain) loss (212,528) (307,100) 
Benefits paid (402,566) (3 95,s 14) 

Benefit obligation - end of year 11,948,755 l0,78 1,990 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets -beginning of year 9,438,725 11,745,574 

Actual return on plan assets 2,265,389 (1,91 1,035) 
Benefits paid (402,566) (395,814) 

Fair value of plan assets - end of year 11,301,548 9,438,725 

Funded Status (647,207) (1,343,265) 
Unrecognized transition obligation (35,851) (50,955) 
Unrecognized prior service cost (43,657) (4 8,3 56) 
Unrecognized net (gain) loss (261,665) 659,522 
Accrued pension cost ($988,380) ($783,054) 

AssumRtions: 
Discount rate 6.00% 6.75% 
Rate of co~npensation increase 4.00% 5.00% 
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 

The expected return on plan assets was calculated using an expected long-term rate of return of 9.5 percent for 
equity investments and 6.0 percent for debt investments, weighted by their respective proportionate share of the fund 
balance. 

Net periodic pension costs for the defined benefit pension plan for 2003,2002 and 2001 include the components as 
shown below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 
Components of net periodic pension cost: 

Service cost $325,366 $3 19,230 $341,955 
Interest cost 684,239 612,392 646,205 
Expected return on assets (784,476) (980,915) (98 1,882) 
Amortization of: 

Transition assets (15,104) ( 15,104) ( I  5,104) 
Prior service cost (4,699) (4,699) (4,699) 
Actuarial gain ( I  15,570) (195,029) 

Net periodic pension cost (benefit) $205,326 ($124,666) ($202,554) 

The Conipany also sponsors an unfunded executive excess benefit plan. The accrued benefit obligation and accrued 
pension costs were $1.4 inillion and $1 .O million, respectively, as of December 3 1, 2003, and $1.2 million and 
$840,000, respectively, at December 3 1, 2002. 

Retirement Savings Plan 

The Company sponsors a 40 l(k) Retirement Savings Plan, which provides participants a mechanism for making 
contributions for retirement savings. Each participant may make pre-tax contributions of up to 15 percent of eligible 
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base compensation, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. For participants still covered by the defined 
benefit pension plan, the Company makes a contribution matching 60 percent or 100 percent of  each participant’s 
pre-tax contributions based on the participant’s years of service, not to exceed six percent of the participant’s eligible 
compensation for the plan year. 

Effective January 1, 1999, the Company began offering an enhanced 40 l(k) plan to all new employees, as well as 
existing employees that elected to no longer participate in the defined benefit plan. The Company makes matching 
contributions on a basis of up to six percent of each employee’s pre-tax conipensation for the year. The match is 
between 100 percent and 200 percent, based on a combination of the employee’s age and years of service. The first 
100 percent of the funds are inatched with Chesapeake coiiiinon stock. The remaining match is invested in the 
Conipany’s 40 1 (k) plan according to each employee’s election options. 

On December 1 ,  2001, the Company converted the 401(k) fund holding Chesapeake stock to an Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan. 

Effective, January I ,  1999, the Company began offering a non-qualified supplemental employee retirement savings 
plan open to Company executives over a specific income threshold. Participants receive a cash only matching 
contribution percentage equivalent to their 40 1 (k) match level. All contributions and matched funds earn interest 
income monthly. This plan is not funded externally. 

The Company’s contributions to the 40 l(k) plans totaled $1,444,000, $1,488,000 and $1,352,000 for the years ended 
December 3 1, 2003, 2002 and 200 1, respectively. As of December 3 1, 2003, there are 18 1,149 shares reserved to 
fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan. 

Other Post-Retirement Benefits 
The Company sponsors a defined benefit post-retirement health care and life insurance plan that covers substantially 
all employees. 

Net periodic post-retirement costs for 2003, 2002 and 200 1 include the following components: 

For the Years Ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 
Components of net periodic post-retirement cost: 

Service cost 
Interest cost 

Amortization o f  
Transition obligation 

$5,138 $2,739 $887 
85,319 68,437 49,799 

27,859 27,859 27,859 
Actuarial loss (gain) 66,271 12,109 (1,717) 

Total post-retirement cost $184,587 $ 1 1  1,144 $76,828 
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The following schedule sets forth the status of the post-retirement health care and life insurance plan: 

At December 31. 2003 2002 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year 
Retirees 
Fully-eligible active employees 
Other active 86,466 66,104 

Benefit obligation - end of year $1,471,664 $1,053,950 

$1,053,950 $723,926 
(24,779) 123,134 
356,027 140,786 

Funded Status ($1,471,664) (5 1,053,950) 
Unrecognized transition obligation 78,000 105,859 
Unrecognized net loss 655,585 304,827 
Accrued post-retirement cost ($738,079) ($643,264) 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 6.00% 6.75% 

The health carc inflation rate for 2003 is assumed to be 10 percent for medical and 14 percent for prescription drugs. 
These rates are projected to gradually decrease to ultimate rates of 5 and 6 percent, respectively, by the year 2009. A 
one percentage point increase in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would increase the accumulated 
post-retirement benefit obligation by approximately $ 1  93,000 as of January 1, 2004, and would increase the 
aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic post-retirement benefit cost for 2004 by 
approximately $14,000. A one percentage point decrease in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate 
would decrease the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation by approximately $159,000 as of January 1, 
2004, and would decrease the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components of the net periodic post- 
retirement benefit cost for 2004 by approximately $ 1  1,000. 

The Medicare Prescription Drug? Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) was signed into law on 
December 8, 2003. The Company has elected to defer FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-1 “Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003,” 
due to the uncertainties that exist related to the Act and its impact, if any, on the Company‘s post-retirement health 
benefits. The measures of accumulated benefit obligation and net periodic benefit cost in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes do not reflect the effects, if any. of the Act on the Company’s plan. Specific authoritative 
guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is pending and that guidance, when issued, could require the 
Company to change previously reported inforination. 

M. EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE PLANS 

A Performance Incentive Plan (”the Plan”) adopted in 1992 and amended in April 1998 allows for the granting of 
performance shares, stock options and stock appreciation rights to certain officers of the Company. The Company 
now uses performance shares exclusively; however, stock options granted in prior years remained outstanding at 
December 3 1, 2003. .4dditionally, stock appreciation I-ights (“SARs”) were granted previously. None remained 
outstanding at December 3 1, 2003. 

The Plan enables participants the right to earn performance shares upon the Company’s achievement of certain 
performance goals, as set forth in the specific agreements, and the individual’s achievement of goals set annually for 
each executive. The Company recorded compensation expense of $726,000, $165,000 and S 123,000 associated with 
these performance shares in 2003, 2002 and 200 1. respectively. 

In 1997, the Conipany executed Stock Option Agreements for a three-year performance period ending December 3 1, 
2000, with certain executive officcrs. One-half of these options became exercisable over tinie and the other half 
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became exercisable if certain performance targets werc achieved. SFAS No. 123 requires the disclosure of pro forma 
net income and earnings per share as if fair value based accounting had been used to account for the stock-based 
compensation costs. The assumptions used in calculating the pro forma information were: dividend yield, 4.73 
percent: expected volatility, 15.53 percent; risk-free interest rate. 5.89 percent; and an expected life of four years. No 
options have been granted since 1997: therefore, there is no pro forma impact for 2003, 2002 or 2001. The weighted 
average exercise price of outstanding options was $20.50 for all years presented. The options outstanding at 
December 3 I ,  2003, expire on December 3 1,1005. 

Changes in outstanding options are shoxvn on the chart belou.: 

2003 2002 2001 
Number Option Number Option Number Option 

of shares Price of shares Price of shares Price 

Options exercised (12,458) $20.50 (53,220) $12.75 
Balance - beginning of year 41,948 $20.50 4 1,948 S20.50 I 10,093 S 12.75 - $20.50 

Options expired (14,925) $12.75 
Balance - end of year 29,490 $20.50 4 1,948 $20.50 41.948 $20.50 
Exercisable 29,490 $20.50 4 1,948 S20.50 41,948 S20.50 

Jn 2000, the Conipany replaced the third year of this Stock Option Agreement wi th  Stock Appreciation Rights. The 
SARs were awarded based on performance with a minimum number of SARs established for each participant. 
During 200 1 and 2000, the Coinpany granted 10,650 and 13, I50 SARs, respectively, in conjunction with the 
agreement. During 2003, all SARs were exercised. 

As of December 3 1, 2003, there were 326,s I5 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of the Company’s 
Performance Incentive Plan. 

N. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company has participated in the investigation, assessment and remediation of three former gas inanufacturing 
plant sites located in different jurisdictions. The Company has accrued liabilities for the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury 
Town Gas Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. Tlie Company is currently in discussions with the Maryland 
Department of the Environment (“MDE”) regarding a fourth site in Cambridge, Maryland. 

Dover Gas Light Site 
On January 15, 2001, the Conipany received a Certificate of Coinpletion of Work froin the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (“EP.4”) regarding the Dover Gas Light site. This concluded the remedial action 
obligation that Chesapeake had related to this site. Tlie Dover Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site 
located in Dover, Delaware. In May 2001, the Company, General Public Utilities Corporation, Inc. (now FirstEnergy 
Corporation), the State of Delaware, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) and the United 
States Department of Justice signed a settlement term sheet to settle complaints brought by the Company and the 
United States in 1996 and 1997, respectively, with respect to the Dover site. In October 2002, the final Consent 
Decrees were signed and delivered to the United States Department of Justice (“DOJ”). The Consent Decrees were 
lodged siinultaneously with the United States District Court for the District of Delaware and a notice soliciting 
public comment for a 30-day period was published in  the Federal Register. The public coinnient period ended April 
30, 2003 with no public coiiments. The DOJ filed an Unopposed Motion for Entry of Consent Decrees on June 26, 
2003. 

By Order dated July 18, 2003, the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware entered final judgment approving 
and entering the Consent Decrees resolving this litigation. The entry of‘the Consent Decrees triggered the parties’ 
obligations to make the payments required by the settlement agreement within thirty days. Chesapeake received from 
other parties, net settlement payments of $ 1.15 million. These proceeds will be passed on to the Company’s firm 
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customers, in accordance with the environmental rate rider. Additionally, Chesapeake received a release from 
liability and covenant not to sue from the EPA and the State of Delaware. This will relieve Chesapeake from liability 
for future remediation at the site, unless previously unknown conditions are discovered at the site, or infonnation 
previously unknown to the EPA is ]received that indicates the remedial action related to the former nianufactured gas 
plant is not sufficiently protective. These contingencies are standard, and are required by the United States in all 
liability settlements. 

At December 3 1, 2003, the Company had accrued $10,000 for costs associated with the Dover site and had recorded 
an associated regulatory asset for the same amount. Through December 3 I ,  2003, the Company has incurred 
approximately $9.7 million i n  costs relating to environmental testing and remedial action studies at the Dover site. 
Approximately $9.4 inillion has been recovered through December 2003 from other parties or through rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 
The Salisbury Town Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site located in Salisbury, Maryland. In 
cooperation with the MDE, the Company performed the following remedial steps: ( 1 )  operation of an air 
spargingisoil vapor extraction (“ASISVE”) remedial system; (2) monitoring and recovery of product from recovery 
wells; and (3) monitoring of ground-water quality. In March 2002, with MDE’s permission. the Company 
permanently decommissioned the ASiSVE system and discontinued nearly all on-site and off-site monitoring wells. 
In Noveinber 2002, the Company submitted a request for a No Further Action (“NFA”) for the site. In December 
2002, the MDE recommended that the Company submit work plans to MDE and place deed restrictions on the 
property as conditions prior to receiving an NF.4. The Company has completed the MDE recommended work plans 
and has executed the deed restrictions. During the third quarter of 2003 the Company submitted a revised request for 
the NFA. The MDE has not yet responded to the request. 

The Company has adjusted the liability with respect to the Salisbury Town Gas Light site to $8,000 at December 3 1 ,  
2003. This amount is based on tlie estimated costs to perform limited product monitoring and recovery efforts and 
fulfill ongoing reporting requirements. A corresponding regulatory asset has been recorded, reflecting the 
Company’s belief that costs incurred wi l l  be recoverable in base rates. 

Through December 3 1, 2003, the Coiiipany has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 iuillion has been 
recovered through insurance proceeds or ratemaking treatment. The Company expects to recover the remaining costs 
through rates and has established a regulatory asset for those costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. In May 2001, the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) approved a remedial action plan that includes the utilization of the ASiSVE 
technologies to address ground-water impacts throughout a majority of the site. The AS/SVE construction was 
completed in the fourth quarter of 2002 and is now fully operational. The Company is currently negotiating with 
FDEP on the extent of additional investigation and remediation work required to address surface soil, ground-water 
and sediment impacts that will not be remediated by the ASiSVE system. The current estimate of costs to complete 
the remediation activities at tlie site is approximately $544,000 (present value). Accordingly, at December 3 1, 2003 
the Coiiipany has accrued a liability of $544,000. Through December 3 1, 2003 the Company has incurred 
approximately $1.3 million of environmental costs associated with this site. At December 3 I ,  2003 the Company had 
collected through rates $1 79,000 in excess of costs incurred. A regulatory asset of approximately S335.000 
representing the uncollected portion of the estimated cleanup costs has also been recorded. 

It is management’s opinion that any unrecovered current costs and any other future costs associated with any of the 
three sites incurred will be recoverable through future rates or sharing arrangements with other responsible parties. 
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In August 2002, the Company along with two other parties met with MDE to discuss alleged manufactured gas plant 
contamination at a property located in Cambridge, Maryland. At that meeting, one of the other parties agreed to 
perform a remedial investigation of the site. The possible exposure of the Company at this site cannot be determined 
at this time. 

0. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Natural Gas and Propane Supply 

The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual commitments for gas 
froin various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In November 2003, the Company entered into a 
one-year contract with an energy marketing and risk inanagement company to manage a portion of the Company’s 
natural gas transportation and storage capacity. 

Corporate Guarantees 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary. The 
corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane purchases by the subsidiary, in the case of the subsidiary’s 
default. The guarantees at December 3 1, 2003, totaled $4.5 million and expire on various dates in 2004. 

Other 

The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. The Company 
is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governinental agencies concerning 
rates. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on 
the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. 
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P. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

In the opinion of the Company, the quarterly financial information shown below includes all adjustments necessary 
for a fair presentation of the operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company's business, there 
are substantial variations in operations reported on a quarterly basis. Due to the restatement and the reclassification 
of the water businesses to discontinued operations, which required changes to prior periods, the amounts presented 
below may not agree to amounts reported in prior Form 10-Q reports. Dollars are shown in thousands, except per 
share amounts. 

As Billed Impact of Accrual 
Method Revenue Method 

As Previously Recognition 
Reported (1) Change As Restated 

Selected Financial Information 
Operating Revenues 

First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 42,388 2,7 17 45,105 

Total Operating Revenues $161,723 $575 $162,298 

$63,924 ($965) $62,959 
32,237 ( I  ,452) 30,785 
23,174 275 23,449 

Operating Iiicoine 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 

$12,566 ($256) $12,310 
3,268 (406) 2,862 

I44  9 153 
Fourth quarter 5,594 660 6,254 

Total Operating Incoiiie $21,572 $7 $21,579 

Income from Continuing Operations 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 2,824 394 3,218 

Total Iiicome from Continuing Operations $ 1  0,075 $4 $ 1  0,079 

$6,789 ($1 53) $6,636 
1,177 (242) 935 
(715) 5 (710) 

Income from Discontinued Operations 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter (475) (475) 

Total Incotne from Discontinued Operations ($788) $0 ($788) 

Income from Change in Accounting Principle 
First quarter $0 $0 $0 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Total Income from Change in Accounting 
Princiole $0 9;n Rn 

Net Income 
First quarter $6,628 ($153) $6,475 
Second quarter 1,176 (242) 934 
Third quarter (865) 5 (860) 
Fourth quarter 2,349 3 94 2,743 

Total Net Income $9,288 $4 $9,292 

As Billed Impact of Accrual 
Method Revenue Method 

As Previously Recognition 
(1) Change As Restated 

$45,851 ($735) $45,116 
28,633 (1,845) 26,788 

39,000 2,462 41,462 
20,617 160 20,777 

$134,101 $42 $134,143 

$9, I52 ($187) $8,965 
2.093 (553) 1.540 

(153) 14 (139) 
5,526 713 6,239 

$16,618 ($13) $16,605 

$5,057 ($112) $4,945 

(721) 8 (713) 

$7,543 ($8) $7,535 

620 (330) 290 

2,587 426 3,013 

($ I ,9 1 6) $0 ($I ,916) 

($1,916) $0 ($1,916) 

$2,967 
530 

(939) 
1,171 426 1,597 

$3,729 ($8) $3,721 

$2,855 
200 

(931) 

( I )  Operating Revenue, Operating Income and Income from Continuing Oprrations for the quarters of 2002 and previously filed 
quarters of2003 excludc the results of the operations discontinued in 2003 and include niinor reclassifications IO conform with 
tile presenrarion oi'rhe year-end 2003 rcmlli. 
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2003 2002 

As Billed Impact of Accrual As Billed Impact of Accrual 
Method Revenue Method Method Revenue Method 

As Previously Recognition As Previously Recognition 
Reported (1) Change As Restated Reported (1) Change As Restated 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock 
Basic 

From Continuing Operations 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal jirar 

$1.22 ($0.03) 
$0.21 ($0.04) 

($0. 13) $0.00 
$0.50 $0.07 

$1.80 $0.00 

$1.19 
$0.17 

($0.13) 
$0.57 

$1.80 

$0.93 
$0.1 1 

($0.13) 
$0.47 

$1.37 

($0.02) 
($0.06) 
$0.00 
$0.07 

$0.00 

$0.91 
$0.05 

($0.13) 
$0.54 

$1.37 

From Discontinued Operations 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal jicar 

($0.03) 
$0.00 

($0.02) 
($0.08) 

($0.14) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.03) 
$0.00 

($0.02) 
($0.08) 

($0.14) 

($0.04) 
($0.01) 
($0.04) 
($0.25) 

($0.34) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.04) 
($0.01) 
($0.04) 
($0.25) 

($0.34) 

Froin Change in Accounting Principle 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal gear 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.35) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

($0.3 5) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.35) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

($0.35) 

Net Income 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal jmr 

$1.19 ($0.03) 
$0.21 ($0.04) 

($0.15) $0.00 
$0.42 $0.07 

$1.66 $0.00 

$1.16 
$0. I7 

($0.15) 
$0.49 

$1.66 

$0.55 
$0.10 

$0.21 

$0.68 

($0.17) 

($0.03) 
($0.06) 
$0.00 
$0.08 

$0.00 

$0.52 
$0.04 

($0.17) 
$0.29 

$0.68 

Diluted 
From Continuing Operations 

First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal year 

From Discontinued Operations 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal j m r  

$1.19 ($0.03) 
$0.21 ($0.04) 

($0.13) $0.00 
$0.49 $0.07 

$1.76 $0.00 

$1.16 
$0.17 

$0.56 

$1.76 

($0.13) 

$0.90 
$0.1 I 

($0.13) 
$0.47 
$1.37 

($0.02) 
($0.06) 
$0.00 
$0.07 

$0.00 

$0.88 
$0.05 

($0.13) 
$0.54 

$1.37 

($0.03) 
$0.00 

($0.02) 
($0.08) 

($0. 13) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

($0.03) 
$0.00 

($0.02) 
($0.08) 

($0.13) 

($0.03) 
($0.0 1 ) 
($0.04) 
($0.25) 

($0.34) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.03) 
($0.01) 
($0.04) 
($0.25) 

($0.34) 

From Change in Accounting Principle 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 

Fiscal year 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.34) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

($0.35) 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

($0.34) 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

($0.35) 

Net Income 
First quarter 
Second quarter 
Third quarter 
Fourth quarter 
Fiscal j"ar 

$1.16 ($0.03) 
$0.21 ($0.04) 

$0.41 $0.07 
($O.l5) $0.00 

$1.13 
$0.17 

(90.15) 
$0.48 
$1.63 

$0.53 
$0.10 

($0.17) 
$0.21 
$0.68 

($0.02) 
($0.06) 
$0.00 
$0.08 
$0.00 

$0.51 
$0.04 

($0.17) 
$0.29 
$0.68 $1.63 $0.00 

(I) Operating Revenue, Operating Income and lnconir from Continuing Operations for f l ie  quarters of2002 and previously tiled 
quarters of2003 exclude the results oithe operations discontinued in 2003 and include minor reclassifications to conform with 
the presentation oftlie year-end 2003 results. 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other Company 
officials, have evaluated the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is defined under Rule 13a- 
14(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended) as of December 3 I ,  2003. Based upon their 
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls 
and procedures are effective. 

Changes in internal Controls 
During the fiscal quarter of the Company ended December 3 I ,  2003, there was no change in the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s 
internal controls over financial reporting. 

PART Ill 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement, 
captioned “Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Nominees,” “Conmittees of the Board - Audit 
Committee” and Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” to be filed not later than April 29,2004 in 
connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 6, 2003. 

The information required by this Item with respect to executive officers is. pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph (b) of 
Item 401 of Regulation S-K, set forth in Part I of this Form 10-K under “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” 

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Officers, which applies to its principal executive officer, 
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. The 
information set forth under Item 1 hereof concerning the Code of Ethics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
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The following table sets forth information as of December 3 1,2003, with respect to compensation plans of Chesapeake 
and its subsidiaries under which shares of Chesapeake conmon stock are authorized for issuance: 

(a) (b) (c) 
Number of securities 

remaining available for future 
Number of securities to Weighted-average issuance under equity 
be issued upon exercise exercise price compensation plans 
of outstanding options, of outstanding options, (excluding securities 

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in  column (a)) 
Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
security holders 29,490 (1) $20.500 341,215 (2) 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 
security holders 30,000 (3) $18.125 0 

Total 59,490 $19.302 341,215 

(1) Consists of options to purchase 29,490 shares under the 1992 Performance Incentive Plan, as amended. 
(2) Includes 14,700 shares under the 1995 Directors Stock Compensation Plan and 326,5 15 shares under the 

1992 Performance Incentive Plan. The 326,5 15 shares excludes 16,950 shares issued in March of 2004 
related to 2003 performance. The corresponding expense for the 16,950 shares was recognized in 2003. 

(3) In 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into agreements with an investment banker to assist in identifying 
acquisition candidates. Under the agreements, the Company issued warrants to the investment banker to 
purchase 15,000 shares of Chesapeake stock in 200 I at a price of $18.25 per share and 15,000 shares in 
2000 at a price of $18.00. The warrants are exercisable during a seven-year period after the date granted. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Director Compensation’’ and “Management Compensation’’ in the Proxy Statement to be filed not later than April 29, 
2004, in connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 6, 2004. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Beneficial Ownership of Chesapeake’s Securities” to be filed not later than April 29, 2004 in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 6,2004. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

None 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned 
“Fees and Services of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP” to be filed not later than April 29, 2004, in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 6, 2004. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 
1. Financial Statements: 

o 
o 
o 
o 

Auditors’ Report dated February 19, 2004 of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Auditors 
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years ended December 3 1,2003,2002 and 2001 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3 1,  2003 and December 3 1, 2002 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 3 1, 2003,2002 and 
200 1 
Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years ended December 3 1 ,  
2003,2002 and 200 1 
Consolidated statements of Income Taxes for each of the three years ended December 3 1,2003,2002 and 
200 1 
Notes to Consolidated Financial statements 

o 

o 

o 

2. Financial Statement Schedules - Schedule I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, are inapplicable or the information is otherwise shown in 
the financial statements or notes thereto. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: 
Earnings press release dated November 4, 2003 (Items 7 and 12) 

Exhibit 3(b) 

Exhibit 4(a) 

Exhibit 4(b) 

Exhibit 4(c) 

Exhibit 4(d) 

(c) Exhibits: 
Exhibit 3(a) Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is incorporated herein by 

reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 
30, 1998, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Amended Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, effective November 14,2003, are incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 3 of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 
30,2003, File No. 001-1 1590, filed November 14, 2003. 

Form of Indenture between the Company and Boatmen’s Trust Company, Trustee, with respect to the 
8 %% Convertible Debentures is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-2, Reg. No. 33-26582, filed on January 13, 1989. 

First Mortgage Sinking Fund Bonds dates December 15, 1989 between the Company and The 
Prudential Insurance Company of America, with respect to $8.2 million of 9.37% Series I Mortgage 
Bonds due December 15,2004, is not being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of 
Regulation S-K. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the Commission 
upon request. 

Note Agreement dated February 9, 1993, by and between the Company and Massachusetts Mutual 
Life Insurance Company and MML Pension Insurance Company, with respect to $10 million of 7.97% 
Unsecured Senior Notes due February 1,2008, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 to the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1, 1992, File No. 0-593. 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on October 2, 1995, pursuant to which the 
Company privately placed $10 million of its 6.91% Senior Notes due in 2010, is not being filed 
herewith, i n  accnrdance with Tteni 601 (h)(4)(iii) nf Regulation S-K. The Company herehy agrees tn  
furnish a copy of that agreement to the Commission upon request. 
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Exhibit 4(e) Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 15, 1997, pursuant to which the 
Company privately placed $10 inillion of its 6.85% Senior Notes due 2012, is not being filed herewith, 
in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a 
copy of that agreement to the Commission upon request. 

Exhibit 4(f) 

Exhibit 4(g) 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 27,2000, pursuant to which the 
Company privately placed $20 inillion ofits 7.83% SeniorNotes due 2015, is not being filed herewith, 
in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a 
copy of that agreement to the Coinmission upon request. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 3 1,2002, pursuant to which the Company 
privately placed $30 million of its 6.64% Senior Notes due 20 17, is incorporated herein by reference 
to Exhibit 2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 6,2002, File No. 00 1- 
1 1590. 

*Exhibit 1 O(a) 

*Exhibit 1 O(b) 

Executive Employment Agreement dated March 26, 2002, by and between Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and John R. Schimkaitis filed herewith. 

Form of Executive Employment Agreement dated March 26, 2003, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and each of Michael P. McMasters, William C. Boyles and Stephen C. 
Thompson, filed herewith. 

*Exhibit 1 O(c) 

*Exhibit 1 O(d) 

Form of Executive Employment Agreement dated August 1,2002, by and between Sharp Energy, Inc. 
and S. Robert Zola, filed herewith. 

Executive Einployinent Agreement dated January 1, 2003, by and between Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and Ralph J. Adkins is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Company’s 
Annual Report on Forin 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2002, File No. 001-1 1590. 

*Exhibit lO(e) Form of Performance Share Agreement dated January 1, 1998, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Perfoiinance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of 
Ralph J. Adkins and John R. Schiinkaitis is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1, 1997, File No. 001- 1 1590. 

*Exhibit 1O(f) Form of Performance Share Agreement dated January 1, 2002, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of 
Ralph J. Adkins, John R. Schimkaitis, Michael P. McMasters, William C. Boyles and Stephen C. 
Thompson is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 ofthe Company’s Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 3 1,200 1,  File No. 00 1 - 1 1590. 

*Exhibit 1O(g) Forin of Performance Share Agreement dated January 1, 2003, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Perfoiinance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of 
John R. Schiinkaitis, Michael P. McMasters, Stephen C. Thompson and William C. Boyles is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31,2002, File No. 001-1 1590. 

*Exhibit 10(h) Form of Performance Share Agreement dated January 1, 2003, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and S. 
Robert Zola, filed herewith. 

Form of Performance Share Agreement dated December 4, 2003, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of 
John R. Schiinkaitis, Michael P. McMasters, filed herewith. 

*Exhibit 1O(i) 

“Exhibit l0Q) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan dated January 1,  1992, is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 3 1, 199 1,  File No. 0-593. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan dated January 1, 1992, is incorporated 
hcrcin by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statcnicnt datcd April 20, 1992, in conncction with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting held on May 19, 1992. 

*Exhibit 10(k) 
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*Exhibit 1 O(1) 

*Exhibit lO(m) 

*Exhibit 10(n) 

“Exhibit 10(0) 

Exhibit 12 

Exhibit 2 1 

Exhibit 23 

Exhibit 3 1.1 

Exhibit 3 I .2 

Exhibit 32.1 

Exhibit 32.2 

Amendments to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan are incorporated herein 
by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement dated April 1, 1998, in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting held on May 19, 1998. 

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement dated January 1, 2001, pursuant to Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and each of Philip S. Barefoot, William C. Boyles, Thomas A. Geoffroy, James R. Schneider and 
William P. Schneider is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1, 2000, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Directors Stock Compensation Plan adopted by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation in 1995 is 
incoi-porated herein by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement dated April 17, 1995 in 
connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting held in May 1995. 

United Systems, Inc. Executive Appreciation Rights Plan dated December 3 1, 2000 is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,2000, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Computation of Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges, filed herewith. 

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herewith. 

Consent of Independent Accountants, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Exchange Act 
Rule 13a-l4(a), dated March 15, 2004, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Exchange Act 
Rule 13a-I4(a), dated March 15, 2004, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, dated March 15, 2004, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, dated March 15, 2004, filed herewith. 

* Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: IS/  JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schinikaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 15. 2004 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/S I  RALPH J. ADKINS 
Ralph J. Adkins, Chairman of the Board 
and Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

is/  MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters, Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Date: March 9, 2004 

Is1 THOMAS J. BRESNAN 
Thomas J. Bresnan, Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

/ S I  J. PETER MARTIN 
J. Peter Martin, Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

Is/ CALVERT A. MORGAN, JR. 
Calvert A. Morgan, Jr., Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

/S/ ROBERT F. RIDER 
Robert F. Rider, Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

is/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis, President, 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

Is/ RICHARD BERNSTEIN 
Richard Bemstein, Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

Is/ WALTER J. COLEMAN 
Walter J. Coleman, Director 
Date: March 9. 2004 

IS1 JOSEPH E. MOORE, ESQ. 
Joseph E. Moore, Esq., Director 
Date: March 9, 2004 

/SI RUDOLPH M. PEINS. JR. 
Rudolph M. Peins, Jr., Director 
Date: March 9,2004 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Schedule II 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Balance at Additions 

Beginning Charged to Other 

Balance at 

End of 

For the Year Ended December 31. of Year Income Accounts (I) Deductions ( 2 )  Year 

Reserve Deducted From Related Assets 
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts 

$ 659,628 $ 637,435 $ 10,093 $ (648,109) $ 659,047 

677,461 $ 210,735 $ (850,084) $ 659,628 $ 

2001 $ 519,961 $ 592,590 $ 488,895 $ (1,009,930) $ 621,516 

................................................................................................................................................................................. ..................................... ............ "...."................"........................_..I.... ......... _. 2003 

"__ ................................................................................. ....................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................e� ........ 

'I' Recoveries. 

Uncollectible accounts charged off. 1'1 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 
Exhibit 12 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Income from continuing operations $ 10,079,483 $ 7,535,009 $ 7,340,563 

Add: 

Income taxes 6,032,445 4,609,552 4,564,363 

Portion of rents representative of interest factor 351,445 41 1,461 3 17,173 

lnterest on indebtedness 5,6 16,756 4,867,520 4,914,459 

Amortization of debt discount and expense 89,155 87,502 101,183 
Earnings as adjusted S 22,169,284 $ 17,511,044 $ 17,237,741 

Fixed Charges 
Portion of rents representative of interest factor 351,445 $ 411,461 $ 317,173 
Interest on indebtedness 5,616,756 4,867,520 4,914,459 
Amortization of debt discount and expense 89,155 87,502 101,183 

Fixed Charges $ 6,057,356 $ 5,366,483 $ 5,332,815 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.66 3.26 3.23 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Exhibit 21 

Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

Subsidiaries 
Aquality Company, Inc 

Eastein Shorc Natuial Gas Company 
Sharp Energy. Inc 

Cherapeake S e n  Ice Company 
Xeron, Inc 

Sam Shannahan Well Company, Inc 
Sharp Water, Inc 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Energv. inc .  
Sharpgas, Inc. 

Sharp Living, Inc. 
Tri-County Gas Co., Incorporated 

Subsidiaries o f  Chesapeake Service Conipanv 
Skipjack, Inc. 

Bravepoint, lnc. 
Chesapeake Investment Company 

Eastern Shore Real Estate 

Subsidiaries o f  Sharp Water.  inc .  
Aquality Solutions of Michigan, Inc 

Carroll Water Systems, Jnc. 
Absolute Water Care, Inc. 

Sharp Water of Florida, Inc. 
Sharp Water of Idaho, Inc. 

Sharp Water of Minnesota, Inc. 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Mississippi 
Maryland 
Delaware 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Maryland 

State Incorporated 
Del aware 
Georgia 

Delaware 
Maryland 

State Incorporated 
Michigan 
Maryland 
Florida 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
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EXHIBIT 23 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in  the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Nos. 33-28391 and 33- 
6367 1 ) and Foiiii S-8 (Nos. 333-0 1 175 and 333-94 1 59) of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation of our report dated February 
19, 2003 relating to the financial statements and finaiicial statement schedule, which appears in this Form 10-K. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
March 15, 2004 
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EXHIBIT 31 . I  

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I. John R. Schiinkaitis, certify that: 

I .  

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
inaterial fact necessary to nialte the statements made, in  light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period co\fered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infonnation included in this annual report, 
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual i-eport; 

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15dP15(e)) for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

evaluated the effectiveness o f  the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end o f  
the period covered by this report based on such evaluations; 

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; 

The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on O L I ~  most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit conmiittee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent function): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant‘s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial infomation; and 

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

b) 

Date: March 15, 2004 

/SI JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schiinkuitis 
President and Chief Executive Office] 
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EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, Michael P. McMasters, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form IO-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this rcport does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
matcrial fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report: 

3 .  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, 
fairly present in  all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in  Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) for the registrant and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision: to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities. particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosurc controls and procedures, as of the end of 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluations; 

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; 

b) 

c) 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit conunittee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent function): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

any fraud, whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

b) 

Date: March 15, 2004 

Is/ MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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EXHIBIT 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, John R. Schiinkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for 
the year ended December 3 1, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Coinmission on the date hereof (i) fully 
coinplies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the 
inforination contained therein fairly presents, in all inaterial respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
Chesapeake. 

i s /  JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schiinkaitis 
March 15, 2004 

A signed original of this written statementrequired by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other docuinent 
authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed forin within the electronic 
version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Coinmission or its staff 
upon request. 
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EXHIBIT 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, Michael P. McMasters, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 
certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Annual Report on Fonn 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
(“Chesapeake”) for the year ended December 3 1,2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Coiimission on the date 
hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of Chesapeake. 

ls! MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
March 15,2004 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other docuinent 
authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Coinmission or its staff 
upon request. 
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Upon written 1-eguest, 
Chesapeake will prolide, p e e  of 
charge, a copy of any exhibit to 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

[XI QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2004 

OR 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number: 001-11590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) 

51 -0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 
Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including Zip Code) 

j302) 734-6799 
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, including Area Code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1 ) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements 
for the past 90 days. Yes [XI No [ 1 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the 
Exchange Act). Yes [XI No [ 3 

Common Stock, par value $.4867 - 5,725,500 shares outstanding as of June 30, 2004. 
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

2003 
Restated 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Operating Revenues $ 34,292,997 $ 30,784,922 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of sales, excluding costs below 20,234,037 16,893,451 
Operations 8,634,728 7,772,767 
Maintenance 415,567 431,112 
Depreciation and amortization 1,811,171 1 ,791 ,128  
Other taxes 1,034,700 1,034,947 

Total operating expenses 32,130,203 27,923,405 

Operating income 2,162,794 2,861,517 

Other income net of Other Expenses 74,217 34,257 

Interest Charqes 1.328.231 1.429.005 

Income Before Income Taxes 908,780 1,466,769 

Income Taxes 297,262 532,233 

Income from Continuing Operations 611,518 934,536 

Net Income (Loss) f rom Discontinued 
Operations, net of tax 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 

Gain on sale 71,574 
of $1 1,234 and ($2,899),  respectively 19,148 (71,961)  

Total income (loss) from discontinued operations, net 19,148 (387) 

Net Income $ 630,666 $ 934,149 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 
Basic 

From continuing operations $ 0.11 $ 0.17 
From discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 

Net Income $ 0.11 s 0 17 

Diluted 
From continuing operations $ 0.11 $ 0.17 
From discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 

Net Income $ 0.11 $ 0.17 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock s 0280  s 0 775 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 
2003 

Restated 

Operating Revenues E 98,055,357 $ 93,744,437 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of sales, excluding costs below 60,638,245 55,317,606 
Operations 17,795,187 16,632,945 
Maintenance 796,137 850,272 
Depreciation and amortization 3,621,795 3,527,227 
Other taxes 2,341,893 2,243,691 

Total operating expenses 85,193,257 7a.571~741 
Operating Income 12,862,100 15,172,696 

Other Income net of Other Expenses 176,694 88.1 57 

Interest Charges 2,654,997 2,894,855 

Income Before Income Taxes 10,383,797 12,365,998 
Income Taxes 3,998,745 4,794,359 

Income f rom Continuing Operations 6,385,052 7,571,639 

Net Income (Loss) from Discontinued 
Operations, net of tax 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 

Gain on sale 71,574 
of ($7,257) and ($87,619). respectively (1 5,187) (234,289) 

(15,187) (1 62,715) Total loss from discontinued operations, net 

Net Income $ 6,369,865 $ 7,408,924 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 
Basic 

From continuing operations $ 1.12 E 1.36 
From discontinued operations 0.00 (0.03) 

Net Income $ 1.12 $ 1.33 

Diluted 
From continuing operations s 1.10 5 1.33 
From discontinued operations (0.01) (0.03) 

Net Income $ 1.09 $ 1.30 

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock $ 0.555 $ 0.550 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) 

2003 

Restated 
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Operating Activities 
Net Income $ 6,369,865 $ 7,408,924 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Mark-to-market adjustments 
Employee benefits and compensation 
Other 

Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 
Inventory, materials, supplies and storage gas 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Other deferred charges 
Accounts payable, net 
Refunds payable to customers 
Accrued income taxes 
Accrued interest 
Accrued compensation 
Over (under) recovered deferred purchased gas costs 
Other current liabilities 

3,621,795 
1,286,104 

822,082 
140,089 
440,404 
(14,620) 

10,773,033 
(648,888) 
221,095 
303,234 

(6,699,976) 
236,603 

2,609,586 
1,144,624 

(1,139,897) 
745,519 
456,922 

3,980,473 
1,255,024 

957,212 
604,430 
579,775 

21,449 

8,125,498 
1,187,467 

427,248 
346,101 

(8,709,145) 
(1 65,282) 

1,506,928 
1,186,664 

299,966 
(2,808,638) 

(405,652) 
Other liabilities (94,088) 201,446 

Net cash provided by operating activities 20,573,486 15,999,888 
~ 

Investing Activities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures, net (6,582,168) (4,607,407) 
Sale of discontinued operations 65,998 790,496 
Environmental recoveries, net of expenditures 262,946 731,633 

Net cash used by investing activities (6,253,224) (3,085,278) 

Financing Activities 
Common stock dividends (3,125,798) (3,055,339) 
Issuance of stock: 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan optional cash 102,483 166,486 
Dividends reinvested by stockholders 385,169 362,536 
Retirement Savings Plan 588,794 574,632 
Conversion of debentures 205,663 113,834 

Purchase of treasury stock (193,625) 
Net repayment under line of credit agreements (3,515,258) (9,400,000) 
Repayment of long-term debt (1,584,000) (1,761,380) 

Net cash used by financing activities (7,136,572) (1 2,999,231 ) 

(84,621 ) Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period 3,108,501 2,458,276 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $ 10,292,191 $ 2,373,655 

7,183,690 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

June 30, December 31, 

Assets 2004 2003 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 189,999,737 3 186,661,469 
Propane 36,843,142 35,577,104 
Advanced information sewices 1,431,674 1,396,595 
Water services 750,947 762,383 

8,840,050 8,796,305 Other plant 

Total property, plant and equipment 237,865,550 233,193,856 
Plus: Construction work in progress 2,224,284 1,724,721 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (69,873,829) (67,046,318) 

Net property, plant and equipment 170,216,005 167,872,259 

Investments 341,602 386,710 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 10,292,191 3,108,50 1 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectibles 

18,577,898 26,191,845 
Accrued revenue 1,272,668 4.497,752 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 987,460 923,556 
Appliance and other inventory, at FIFO 143,106 173,044 

of $698,078 and $659,047, respectively) 

Propane inventory, at average cost 
Storage gas prepayments 
Underrecovered purchased gas costs 

5,222.715 3,387,535 
3,402.343 4,622,601 

660,601 
Income taxes receivable 489,84 1 
Deferred income taxes receivable 79,685 
Prepaid expenses 1,763,805 2,069,988 
Other current assets 71 3,957 768,958 

Total current assets 42,455,828 46,894,222 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 

Environmental regulatory assets 316,414 353,092 
364,088 Environmental expenditures 101,142 

Goodwill, net 674,451 674,451 
Other intangible assets, net 297,597 305,213 
Long-term receivables 1,543,811 1,637,998 
Other regulatory assets 1,408,683 1,693,401 
Other deferred charges 1,011,032 983,230 

Total deferred charges and other assets 5,353,130 6,011,473 

Total Assets $ 218,366,565 $ 221,164,664 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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June 30, December 31, 

Capitalization and Liabilities 2004 2003 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equity 

Common Stock, par value S.4867 per share; 
(authorized 12,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 
5,734,853 and 5,660,594 shares, respectively) $ 2,790,720 $ 2,754,748 
Additional paid-in capital 35,856,549 34,176,361 
Retained earnings 39,186,041 36,008,246 
Treasury stock (193,625) 

Total stockholders' equity 77,639,685 72,939,355 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 68,209,546 69,415,545 

Total capitalization 145,849,231 142,354,900 

Current Liabil it ies 
Current portion of long-term debt 3,287,091 3,665,091 

Short-term borrowing 3,515,258 
Accounts payable 15,297,436 21,997,413 
Refunds payable to customers 443,185 206,582 

Customer deposits 1,969,981 2,008,379 

Accrued interest 1,796,991 652,367 

Dividends payable 1,604,427 1,556,631 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 84,918 
Deferred income taxes payable 119,814 

Accrued Compensation 1,921,388 3,266,072 
Other accrued liabilities 2,152,843 1,657,523 

Total current liabilities 30,678,005 38,645,130 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Income taxes payable 2,119,745 

Deferred income taxes 20,612,576 19,590,995 
Deferred investment tax credits 465,317 492,725 
Environmental liabilities 508,910 562,194 
Accrued pension costs 2,226,268 2,015,128 
Accrued asset removal cost 14,198,070 13,536,209 
Other liabilities 3,828,188 3,967,383 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 41,839,329 40,164,634 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 3) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 218,366,565 S 221,164,664 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Quarterly Financial Data 
The financial information for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Company” or “Chesapeake”) included 
herein is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Annual Report on Form IO-K; 
however, the year-end balance sheet data has been derived from audited financial statements. In the 
opinion of management, this financial information reflects normal recurring adjustments which are 
necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s interim results. In accordance with United States 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the Company’s management makes certain estimates and 
assumptions regarding: 1 ) reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 2) disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 3) reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Due to the seasonal nature of 
the Company’s business, there are substantial variations in the results of operations reported on a 
quarterly basis and, accordingly, results for any particular quarter may not give a true indication of results 
for the year. 

Chesapeake does not have any material components of comprehensive income that are required to be 
reported by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income.” 
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As reported on the Company’s December 31, 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company has 
restated its quarterly financial statements for prior periods in order to reflect the results of its Delaware and 
Maryland natural gas divisions on the “accrual” revenue recognition method rather than the “as billed” 
revenue recognition method. This change had an insignificant effect on the Company’s annual results for 
2003. Under the “as billed” method, revenues from customer sales are not recognized until the meter is 
read. Under the “accrual” method, at the end of each period, the amount of gas used is estimated and is 
recognized as revenue. The Company’s Florida division has historically used the “accrual” method in 
accordance with Florida Public Service Commission requirements. Prior to December 31, 2003, the 
Delaware and Maryland divisions used the “as billed” method to recognize revenues consistent with the 
rate-setting processes in those states. In order to consistently apply the “accrual” method, the Company 
met separately with the staffs of the Delaware and Maryland Public Service Commissions to determine the 
regulatory impact of the change. Having determined that there is little to no regulatory impact, the 
Company has conformed the revenue recognition method used in its Delaware and Maryland divisions to 
the method used by its Florida division. In order to provide comparable information, the Company has 
restated its 2003 quarterly interim financial statements to reflect the “accrual” revenue recognition method. 
Dollars are shown in thousands, except per share amounts. 

Selected Income Statement Information 
Operating Revenues 
Operating Income 
Income from Continuing Operations 
Net Income 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock 
Basic 

From Continuing Operations 
Net Income 

Diluted 
From Continuing Operations 
Net Income 

Selected Balance Sheet Information 
Assets 

Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Deferred income taxes 
Other regulatory assets 

Income taxes 
Liabilities 

Stockholders’ Equity 
Retained earnings 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, Impact of June 30, June 30, Impact of June 30, 
2003 Revenue 2003 2003 Revenue 2003 

As Previously Recognition As Previously Recognition 
( I )  Change As Restated ( l )  Change As Restated 

$32,237 
3,268 
1,177 
1,176 

$0.21 
$0.21 

$0.21 
$0.21 

($1,452) $30,785 
(406) 2,862 
(242) 935 
(242) 934 

($0.04) 
($0.04) 

($0.04) 
($0.04) 

$0.17 
$0.17 

$0.17 
$0.17 

June 30, Impact of June 30, 
2003 Revenue 2003 

As Previously Recognition 
Reported (1) Change As Restated 

$18,337 
4,023 
1,465 
2,118 

1,285 

$36.967 

$19.218 
3,572 

998 
2,127 

992 

$37,232 

$96,160 ($2.416) 
15.835 (662) 
7.967 (395) 
7,804 (395) 

$1.43 ($0.07) 
$1.40 ($0.07) 

$1.40 ($0.07) 
$1.37 ($0.07) 

$93,744 
15,173 
7,572 
7,409 

$1.36 
$1.33 

$1.33 
$1.30 

(’’ Operating Revenue, Operating Income and Income from Continuing Operations 
exclude the results of the operations discontinued in 2003 and include minor 
reclassifications to conform with the presentation of the 2004 results. 
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2. Calculation of Earnings Per Share 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
2003 2004 

2003 
2004 Restated Restated For the Period Ended June 30, 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share from 
Continuing Operations: 

Net income from continuing operations $ 611,518 $ 934,536 $ 6,385,052 $ 7,571,639 
Weighted average shares outstanding 5,728,158 5,599,525 5,708,294 5,580,620 

Continuing Operations $ 0 . 1 1 $  0 . 1 7 $  1 . 1 2 $  1.36 
Basic Earnings Per Share from 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share from 
Continuing Operations: 

Reconciliation of Numerator: 
Net Income from continuing operations - Basic $ 611,518 $ 934,536 $ 6,385,052 $ 7,571,639 - .  
Effect of 8.25% Convertible debentures * 70,421 80,457 

Adjusted numerator - Diluted $ 611,518 $ 934,536 $ 6,455,473 $ 7,652,096 

Reconciliation of Denominator: 
Weighted shares outstanding - Basic 5,728,158 5,599,525 5,708,294 5,580,620 
Effect of dilutive securities * 

Stock options 2,369 852 3,414 
Warrants 6,492 4,359 7,682 3,016 

Adjusted denominator - Diluted 5,737,019 5,604,736 5,885,257 5,773,663 

Continuing Operations $ 0.11 $ 0.17 $ 1.10 $ 1.33 

are not included in this calculation. 

8.25% Convertible debentures - 165,867 190,027 

Diluted Earnings Per Share from 

Amounts associated with securities resulting in an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share 

3. Commitments and Contingencies 
Environmental Matters 
In 2003, Chesapeake completed its responsibilities related to one former gas manufacturing plant site and 
is currently participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of two other former gas 
manufacturing plant sites. These sites are located in three different jurisdictions. The Company has 
accrued liabilities for these three sites referred to respectively as the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town 
Gas Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Company is currently in discussions with the 
Maryland Department of the Environment (“MDE”) regarding the possible responsibilities of the Company 
with respect to a fourth former gas manufacturing plant site in Cambridge, Maryland. 

Dover Gas Liqht Site 
The Dover Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site located in Dover, Delaware. On January 
15, 2004, the Company received a Certificate of Completion of Work from the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA) regarding this site. This concluded Chesapeake’s remedial 
action obligation related to this site and relieves Chesapeake from liability for future remediation at the 
site, unless previously unknown conditions are discovered at the site, or information previously unknown 
to the EPA is received that indicates the remedial action that has been taken is not sufficiently protective. 
These contingencies are standard and are required by the United States in all liability settlements. 

At June 30, 2004, the Company had accrued $10,000 for costs associated with the Dover Gas Light site 
and had recorded an associated regulatory asset for the same amount. Through June 30, 2004, the 
Company has incurred approximately $9.7 million in costs relating to environmental testing and remedial 
action studies at the site. Approximately $9.6 million has been recovered through June 2004 from other 
parties or through rates. 
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Salisbury Town Gas Liqht Site 
In cooperation with the MDE, the Company has completed an assessment of the Salisbury manufactured 
gas plant site, located in Salisbury, Maryland, which determined that there was localized ground-water 
contamination. During 1996, the Company completed construction and began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor 
Extraction (“ASiSVE”) remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been reporting the remediation and 
monitoring results to the MDE on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 2002, the MDE granted 
permission to permanently decommission the ASiSVE system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site 
well monitoring, except for one well that is being maintained for continued product monitoring and 
recovery. In November 2002, Chesapeake submitted a letter to the MDE requesting No Further Action 
(“NFA’) determination. In December 2002, the MDE recommended that the Company submit work plans 
to MDE and place deed restrictions on the property as conditions prior to receiving an NFA. The Company 
has completed the MDE recommended work plans and has executed the deed restrictions. During the 
third quarter of 2003 the Company submitted a revised request for the NFA. The MDE has not yet 
responded to the request. 

The Company has adjusted the liability with respect to the Salisbury Town Gas Light site to $7,000 at 
June 30, 2004. This amount is based on the estimated costs to perform limited product monitoring and 
recovery efforts and fulfill ongoing reporting requirements. A corresponding regulatory asset has been 
recorded, reflecting the Company’s belief that costs incurred will be recoverable in base rates. 

Through June 30, 2004, the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 million 
has been recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. The Company expects to recover the 
remaining costs through rates. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake has been working with 
the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) in assessing this coal gas site. In May 1996, 
the Company filed an Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction Pilot Study Work Plan (the “Work Plan”) for 
the Winter Haven site with the FDEP. The Work Plan described the Company’s proposal to undertake an 
AS/SVE pilot study to evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP, the Company filed a modified 
ASiSVE Pilot Study Work Plan, the description of the scope of work to complete the site assessment 
activities and a report describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In December 1998, 
the FDEP approved the AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan, which the Company completed during the third 
quarter of 1999. In February 2001, the Company filed a Remedial Action Plan (“RAP”) with the FDEP to 
address the contamination of the subsurface soil and ground-water in a portion of the site. The FDEP 
approved the RAP on May 4, 2001. Construction of the ASEVE system was completed in the fourth 
quarter of 2002 and the system is now fully operational. 

FDEP has indicated that the Company may be required to remediate sediments along the shoreline of 
Lake Shipp, immediately west of the Winter Haven site. Based on studies performed to date, the 
Company objects to FDEP’s suggestion that the sediments have been contaminated and require 
remediation. Early estimates by the Company’s environmental consultant indicate that some of the 
corrective measures discussed by FDEP may cost as much as $1 million. Given the Company’s view as to 
the absence of ecological effects, the Company believes that cost expenditures of this magnitude are 
unwarranted and plans to vigorously oppose any requirements that it undertake corrective measures in the 
offshore sediments. Chesapeake anticipates that it will be several years before this issue is resolved. At 
this time, the Company has not recorded a liability for sediment remediation. The outcome of this matter 
cannot be predicted at this time. 

The Company has accrued a liability of $492,000 as of June 30, 2004 for the Florida site. Through June 
30, 2004, the Company has incurred approximately $1.3 million of environmental costs associated with 
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the Florida site. At June 30, 2004 the Company had collected through rates $193,000 in excess of costs 
incurred. A regulatory asset of approximately $299,000, representing the uncollected portion of the 
estimated clean-up costs, has also been recorded. The Company expects to recover the remaining costs 
through rates. 

Other 
The Company is in discussions with the MDE regarding the possible responsibilities of the Company for 
remediation of a fourth gas manufacturing plant site located in Cambridge, Maryland. The outcome of this 
matter cannot be determined at this time. 

Other Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company's natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual 
commitments to purchase gas from various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In 
November 2003, the Company entered into a one-year contract with an energy marketing and risk 
management company to manage a portion of the Company's natural gas transportation and storage 
capacity. 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing 
subsidiary. The corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane purchases by the subsidiary, in 
the event of the subsidiary's default. The aggregate amount guaranteed at June 30, 2004 totaled $4.5 
million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates through February 2005. 

The Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary insurance company for $694,000, which expires 
June 1,2005. 

The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. The 
Company is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental 
agencies concerning rates. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these proceedings 
and claims will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or 
cash flows of the Company. 

Certain assets and liabilities of the Company are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 71. SFAS 
No. 71 provides guidance for public utilities and other regulated operations where the rates (prices) 
charged to customers are subject to regulatory review and approval. Regulators sometimes include costs 
in allowable costs in a period other than the period in which the costs would be charged to expense by an 
unregulated enterprise. That procedure can create assets, reduce assets, or create liabilities for the 
regulated enterprise. For general-purpose financial reporting, an incurred cost for which a regulator 
permits recovery in a future period is accounted for like an incurred cost that is reimbursable under a cost- 
reimbursement-type contract. If the Company were required to terminate the application of SFAS No. 71 
to its regulated operations, all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the income statement at that 
time. This would result in a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes, in an amount which could 
be material. 

4. Recent Authoritative Pronouncements on Financial Reporting and Accounting 
On January 12, 2004, the FASB released FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 106-1 "Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 
of 2003" (the "Act"). On May 19, 2004, the FASB released FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 106-2 which 
superseded SFAS 106-1. SFAS No. 106-2 provides guidance on the accounting for the effects of the Act 
and requires certain disclosures regarding the effect of the federal subsidy provided by the Act. It is 
effective for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15,2004. Adoption of SFAS No. 106-2 
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's post-retirement benefit obligation. 
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The Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) of the FASB issued EITF No. 03-6 on February 9, 2004. It 
requires that earnings used to calculate earnings per share be allocated between common shareholders 
and other securities holders based on their respective rights to receive dividends. This requirement was 
effective for the second quarter of 2004. It had no impact on the Company’s calculation of earnings per 
share. 

5. Segment Information 
Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its 
business around differences in products or services and the operating results of each segment are 
regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about 
resources and to assess performance. The following table presents information about the Company’s 
reportable segments. Results exclude discontinued operations. 

Six Months Ended Three Months Ended 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2003 2003 

Operating Revenues, Unaffi l iated Customers 

Restated 2004 Restated 2004 

Natural gas distribution and transmlsslon $ 25,101,267 $ 22,064,115 $ 67,402,252 $ 61,545,956 
Propane 5,754,405 5,537,407 24,214.662 25,784,434 
Advanced information services 3,437.325 3,185,153 6,438,443 6,418,571 
Other (1,753) (4,524) 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers $ 34,292,997 $ 30,784,922 $ 98,055,357 $ 93,744,437 

lntersegment Revenues 11’ 

Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 35,004 $ 61,727 $ 95.991 $ 101,766 
Advanced information services 13,570 30,190 22,587 68,024 
Other 168,686 176,903 338,132 357,094 

Total intersegrnent revenues $ 217,260 $ 268,820 $ 456,710 $ 526,884 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 2,696,914 $ 2,993.220 $ 9,914,667 $ 10,273,874 
Propane (881,576) (390,032) 2,440,082 4,495,450 
Advanced information services 259,750 164.301 331,835 226,634 
Other 87.706 94.028 175.516 176,738 

Total $ 2.162.794 $ 2.861.517 $ 12.862.100 $ 15.172 696 

‘l’  All significant intersegrnent revenues are billed at market rates and have been 
eliminated from consolidated revenues. 

June 30, December 31, 
2004 2003 

Identif iable Assets 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 158,763,569 $ 169,665,930 
Propane 38,659,073 38,359,251 
Advanced information services 2.912.282 2,912,733 
Other 17,080,992 7,791,796 

Total identifiable assets $ 217,415,916 $ 218,929,710 

The Company’s operations are all domestic. The advanced information services segment has infrequent 
transactions with foreign companies, located primarily in Canada, that are denominated and paid in U.S. 
dollars. These transactions are immaterial to the consolidated revenues. 
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6. Discontinued Operations 
The following table presents the balance sheet accounts for discontinued operations. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation - Discontinued Operations 

Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

Assets 
June 30, December 31, 
2004 2003 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment $ 750,947 $ 762,383 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (31 9,127) (326,792) 

Net property, plant and equipment 431,820 435,591 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 19.903 1,437,821 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectibles 

of $1,619 and $5,346, respectively) 217,184 273,799 
Appliance and other inventory, at FIFO 95,594 99,839 
Deferred income taxes receivable 20,725 20,725 
Prepaid expenses 95,405 110,175 

Total current assets 448,811 1,942,359 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Other intangible assets, net 70,018 70,018 
Deferred income taxes receivable 125,369 150,847 

Total deferred charges and other assets 195,387 220,865 

Total Assets $ 1.076.018 $ 2.598.815 

Stockholders' Equity and Liabilities 

Stockholders' Equity 
Common Stock $ 51,010 $ 51,010 
Additional paid-in capital 3,914,783 3,914,783 
Retained deficits (6,386,352) (5,271,164) 

Total stockholders' equity (2,420,559) (1,305,371) 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Due to parent company 
Customer deposits 
Income taxes payable 
Other accrued liabilities 

16,684 67,303 
3,252,016 3,558,434 

9,342 11,403 
159,556 192,290 
58.979 74.756 

Total current liabilities 3,496,577 3,904,186 

Total Stockholders' Equity and Liabilities $ 1.076.018 $ 2.598.815 
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During 2003, the Company sold the assets of six of its seven water services businesses. The Company 
expects to dispose of the remaining operation, located in Stuart, Florida, during 2004. The assets are 
recorded at their estimated fair value. Results for all the water dealerships were reclassified to 
discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of 
Long-Lived Assets." The results of the water companies' operations for all periods presented in the 
consolidated income statements have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax. 

7. Employee Benefit Plans 
Net periodic benefit costs for the defined benefit pension plan, the executive excess benefit plan and other 
post-retirement benefits are shown below: 

Defined Benefit Executive Excess Other Post-Retirement 
Pension Plan Benefit Plan Benefits 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 
Service Cost $ 84,690 5 81,341 $ 23,851 $ 26.970 $ 1,315 $ 1,284 
Interest Cost 176,727 171,060 20.597 20,010 22.042 21,330 
Expected return on plan assets (235,889) (196,119) 
Amortization of transition amount (3.776) (3,776) 6 ,965  6 , 5 6 5  
Amortization of prior service cost (1.175) (1 ,175)  697 697 
Amortization of net (gain) loss 4.479 4,670 (3,752) 16 ,568  
Net periodic benefit cost $ 20,577 $ 51,331 $ 49,624 $ 52,347 $ 26,570 $ 46,147 

Defined Benefit Executive Excess Other Post-Retirement 
Pension Plan Benefit Plan Benefits 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 
Service Cost $ 165,379 $ 162,683 $ 52,438 $ 53,535 $ 2,677 $ 2,565 
Interest Cost 353,454 342,120 41.502 40,020 43,442 42,660 
Expected return on plan assets (471,778) (392,238) 
Amortization of transition amount (7.552) (7,552) 13,930 13,930 
Amortization of prior service cost (2,350) (2,350) 1,394 1 ,394  
Amortization of net (gain) loss 8,274 9,335 39.450 33.136 
Net periodic benefit cost $ 41,153 $ 102,663 $ 103,608 $ 104,692 $ 99.495 $ 92,295 

As disclosed in the December 31,2003 financial statements, no contributions are expected to be required 
in 2004 for the defined benefit pension plan. The executive excess benefit plan and other post-retirement 
benefit plans are unfunded. Cash benefits paid under the executive excess plan for the first six months of 
2004 were $1 2,550. Benefits paid under other post-retirement benefits are primarily for medical claims 
and were $87,000 for the first six months of 2004. 

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Business Description 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the "Company" or "Chesapeake") is a diversified utility company engaged in 
natural gas distribution and transmission, propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information 
services and other related businesses. 

The Company's strategy is to grow earnings from a stable utility foundation by investing in related businesses 
and services that provide opportunities for higher, unregulated returns. This growth strategy includes 
acquisitions and investments in unregulated businesses as well as the continued investment and expansion of 
the Company's utility operations that provide the stable base of earnings. The Company continually 
reevaluates its investments to ensure that they are consistent with its strategy and the goal of enhancing 
shareholder value. The Company's unregulated businesses and services currently include propane distribution 
and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other related businesses. 

Chesapeake sold the assets and operations of six of its seven water dealerships during 2003. The Company 
expects to dispose of the remaining operation during 2004. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The Company's capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally 
attributable to its construction program (described below) and the retirement of outstanding debt. The 
Company relies on cash generated by operations and short-term borrowing to meet normal working capital 
requirements and to finance, temporarily, capital expenditures. During the first six months of 2004, net cash 
provided by operating activities, net cash used by investing activities and net cash used by financing activities 
were approximately $20.6 million, $6.3 million and $7.1 million, respectively. 

The Board of Directors has authorized the Company to borrow up to $35.0 million of short-term debt from 
various banks and trust companies. As of June 30,2004, Chesapeake had five unsecured bank lines of credit 
with three financial institutions, totaling $65.0 million, for short-term cash needs to meet seasonal working 
capital requirements and to fund, temporarily, portions of its capital expenditures. Two of the bank lines, 
totaling $1 5.0 million, are committed. The remaining three lines are subject to the banks' availability of funds. 
In the first six months of 2004, cash provided by operations was adequate to fund capital expenditures and 
repay the $3.5 million of short-term debt that was outstanding at December 31, 2003. At June 30, 2004, the 
Company had outstanding an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $694,000 issued to one of the 
Company's insurance providers. The letter of credit reduced the available borrowing under the short-term 
lines. 

During the six-month periods ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, capital expenditures were approximately $6.6 
million and $4.6 million, respectively. Chesapeake has budgeted $20.8 million for capital expenditures during 
2004. This amount includes $15.8 million for natural gas distribution and transmission, $4.1 million for propane 
distribution and marketing, $285,000 for advanced information services and $61 4,000 for other operations. 
The natural gas distribution and transmission expenditures are for expansion and improvement of facilities. 
The propane expenditures are to support customer growth and for the replacement of equipment. The 
advanced information services expenditures are for computer hardware, software and related equipment. The 
other operations budget includes general plant, computer software and hardware expenditures. Financing for 
the capital expenditure program for the balance of 2004 is expected to be provided from cash on hand, short- 
term borrowing and cash provided by operating activities. The capital expenditure program is subject to 
continual review and modification. Actual capital requirements may vary from the above estimates due to a 
number of factors including acquisition opportunities, changing economic conditions, customer growth in 
existing areas, regulation, availability of capital and new growth opportunities. 

The Company has budgeted $1 70,000 for capital expenditures in 2004 related to environmental remediation 
projects, and expects to make additional expenditures in future years. Management does not expect any such 
expenditures or financing to have a material adverse effect on the financial position or capital resources of the 
Company (see Note 3 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements). 

As of June 30,2004 common equity represented 53.2 percent of total capitalization, compared to 51.2 percent 
as of December 31, 2003. Combining short-term financing with total capitalization, the equity component 
would have been 52.1 percent and 48.8 percent for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company remains 
committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings in order to provide the financial 
flexibility needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitment, along with adequate and 
timely rate relief for the Company's regulated operations, is intended to ensure that the Company will be able 
to attract capital from outside sources at a reasonable cost. 

Interest expense for the first six months of 2004 decreased approximately $240,000, or 8 percent, versus the 
same period in 2003. Interest on long-term debt accounted for $176,000 of the decrease. The average long- 
term debt balance in the first six months of 2004 was $72.0 million with an average interest rate of 7.2 percent, 
compared to $76.0 million with an average interest rate of 7.2 percent in the first six months of 2003. 
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Additionally, interest on short-term debt decreased $46,000 during the first half of 2004, compared to the first 
half of 2003. This decrease was the result of a decline in the average balance of short-term debt from $3.8 
million in the first six months of 2003 to $298,000 for the first six months of 2004. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations 
As noted in the Company's 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the only off-balance sheet arrangements are 
corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary and a letter of credit 
issued to its main insurance carrier. See Note 3 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for 
further information. 

There have been no material changes in the contractual obligations presented in the Company's 2003 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K, except for commodity purchase obligations and forward contracts entered into in the 
ordinary course of the Company's business. Below is a summary of the commodity and forward contract 
obligations at June 30, 2004. None of the commodity or forward contracts extend beyond 2005. 

Payments Due by Period 
Contractual Obligations: 2004 2005 Total 
Commodities ( ' I  $ 1,877,446 $ 501,000 $ 2,378,446 
Forward contracts - propane ( 2 )  5,363,707 5,363,707 
Total % 7,241,153 $ 501,000 $ 7,742,153 

(') In addition to the obligations noted above, the natural gas distribution and 
propane distribution operations have agreements with commodity suppliers that 
have provisions which allow the Company to reduce or eliminate the quantities 
purchased. There are no monetary penalties for reducing the amounts 
purchased; however, the propane contracts allow the suppliers to reduce the 
amounts available in the winter season if the Company does not purchase 
specified amounts during the summer season. Under these contracts, the 
commodity prices will fluctuate with a market-based index. 
The Company has also entered into forward and future sale contracts of 
$8,041 ,I 69. See the "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market 
Risk" section of the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations portion of this report for further information. 
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Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2004 

Consolidated Overview 
The Company earned net income from continuing operations of $612,000 or $0.1 1 per share, for the second 
quarter of 2004, a decline of $323,000 compared to net income from continuing operations of $935,000, or 
$0.1 7 per share for the corresponding period in 2003. The decrease in earnings principally reflects a decline in 
margins and operating income for the Company’s Delmarva natural gas and propane operations caused by 
warmer temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula. Management estimates that the warmer weather reduced 
margins and operating income by $677,000 for the quarter. Gross margin increases related to residential 
customer growth for natural gas distribution and natural gas transmission’s firm transportation services 
partially offset this decline. Operating expenses were also up as a result of customer growth. 

See Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the restatement that was 
made in the fourth quarter of 2003. Additional information can also be found in the Company’s report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31,2003. 

2003 
Restated Chanae For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Operating Income 
Natural Gas Distribution & Transmission 
Propane 
Advanced Information Services 

$ 2,696,914 $ 2,993,220 $ (296,306) 
(881,576) (390,032) (491,544) 
259,750 164,301 95,449 

Other 87,706 94,028 (6,322) 
Operating Income 2,162,794 2,861,517 (698,723) 

Other Income 74,217 34,257 39,960 
Interest Charges 1,328,231 1,429,005 (100,774) 
Income Taxes 297,262 532,233 (234,971 ) 

Net Income from Continuing Operations !$ 611,518 $ 934,536 $ (323,018) 

The following discussions of segment results include use of the term 'brass margin.“ Gross margin is 
determined by deducting the cost of sales from operating revenue. Cost of sales includes the purchased gas 
cost for the natural gas and propane segments and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue-producing 
activities for advanced information services segment. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to 
operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (“GAAP’). Chesapeake believes that gross margin, although a non-GAAP measure, is useful and 
meaningful to investors as a basis for making investment decisions. It provides investors with information that 
demonstrates the profitability achieved by the Company under its allowed rates for regulated operations and 
under its competitive pricing structure for non-regulated segments. Chesapeake’s managemenf uses gross 
margin in measuring certain performance goals and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin 
information in its public filings and presentafions. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different 
manner. 
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Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission 
The natural gas distribution and transmission segment earned operating income of $2.7 million for the second 
quarter of 2004 compared to $3.0 million for the corresponding period last year, a decrease of $296,000. 

2003 
Restated Change For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Revenue $25,136,271 $22,125,842 $ 3,010,429 
Cost of gas 15,111,043 12,365,393 2,745,650 
Gross margin 10,025,228 9,760,449 264,779 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

5,216,174 4,752,182 463,992 
1,359,816 1,315,830 43,986 

Other taxes 752,324 699,217 53,107 
Other operating expenses 7,328,314 6,767,229 561,085 
Total Operating Income 5 2,696,914 $ 2,993,220 $ (296,306) 

Gross margins for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions decreased $270,000 from 2003. This was 
caused primarily by a temperature decline of 31 percent (194 heating degree-days) for the second quarter of 
2004 compared to the second quarter of 2003. Management estimates that warmer weather negatively 
impacted 2004 margins by $349,000. In the second quarter of 2004, temperatures were 14 percent warmer 
(68 heating degree-days) than the IO-year average. The Company estimates that, on an annual basis, for 
each heating degree-day variance from the IO-year average, the gross margin on gas sales changes by 
$1,800. The decline due to temperatures was partially offset by customer growth. Delaware and Maryland 
experienced an increase of 2,211 residential customers, or 7 percent, in the second quarter of 2004 compared 
to the second quarter of 2003. The increase was primarily the result of new housing construction. The 
Company estimates that each residential customer added contributes $372 annually to gross margin and 
requires an additional cost of $104 for operations and maintenance expenses. Gross margin for the Florida 
operations increased by $239,000, due to an increase of 6.8 percent in the number of residential customers 
and growth in the industrial gross margin. The natural gas transmission gross margin increased by $292,000 
resulting from an increase in transportation services. Other operating expenses, primarily payroll, pension, 
insurance and customer service costs, were higher primarily as a result of customer growth. Depreciation was 
also higher, reflecting the continued investment in plant assets. 

Propane 
During the second quarter of 2004, the propane segment experienced a decrease of $492,000 in operating 
income compared to the second quarter of 2003, reflecting a gross margin decrease of $370,000 and an 
increase of $121,000 in operating expenses. 

Change For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 
Revenue $ 5,754,405 $ 5,537,407 $ 216,998 
Cost of sales 3,258,284 2,671,033 587,251 
Gross margin 2,496,121 2,866,374 (370,253) 

159,896 2,854.614 2,694,718 
370,935 373,461 (2,526) 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 
Other taxes 152,148 188,227 (36,079) 

Other operating expenses 3,377,697 3,256,406 121,291 
Total Operating Loss $ (881,576) $ (390,032) $ (491,544) 

The Delmarva distribution operations experienced a drop in gross margin of $393,000. Management estimates 
that warmer weather negatively impacted margins by $328,000. Temperatures in the second quarter of 2004 
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were 31 percent warmer than the second quarter of 2003 (194 heating degree-days) and 14 percent warmer 
than the IO-year average (68 heating degree-days). The Company estimates that on an annual basis, gross 
margin changes by $1,691 for each heating degree-day. The Florida propane distribution operations 
experienced an increase in operating losses of $26,000. An increase of $20,000 in gross margin was more 
than offset by an increase in other operating expenses, primarily sales and marketing. 

The Company's propane wholesale marketing operation increased operating income $1 8,000 over the second 
quarter of 2003. Gross margins were essentially the same; however, other operating expenses were lower. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services business contributed operating income of $260,000 for the second quarter 
of 2004, an increase of $95,000 or 58 percent over the second quarter of last year. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 Change 
Revenue $ 3,450,895 $ 3,215,343 $ 235,552 
Cost of sales 1,864,710 1,870,909 (6,199) 
Gross margin 1,586,185 1,344,434 241,751 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

1,176,368 
34,530 

997,277 
48,758 

179,091 
(14,228) 

Other taxes 1 15,537 134,098 (18,561) 
146,302 Other operating expenses 1,326,435 1,180,133 

Total Operating Income $ 259,750 $ 164,301 $ 95,449 

The advanced information services segment has increased its revenue primarily due to increased software 
sales. The cost of sales did not rise in proportion because all development costs associated with internally- 
developed software products are expensed as incurred. Additionally, compensation arrangements with the 
Company's consultants have been revised to include lower base pay, but higher incentive compensation 
based on productive hours. Operations and maintenance costs increased primarily due to software 
development costs to enhance a software product and increased incentive compensation for administrative 
and management employees. 
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Other Business Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations and eliminating entries contributed operating income of $88,000 for the second quarter of 
2004 compared to income of $94,000 for the second quarter of last year. Other operations consist primarily of 
subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Company subsidiaries. Eliminations are entries required to 
eliminate activities between business segments from the consolidated results. 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 Change 
Revenue $ 168,686 $ 175,150 $ (6,464) 
Cost of sales 
Gross margin 168,686 175,150 (6,464) 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 

20,399 
53,929 

12,902 
59,529 

7,497 
(5,600) 

Other taxes 14,691 13,405 1,286 
Other operating expenses 89,019 85,836 3,183 
Operating Income - Other 79,667 89,314 (9,647) 
Operating Income - Eliminations 8,039 4,714 3,325 
Total Operating Income $ 87,706 $ 94,028 $ (6,322) 

Discontinued Operations 
In 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold 
during 2003. The Company expects to dispose of the remaining operation during 2004. Accordingly, the 
assets are recorded at their fair value. The results of the water companies' operations for all periods presented 
in the consolidated income statements, have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of 
tax. For the second quarter of 2004 they earned income of $19,000, compared to an immaterial loss in the 
second quarter of 2003. 

Income Taxes 
The Company's income tax cost for the second quarter of 2004 was lower than 2003 due to lower income. The 
federal income tax rate was consistent from year to year. 

Interest Expense 
Interest for the second quarter of 2004 decreased approximately $101,000, or 7 percent, over the same period 
in 2003. The decrease resulted from the scheduled repayments of principal of long-term debt and lower short- 
term borrowing. 

The average long-term debt balance in the second quarter of 2004 was $72.0 million with an average interest 
rate of 7.2 percent, compared to $76.0 million with an average interest rate of 7.3 percent in the second 
quarter of 2003. The Company did not borrow against its short-term credit facilities during the second quarter 
of 2004. In the second quarter of 2003 the average borrowing balance for short-term debt was $337,000. 
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Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Consolidated Overview 
The Company earned income from continuing operations of $6.4 million or $1 .I 0 per share, for the first six 
months of 2004, a decline of $1.2 million compared to income from continuing operations of $7.6 million, or 
$1.33 per share for the corresponding period in 2003. The decrease in earnings principally reflects a decline in 
operating income caused by warmer temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula. Management estimates that 
warmer weather negatively impacted margins by $1 . I  million. The natural gas segment was able to partially 
offset the impact of warmer weather through customer growth. 

See Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the restatement that 
was made in the fourth quarter of 2003. Additional information can also be found in the Company's report 
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. 

2003 
Restated Change For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 

Operating Income 
Natural Gas Distribution & Transmission $ 9,914,667 $ 10,273,874 5 (359,207) 
Propane 2,440,082 4,495,450 (2,055,368) 
Advanced Information Services 331,835 226,634 105,201 

Operating Income 12,862,100 15,172,696 (2,310,596) 
Other & eliminations 17531 6 176,738 (1,222) 

Other Income 176,694 88,157 88,537 
Interest Charges 2,654,997 2,894,855 (239,858) 
Income Taxes 3,998,745 4,794,359 (795,614) 

Net Income from Continuing Operations $ 6,385,052 $ 7,571,639 $ (1,186,587) 

The following discussions of segment results include use of the term 'Qross margin." Gross margin is 
defermined by deducting the cost of sales from operating revenue. Cost of sales includes the purchased gas 
cost for the natural gas and propane segments and the cost of labor spent on direct revenue-producing 
activities for advanced information services segment. Gross margin should not be considered an alternative to 
operating income or net income, which are determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (''GAAP'?. Chesapeake believes that gross margin, although a non-GAAP measure, is useful and 
meaningful to investors as a basis for making investment decisions. It provides investors with information that 
demonstrates the profitability achieved by the Company under its allowed rates for regulated operations and 
under its competitive pricing structure for non-regulated segments. Chesapeake's management uses gross 
margin in measuring certain performance goals and has historically analyzed and reported gross margin 
information in its public filings and presentations. Other companies may calculate gross margin in a different 
manner. 
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Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission 
The natural gas distribution and transmission segment earned operating income of $9.9 million for the first 
six months of 2004 compared to $10.3 million for the corresponding period last year, a decrease of 
$359,000. 

2003 
Restated Change For the Six Months Ended June 30, 

Revenue $ 67,498,243 $ 61,647,722 $ 5,850,521 

2004 

Cost of gas 42,529,942 37,613,199 4,916,743 
Gross margin 24,968,301 24,034,523 933,778 

10,739,027 9,689,101 1,049,926 
2,703,097 2.563.832 139.265 

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 
Other taxes 1,611,510 1,507,716 103,794 

Other operating expenses 15,053,634 13,760,649 1,292,985 
Total Operating Income $ 9,914,667 $ 10,273,874 $ (359,207) 

Gross margin for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions was essentially even with 2003 due to an 
increase in customers that offset the negative impact of warmer temperatures. Delaware and Maryland 
experienced an increase of 2,144 residential customers, or 6.7 percent, in the first half of 2004 compared to 
2003. The increase was primarily the result of new housing construction. The Company estimates that each 
residential customer added contributes $372 annually to gross margin and requires an additional cost of $104 
for operations and maintenance expenses. This growth offset a temperature decline of 10 percent (307 
heating degree-days) for the first six months of 2004 compared to the same period of 2003. Management 
estimates that warmer temperatures negatively impacted margins by $553,000. Temperatures were 4 percent 
colder (1 14 heating degree-days) than the IO-year average. The Company estimates that, on an annual basis, 
each heating degree-day changes gross margin on gas sales by $1,800. 

Gross margin for the Florida distribution operations increased by $509,000, due to an increase of 6 percent in 
the number of residential customers and growth in the industrial gross margin. The natural gas transmission 
gross margin increased by $424,000. Firm transportation services increased $293,000 due to firm customers 
adding capacity. Additionally, interruptible transportation increased $1 30,000 over 2003. 

The gross margin increases were offset by higher operating expenses primarily due to customer growth. 
Payroll, benefits and insurance costs were up. Depreciation was also higher, reflecting the continued 
investment in plant assets. 
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Propane 
During the first six months of 2004, the propane segment experienced a decrease of $2.1 million in operating 
income compared to the first half of 2003, reflecting a gross margin decrease of $2.2 million that was partially 
offset by a $123,000 decrease in operating expenses. 

For t h e  Six Months Ended J u n e  30, 2004 2003 Change  
Revenue $ 24,214,662 $ 25,784,434 $ (1,569,772) 
Cost of sales 14,564,816 13,956,129 608,687 
Gross margin 9,649,846 11,828,305 (2,178,459) 

6,037,163 6,156,925 (1 19,762) 
753,962 758,365 (4,403) 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
Depreciation & amortization 
Other taxes 418,639 417,565 1,074 

Other operating expenses 7,209,764 7,332,855 (1 23,091 ) 
Total Operating Income $ 2,440,082 $ 4,495,450 $ (2,055,368) 

The Delmarva distribution operations experienced a drop in gross margin of $1 .I million, caused primarily by 
warmer temperatures. Retail volumes sold decreased 837,000 gallons, or 6 percent for the first six months of 
2004 compared to 2003. Management estimates that the negative impact of weather on gross margin was 
$519,000. Temperatures in the first six months of 2004 were 10 percent warmer than the first six months of 
2003 (307 heating degree-days) but 4 percent colder than the IO-year average (1 14 heating degree-days). 
The Company estimates that on an annual basis, each heating degree-day generates gross margin of $1,691. 
Additionally, there was a reduction caused by the closing of a poultry processing plant and by an outbreak of 
avian influenza on the Delmarva Peninsula. The Florida propane distribution operations experienced a 
decrease in gross margin of $162,000. The decrease was due primarily to a one-time service project that 
contributed $1 92,000 to the 2003 gross margin. 

The Company's propane wholesale marketing operation experienced a decrease in gross margin of $921,000 
and a decrease of $284,000 in operating expenses, leading to a reduction of $637,000 in operating income. 
Results for the second quarter were consistent for 2004 and 2003; however, lower wholesale price volatility 
reduced trading opportunities during the first quarter of 2004 compared to 2003. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services business contributed operating income of $332,000 for the first six months 
of 2004 compared to $227,000 for the first six months of last year, an increase of $105,000. 

For t h e  Six Months Ended J u n e  30, 2004 2003 Change  
Revenue $ 6,461,030 $ 6,486,595 $ (25,565) 
Cost of sales 3,543,487 3,762,162 (21 8,675) 
Gross margin 2,917,543 2,724,433 193,110 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 
DeDreciation & amortization 

2,230,196 2,108,123 122,073 
73,675 98,871 (25,196) 

Other taxes 281,837 290,805 (8,968) 
Other operating expenses 2,585,708 2,497,799 87,909 
Total Operating Income $ 331,835 $ 226,634 $ 105,201 

During the first half of 2004 revenues for the advanced information services operations remained consistent 
with 2003; however, a reduction in the cost of sales resulted in increased gross margins. The reduced cost of 
sales reflects a staff reduction that reduced non-billable hours and a change in compensation arrangements 

25 



with the Company’s consultants that reduced base pay and increased incentive compensation that is based on 
billable hours worked. Operations expenses increased as a result of increases in incentive compensation and 
development work to enhance a software product. 

Other Business Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations and eliminating entries contributed operating income of $176,000 for the first six months of 
2004 compared to income of $177,000 for the first six months of last year. Other operations consist primarily of 
subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Company subsidiaries. Eliminations are entries required to 
eliminate activities between business segments from the consolidated results. 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 2003 Change 
Revenue $ 338,132 $ 352,570 $ (14,438) 
Cost of sales 
Gross margin 338,132 352,570 (14,438) 

Other Operating Expenses: 
Operations & maintenance 41,648 40,332 1,316 
Depreciation & amortization 107,139 11 9,059 (1 1,920) 
Other taxes 29,907 27,605 2,302 

Other operating expenses 178,694 186,996 (8,302) 
Operating Income - Other 159,438 165,574 (6,136) 
Operating Income - Eliminations 16,078 11,164 4,914 
Total Operating Income $ 175,516 $ 176,738 $ (1,222) 

Discontinued Operations 
In 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold 
during 2003. The Company expects to dispose of the remaining operation during 2004. Accordingly, the 
assets are recorded at their fair value. The results of the water companies’ operations for all periods presented 
in the consolidated income statements, have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of 
tax. For the first six months of 2004 they experienced an operating loss of $15,000, compared to a loss of 
$163,000 for the same period in 2003. 

Income Taxes 
The Company’s income tax cost for the six months ended June 30,2004 was lower than 2003 due to lower 
income. The federal income tax rate was consistent from year to year. 

Interest Expense 
Interest for the first half of 2004 decreased approximately $240,000, or 8 percent, over the same period in 
2003. The decrease resulted from the scheduled repayments of principal of long-term debt and lower short- 
term borrowing. 

The average long-term debt balance for the first six months of 2004 was $72.0 million with an average 
interest rate of 7.2 percent, compared to $76.0 million with an average interest rate of 7.2 percent for the 
same period in 2003. The average short-term borrowing for the first half of 2004 was $298,000 compared 
to $3.8 million for 2003. 

Environmental Matters 
As more fully described in Note 3 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, Chesapeake has 
completed its responsibilities related to one former gas manufacturing plant site and is currently participating in 
the investigation, assessment or remediation of two other former gas manufacturing plant sites. The Company 
continues to work with federal and state environmental agencies to assess the environmental impact and 
explore options for corrective action at these sites. The Company believes that future costs associated with 
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these sites will be recoverable in rates or through sharing arrangements with, or contributions by, other 
responsible parties. The Company is in discussions with the Maryland Department of the Environment 
regarding a fourth former gas manufacturing plant site located in Cambridge, Maryland. The outcome of this 
matter cannot be determined at this time. 

OTHER MATTERS 

Regulatory Matters 
The Delaware, Maryland and Florida Public Service Commissions regulate the Company's natural gas 
distribution operations, while its natural gas transmission operation is regulated by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission ("FERC"). 

On April 1, 2003, Eastern Shore filed an application before the FERC requesting authorization for the 
following: (1) Phase I - upgrade of Parkesburg Metering & Regulating Station; (2) Phase II - construct and 
operate 2.7 miles of 16-inch mainline looping in Pennsylvania; and (3) Phase Ill - construct and operate 3.0 
miles of 16-inch mainline looping and a pressure control station in Delaware. The purpose of this construction 
is to enable Eastern Shore to provide additional daily firm transportation capacity of 15,100 dekatherms on 
Eastern Shore's system phased in over a three-year period commencing November 1, 2003. Phase I of this 
expansion was completed and placed into service on November 1, 2003. Bids for Phase II construction were 
received and a contract awarded. Construction for Phase II started in July 2004 with a projected completion 
and in-service date of November 2004. 

During October 2002, Eastern Shore filed an application with the FERC for recovery of gas supply realignment 
costs associated with the implementation of FERC Order No. 636. The costs totaled $196,000 (including 
interest). The FERC has declined to review Eastern Shore's filing until it had first settled a related matter with 
another transmission company. The other transmission company submitted a filing on December 5, 2003. 
Eastern Shore will resubmit its transition cost recovery filing immediately upon learning of the FERC's 
approval. 

On December 16, 2003, Eastern Shore filed with the FERC revised tariff sheets to implement revisions to its 
Fuel Retention and Cash Out provisions. Fuel Retention refers to the in-kind reimbursement of natural gas by 
Eastern Shore's customers necessary to transport natural gas on Eastern Shore's pipeline. Such Fuel 
Retention is designed to reimburse Eastern Shore for the Gas Required for Operations ("GRO"), which 
consists of (1) gas used for compressor fuel and (2) gas otherwise used, lost or unaccounted for. Cash Out 
refers to the month-end process of resolving customer imbalances, that is, the difference, either positive or 
negative, between natural gas received by Eastern Shore for a customer's account and the natural gas 
delivered by Eastern Shore to that customer. Rather than carry such in-kind imbalances forward on a 
continuing basis, Eastern Shore's tariff permits it to buy or sell such imbalance gas to its customers, thus 
effectively eliminating any imbalance created through the month. These revisions went into effect on January 
15. 2004. 

The proposed tariff revisions permit Eastern Shore to incorporate its Deferred Gas Required for Operations 
amounts into the calculation of its annual Fuel Retention Percentage ("FRP") Adjustment and to implement a 
surcharge, effective July 1 of each year, to recover cash-out amounts. Deferred Gas Required for Operations 
is the difference between Eastern Shore's calculated fuel retention using its approved FRP and its actual fuel 
requirements resulting from actual operations in a given month. Such differences, either positive or negative, 
are determined each month during the determination period and become a component of Eastern Shore's 
prospective FRP. This calculation is effectively a "true-up'' to the fuel retained by Eastern Shore so it recovers 
no more and no less than its actual fuel requirements. Fuel Retention Percentage Adjustment is the annual 
establishment of Eastern Shore's new FRP to be effective July 1 of each year. The percentage adjustment is 
simply the difference between the current FRP in effect and the new FRP as proposed to be in effect. The 
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FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s revised tariff sheets on January 15, 2004, subject to certain revisions to 
clarify the tariff sheets. On January 30, 2004, Eastern Shore submitted the revised tariff sheets. 

Eastern Shore, on February 9, 2004, filed with the FERC a Plan and Schedule for Standards of Conduct 
Compliance as directed by the FERC’s Order No. 2004, issued on November 25, 2003. Such Standards of 
Conduct govern the relationship between transmissions providers such as Eastern Shore and their energy 
affiliates. 

Order No. 2004 revises and conforms the current gas and electric standards by broadening the definition of an 
energy affiliate covered by such standards of conduct and applies them uniformly to natural gas pipeline and 
electric transmission providers. Further, the standards will assure that transmission providers cannot extend 
their market power over transmission to other energy markets by giving their energy affiliates unduly 
preferential treatment. The standards also help ensure transmission providers offer service to all customers on 
a non-discriminatory basis. The deadline for compliance with the Standards of Conduct is September 1,2004. 
Numerous requests for clarifications and a rehearing have been submitted to FERC by other parties. At this 
time, there has been no change in the September 1, 2004 compliance deadline, Eastern Shore continues to 
monitor this closely and will react appropriately to any future rulings of the FERC. 

Eastern Shore is also following the FERC’s recent rulemaking pertaining to creditworthiness standards for 
interstate natural gas pipelines. Eastern Shore will evaluate its current tariff creditworthiness provisions and 
make any necessary revisions to conform to the FERC’s rules relating to such standards. 

On May 27, 2004 the FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s annual Interruptible Transportation (“IT) Revenue 
Sharing report. Eastern Shore refunded $1 19,595 to its customers in compliance with the IT revenue sharing 
provision detailed in the Stipulation and Agreement in Docket No. RP02-34-000 currently in effect. 

On May 28, 2004 the FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s annual GRO filing authorizing a new FRP to be made 
effective July 1, 2004. The new FRP is based on Eastern Shore’s actual GRO quantities attributable to 
system-wide operations for the twelve-month period ending April 30, 2004 plus the balance of $548,203 
accumulated in its Deferred GRO Account at March 31, 2004. 

On June 22, 2004 the FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s annual Cash Out filing authorizing a new Cash Out 
surcharge Of $0.0033 per dekatherm to be made effective July 1, 2004. The new Cash Out surcharge is 
designed to recover the under-recovered balance of $59,304 accumulated in its Cash Out account at March 
31, 2004. 

On November 19,2001, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida Public Service Commission (‘PSC”) 
for approval of certain transportation cost recovery rates. The Florida PSC approved the rates on January 24, 
2002, which provide for the recovery, over a two-year period, of the Florida division’s actual and projected non- 
recurring expenses incurred in the implementation of the transportation provisions of the tariff as approved in a 
November 2000 rate case. The Florida division filed a petition on February 4, 2004, to dispose of a minor 
under-recovery of the actual expenses incurred to implement the tariff provisions. The petition was approved 
by the Florida PSC at its March 23,2004 agenda conference. 

On November 5,2002, the Florida PSC authorized a pilot program underwhich the Florida division converted 
all remaining sales customers to transportation service and exited the gas merchant function. Implementation 
of Phase One of the Transitional Transportation Service (“TTS”) program was completed in November 2002, 
and the Florida division is now actively providing the administrative services as approved by the Florida PSC, 
including billing, collection service, payment tracking, non-pay disconnects, various account reports and 
related administrative activities. 
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On July 15, 2003, the Florida PSC approved a rate restructuring proposed by the Florida division. The 
restructuring created three new low volume rate classes, with customer charge levels that ensure that all 
customers receive benefits from the TTS program. 

On January 4, 2004, the Florida PSC authorized the Florida division to refund the remaining balance in its 
over-recovered purchased gas costs account, totaling $246,000, as a final step in its exit of the gas merchant 
function. The refund was completed in March 2004. 

On May 3, 2004, the Florida division filed its Conservation Program Cost Recovery True-up for the calendar 
year 2003 with the Florida PSC. The Florida PSC will audit the program’s revenues and expenditures and 
issue a report on its findings during the third quarter of 2004. 

Competition 
The Company’s natural gas operations compete with other forms of energy including electricity, oil and 
propane. The principal competitive factors are price, and to a lesser extent, accessibility. The Company’s 
natural gas distribution operations have several large volume industrial customers that have the capacity to 
use fuel oil as an alternative to natural gas. When oil prices decline, these interruptible customers convert to oil 
to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels in interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower relative to 
the price of natural gas. Oil prices, as well as the prices of electricity and other fuels are subject to fluctuation 
for a variety of reasons; therefore, future competitive conditions are not predictable. To address this 
uncertainty, the Company uses flexible pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales sides of its 
business to maximize sales volumes. As a result of the transmission business’ conversion to open access, this 
business has shifted from providing competitive sales service to providing transportation and contract storage 
services. 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida offer 
transportation services to certain industrial customers. In 2001, the Florida operation extended transportation 
service to commercial customers and, in 2002, to residential customers. With transportation service now 
available on the Company’s distribution systems, the Company is competing with third party suppliers to sell 
gas to industrial customers. As it relates to transportation services, the Company’s competitors include the 
interstate transmission company if the distribution customer is located close enough to the transmission 
company’s pipeline to make a connection economically feasible. The customers at risk are usually large 
volume commercial and industrial customers with the financial resources and capability to bypass the 
distribution operations in this manner. In certain situations, the distribution operations may adjust services and 
rates for these customers to retain their business. The Company expects to continue to expand the availability 
of transportation service to additional classes of distribution customers in the future. The Company established 
a natural gas sales and supply operation in Florida in 1994 to compete for customers eligible for transportation 
services. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their 
service territories, primarily on the basis of service and price, emphasizing reliability of service and 
responsiveness. Competition is generally from local outlets of national distribution companies and local 
businesses, because distributors located in close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. 
Propane competes primarily with electricity and heating oil as energy sources. Since natural gas has 
historically been less expensive than propane, propane is generally not distributed in geographic areas 
serviced by natural gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketers, many of which have 
significantly greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 
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The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors 
having substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition, changes in the 
advanced information services business are occurring rapidly, which could adversely impact the markets for 
the products and services offered by these businesses. This segment competes on the basis of technological 
expertise, reputation and price. 

Recent Pronouncements 
On January 12,2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Staff Position No. 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (”SFAS”) 106-1 “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements 
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003” (“the Act”). On May 
19,2004, the FASB released FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 106-2 which superseded SFAS 106-1, SFAS No. 
106-2 provides guidance on the accounting for the effects of the Act and requires certain disclosures regarding 
the effect of the federal subsidy provided by the Act. It is effective for the first interim or annual period 
beginning after June 15, 2004. Adoption of SFAS No. 106-2 is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company’s post-retirement benefit obligation. 

The Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) of the FASB issued EITF No. 03-6 on February 9, 2004. It requires 
that earnings used to calculate earnings per share be allocated between common shareholders and other 
securities holders based on their respective rights to receive dividends. This requirement was effective for the 
second quarter of 2004. It had no impact on the Company’s calculation of earnings per share, 

Inflation 
Inflation affects the cost of labor, products and services required for operations, maintenance and capital 
improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane prices 
are subject to rapid fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural gas prices are passed on to customers through the gas 
cost recovery mechanism in the Company’s tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its capital 
investments and returns, the Company seeks rate relief from regulatory commissions for regulated operations 
while monitoring the returns of its unregulated business operations. To compensate for fluctuations in propane 
gas prices, the Company adjusts its propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the market. 
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Cautionary Statement 
Chesapeake has made statements in this report that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These 
statements are not matters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as "believes," "expects," 
"intends," "plans," "will," or "may," and other similar words of a predictive nature. These statements relate to 
matters such as the potential sale of the water businesses, customer growth, changes in revenues or gross 
margins, capital expenditures, environmental remediation costs, regulatory approvals, market risks associated 
with the Company's propane wholesale marketing operation, competition, inflation and other matters. It is 
important to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees, but are subject to certain 
risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those in the forward-looking statements. These factors include, among other things: 

D 

0 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 
the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices on the Company's distribution, wholesale 
marketing and energy trading businesses; 
the effects of competition on the Company's unregulated and regulated businesses; 
the effect of changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including deregulation; 
the effect of accounting changes; 
the effect of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental damage; 
the effects of general economic conditions on the Company and its customers; 
the ability of the Company's new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected 
revenues; and 
the Company's ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators and 
the timing of the requested regulatory actions. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Long-term 
debt is subject to potential losses based on the change in interest rates. The Company's long-term debt 
consists primarily of fixed rate senior notes, first mortgage bonds and convertible debentures, none of which 
was issued for trading purposes. The carrying value of long-term debt at June 30,2004 was $71.5 million, with 
a fair value of $76.8 million, based mainly on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current 
rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities. The Company is exposed to changes in 
interest rates due to the use of fixed rate long-term debt to finance the business. Management continually 
monitors fluctuations in interest rates and debt markets to assess the benefits of changing the mix of long and 
short-term debt or refinancing existing debt. 

The Company's propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage 
activities and entering into fixed price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximately 4 
million gallons (including leased storage) of propane during the winter season to meet its customers' peak 
requirements and to serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of propane will cause the 
value of stored propane to decline. To mitigate the impact of price fluctuations, the Company has adopted a 
risk management policy that allows the propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its 
inventory. However, at June 30, 2004 the Company did not have any hedging contracts outstanding. 

The Company's propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids ("NGL") forward 
contracts, primarily propane contracts, with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane 
wholesale marketing operation purchase or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration, the 
contracts are settled by the delivery of NGL to the Company or the counter party or booking out the 
transaction. (Booking out is a procedure for financially settling a contract in lieu of the physical delivery of 
energy.) The propane wholesale marketing operation also enters into futures contracts that are traded on the 
New York Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are settled by the payment or receipt of 
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a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the futures contract and the original 
contract price; however, they may also be settled for physical receipt or delivery of propane. 

The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The 
propane wholesale marketing business is subject to commodity price risk on its open positions to the extent 
that market prices for NGL deviate from fixed contract settlement prices. Market risk associated with the 
trading of futures and forward contracts are monitored daily for compliance with the Company’s Risk 
Management Policy, which includes volumetric limits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing 
market prices, open positions are marked up or down to market prices and reviewed by oversight officials on a 
daily basis. Additionally, the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic reports on market and the credit 
risk of counter-parties, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within limits established by 
the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. Quantitative information on 
forward and futures contracts at June 30,2004 is presented in the following table. All of the contracts mature 
within twelve months. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At June 30,2004 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 
Purchase 

11,592,000 $0.6750 - $0.6925 $0.6592 
7,938,000 $0.6750 - $0.6925 $0.6757 

Futures Contracts 
Sale 588,000 $0.6750 - $0.6925 $0.6798 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 

Itern 4. Controls and Procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other 
Company officials, have evaluated the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is 
defined under Rule 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended) as of June 30, 2004. Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
During the quarter ended June 30,2004, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 
The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of 
business. The Company is also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings 
before various government agencies concerning rates. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate disposition of these proceedings and claims will not have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. 

Item 2. Changes in Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
The table below sets forth information with respect to shares of common stock repurchased 
by the Company during the three months ended June 30,2004. 

Total Number Maximum Number 
Total of Shares of Shares 

Number Average Purchased as Part of That May Yet Be 
of Shares Price Paid Publicly Announced Purchased Under the 

Period Purchased per Share Plans or  Programs 12) Plans or Programs (*) 

April 1, 2004 

May 1,2004 

June 1, 2004 

through April 30, 2004 (')  5,882 $25.4861 0 0 

through May 31, 2004 0 $0.0000 

through June 30,2004 0 $0.0000 

0 

0 

Total 5,882 $25.4861 0 0 

(l) Chesapeake purchased 5,850 shares of stock on the open market to use for the Board of Directors' 
Stock Compensation Plan. The stock was distributed in May, 2004. Additionally, 32 shares were 
purchased on the open market and were added to shares held in a Rabbi Trust to adjust the balance 
to the contractual value. 

Chesapeake has no publicly announced plans or programs to repurchase its shares 

( 3 )  The Company maintains a Rabbi Trust ("the Trust") that holds Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
common stock, pursuant to a deferred compensation plan. The stock in the Trust is recorded as 
treasury stock. There is an offsetting liability that is also recorded in the equity section of the balance 
sheet. In prior periods, these accounts netted to a zero balance. In May 2004, there was a distribution 
of shares from the Trust. As allowed by the deferred compensation plan, the recipient elected to have 
the Company withhold shares in an amount equivalent to the participant's share of payroll taxes. The 
Company remitted cash in payment of the participant's payroll taxes and continues to hold 9,353 
shares in the Rabbi Trust, that are not currently offset by a deferred compensation liability. The 
Company has the option of canceling these shares or using them to satisfy future deferred 
compensation commitments. 

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities 
None 
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
(a) The matters described in Item 4(c) below were submitted to a vote of stockholders at the 

Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 6, 2004 in connection with which, proxies were 
solicited in accordance with Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended. 

(b) Not applicable. 
(c) Proposals as submitted in the proxy statement were voted on as follows: 

i. The election of Class II Directors for three-year terms ending in 2007, and until 
their successors are elected and qualified. 

Name 
Ralph J. Adkins 

Richard Bernstein 

~~ 

Shares not 
Votes For Votes Withheld Voted 
5,098,137 101,222 508,733 
5,108,720 90.639 508.733 

Item 5. Other Information 
None 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 
(a) Exhibits: 

Exhibit 31 .I - Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-I4(a) under the Securities Exchange Act a 
dated August 9,2004 
Exhibit 31.2 - Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
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Corporation pursuant to Rule 13a-I4(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
dated August 9, 2004 
Exhibit 32.1 - Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, dated August 9, 2004 
Exhibit 32.2 - Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, dated August 9, 2004 

0 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: 
May 4, 2004 furnishing the Company’s earnings press release for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2004 (Items 7 and 12). 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

lsl MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Date: August 9, 2004 
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EXHIBIT 31 .I 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, certify that: 

1. 

2.  

3. 

4. 

5. 

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e)) for 
the registrant and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; 

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control 
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

b) 

Date: August 9, 2004 

is/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
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EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, Michael P. McMasters, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-I5(e)) for 
the registrant and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within 
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control 
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 9, 2004 

Is/ MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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Exhibit 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to  18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 
certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the period ended June 30, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in 
all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

Is1 JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
August 9,2004 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or 
other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed 
form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
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Exhibit 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to  18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I ,  Michael P. McMasters, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the period ended June 30, 2004, filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly 
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

/si MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
August 9,2004 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or 
other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed 
form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
2005 SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
DISTRIBUTION UTILITY PLANT 
UNAUDITED 

PLANT 
ACCOUNT 
NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

301 
302 
303 
304 
305 
31 1 
374 
375 
376 
378 
379 
380 
381 
382 
383 
384 
385 
387 
389 
390 
391 
392 
393 
394 
395 
396 
397 
398 
399 

ORGANIZATION 
FRANCHISE AND CONSENTS 
INTANGIBLE PLANT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
PROPANE PLANT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
MAINS 
M & R EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 
M & R EQUIPMENT - CITY GATE 
SERVICES 
METERS 
METER INSTALLATIONS 
HOUSE REGULATORS 
REGULATOR INSTALLATIONS 
INDUSTRIAL M & R STATION 
OTHER EQUIPMENT 
LAND AND LAND RIGHTS 
STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS 
OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 
TRANSPORTATION 
STORES EQUIPMENT 
TOOLS, SHOP, AND GARAGE EQUIP 
LABORATORY EQUIPMENT 
POWER OPERATED EQUIPMENT 
COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT 
MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 
OTHER TANGIBLE PROPERTY 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

EXHIBIT B 

TOTAL 
2005 CAPITAL 
ESTIMATED 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$125,000 
$1,900,000 

$95,000 
$50,000 

$609,116 
$227,476 
$1 17,343 
$1 08,408 

$0 
$128,750 
$24,496 

$0 
$25,000 
$17,742 

$169,715 
$0 

$8,210 
$0 
$0 

$151,101 
$5,150 

$0 

$3,762,507 __________---_---- ___________-_----- 
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The proceeds from stock and debt issuances will be used to administer the 
Company's Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, Automatic Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Convertible Debentures, and Stock Warrant Plan, 
as well as for other corporate purposes including, but not limited to, working capital, 
retirement of short-term debt, retirement of long-term debt, capital improvements andlor acquisitions. 


